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®® Chairman’s Statement
a TE®E

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board") of Zhou Hei Ya International Holdings
Company Limited (the “Company” or “Zhouheiya”), | am pleased to present the annual
report of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended December
31,2016.

Zhouheiya is a leading brand and retailer of casual braised food in China. In the past
decade, aspired by our core value of customers-first, we have strived to pursue our vision
and mission to establish ourselves as one of the top casual food brands in the world.
We have established strong competitive advantages in terms of product quality, brand
image, operational standards and business model, which have differentiated us from the

competitors in the industry in China.

Braised food has a long history in China and is one of the favorite food types of Chinese
people. Our products have won the popularity among customers, in particular young
customers, which is largely due to our past efforts to contribute to transforming the casual
braised food industry in China by upgrading its retail model from traditional roadside stalls
into branded chain stores. Our popularity is also attributable to the unique business model
by focusing on self-operated retail store network, with online channels as a complement,
although the distributorship model is a common industry practice in China. Self-operated
retail store network enables us to assert effective quality control, minimize potential
food safety risks and implement highly standardized operations. Moreover, our brand
philosophy, “More entertainment, More Fun” (“& 1R %45 [REE"™, brings innovation to the
industry and we provide casual braised food products with quality, taste and convenience,
which are available for a larger range of consumption scenarios than traditional braised
food.

ZHOU HEI YA INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
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Chairman’s Statement 9

The year of 2016 was an extraordinary and unforgettable year for Zhouheiya. We were
successfully listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange™) on November |1, 2016. The successful listing reflected the
recognition by the international capital market of our Company and our brand, and
further presented more opportunities. This milestone drives us to continue to improve
our corporate governance, to enhance research and development efforts, as well as to
focus on upgrading quality and services, all of which lay a solid foundation for our healthy

and sustainable long-term growth.

2016 was also a challenging year. Despite that the overall consumer goods industry in
China remained soft in 2016, we managed to achieve remarkable revenue growth in
this year, by leveraging our products with stable quality, expanding sales network, and
increasing brand awareness. We recorded total revenue of RMB2,816.5 million for the
year ended December 31, 2016, increased by approximately 15.8% from RMB2,432.0
million for the year ended December 31, 2015. Our gross profit was RMBI,755.1 million
and gross profit margin was 62.3% for the year ended December 31, 2016, as compared

to RMBI,372.8 million and 56.4% in 2015, respectively.

In 2016, we not only deepened penetration in existing markets but also successfully
expanded into new regions, most of which are first-tier and second-tier cities in China.
Our self-operated retail stores are strategically located in areas with high pedestrian
traffic and high concentrations of target customers, such as transport hubs, commercial
complexes and shopping malls. Continuing to improve visibility of our brand and products
in transport hubs has been a core development strategy of Zhouheiya and we have
already established strong brand recognition in such transport hubs. This constitutes one

of our competitive strengths which differentiates us from our competitors.
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®® Chairman’s Statement
a TE®E

We possess a deep understanding of customer preference and are able to promptly
capture and respond to market demands. In 2016, we continued to launch various
marketing and branding campaigns designed for target customers. For example, we placed
advertisements on high-speed bullet trains in nine cities and subways in four cities in China,
including first-tier cities such as Beijing and Shenzhen, which effectively improved customer
traffic to our transport hub stores. Furthermore, to appeal to the lifestyle appreciated by
young customers nowadays, we actively participated promotional events organized by
third-party online marketplaces, such as the May 17 Foodie Festival, or “1zZ 581", a well-

known event to promote online food purchases. We also organized a journey of universal
cuisine (BRIRSER ZJiR) for selected customers. These events enhanced our brand image
and customer loyalty among young people on one hand, and further reinforced our brand

philosophy of “More Entertainment, More Fun” (‘& 1R%4E [REE") on the other.

We continued to focus on the development of our e-commerce. We strengthened our
cooperation with well-known third-party online marketplaces, which contributed to the
growth of our online sales in 2016. We have also commenced cooperation with local food
ordering and delivery service platforms and have been improving our WeChat store. By
streamlining our online and offline sources and leveraging our online marketing activities,
we were able to increase the number of purchase orders in our self-operated retail stores.
In addition, we started to issue e-membership cards in 2016, which, together with our
existing membership program, enable us to set up an integrated customer database by
consolidating information collected from online and offline customer sources. We believe
our membership program strengthens the customer loyalty and further facilitates our
collection of valuable customer data, allowing us to implement precise marketing initiatives

that better address customer preferences and demands.

[t is our belief that our success depends on technologies and innovations. Our research
and development efforts are primarily focused on developing new products and upgrading
product taste. Our new products launched in 2016 had gained market acceptance and
contributed to the growth of our sales for the year. In the second half of 2015, we
started to offer fixed-weighted packages for our modified atmosphere packaging, or
MAP, products. The standardized MAP product specifications significantly improved the
efficiency in our retail stores. Moreover, the upgraded product packages delivered greater

customer experinece, enhanced our product positioning, and in turn, increased our sales.

ZHOU HEI YA INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
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Chairman’s Statement 9

As a food company with strong social responsibility and business ethics, Zhouheiya
always places a primary emphasis on food safety and quality during the food processing
procedures. We are the first braised food company that has achieved a complete
shift from selling unpackaged products to MAP products. MAP technology significantly
improves our product quality and prolongs the shelf life of braised food. Furthermore, we
implement stringent quality control practices throughout our supply chain and across all of

our logistics and sales processes.

Looking forward in 2017, it still presents many challenges, such as pressure of increasing
labor and raw material costs. Nevertheless, we are very confident about our prospect,
based on our current market share and estimated growth potentials. We believe there
remain great opportunities in first- and second-tier cities. We will endeavor to open new
stores in more regions. We also intend to optimize our operating efficiency by improving
production capacity and increasing automation in production processes. We will seek
collaboration with partners with advanced technologies to upgrade our products and
packaging technologies. We have been impressed by and benefited from the strong
purchasing power of young customers in China. Therefore, we intend to further study
their consumption habits by leveraging our big data analysis system, so as to effectively
design our online and offline marketing initiatives, and enhance our brand awareness and

market power.

Our persistence leads to future success. Zhouheiya is facing more complexities and
challenges during the evolving market environments. We aspire to accomplish our
corporate missions of establishing new industry standards, completing industry integration,
and building a world-class casual braised food brand eventually. We value innovation
and integrity. We have been devoted to growing our business and promoting social

responsibility at the same time.

On behalf of the Board, my gratitude goes to our customers, all of our employees for their
excellent work and contribution, as well as the business partners and the Shareholders of
Zhouheiya for their consistent support in the past. We will strive to achieve our objective

to build a casual braised food brand that lasts at least 100 years.

ZHOU Fuyu

Chairman

Hong Kong, March 22,2017
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® Business Review and Outlook
m EHEEREE

MARKET OVERVIEW

The Group believes that the casual food industry in China will continue to grow, which
is primarily driven by various factors, including overall economic growth and increasing
disposable income, population growth in urban areas and increasing urbanization,
increased leisure time and leisure spending and development of sales channels. According
to the National Bureau of Statistics of China, China's GDP growth for 2016 was 6.7%
while the per capita disposable income increased by 6.3% from 2015. Total retail sales
of consumer goods for 2016 amounted to approximately RMB33.2 trillion, increased by
10.4% from 2015. The overall consumer market in China had realized a stable growth in

2016.

The growing economy, increasing urbanization, higher disposable income with more leisure
time, had brought more opportunities for the casual food industry. Increasing market
demands have been driving the development of the casual braised food industry quickly.
According to Frost & Sullivan (Beijing) Inc., Shanghai Branch Co,, total retail sales of food
in China has increased at a CAGR of 19.7% from RMB731.6 billion in 2010 to RMB2,153.0
billion in 2016. As one of the sub-segments with great growth potential, total retail sales
of casual braised food in China has increased at a CAGR of 18.5% from RMB23.2 billion
in 2010 to RMB64.2 billion in 2016. Moreover, the Group also believes that female and
young customers will represent the main customer groups for casual braised food and it

intends to focus on business strategies that specially target such customers.

Meanwhile, the Group also observes that customers have been more willing to make
purchases for high quality, attractive taste and lifestyle. More spending has been shifting
from daily necessities to the needs for services, entertainment, cufture and health. As a
result, food safety and raw material costs remain challenges for the entire food industry.
As a leading brand and retailer of casual braised food in China, Zhouheiya always puts
customers first and places emphasis on high quality, product innovation, supply chain
integration, as well as outstanding customer experience. As a result, it is well positioned to

capture the market opportunities and meet evolving customer needs.

ZHOU HEI YA INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
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OVERALL BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
The Group was successfully listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange on November

I'1,2016 (the “Listing Date") , representing a significant milestone in its corporate history.

In 2016, the Group had continued to carry out its expansion plans and increased the
number of its self-operated retail stores to 778 as of December 31, 2016. Leveraging the
store network expansion, the continuously upgraded product mix with premium and high
quality, as well as its increasingly recognized brand awareness in China, the Group's total
revenue amounted to RMB2,816.5 million in 2016, increased by approximately 15.8%
from RMB2,432.0 million in 2015. The Group's gross profit increased by 27.8% from
RMBI,372.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2015 to RMBI,755.1 million for the
year ended December 31, 2016. Gross profit margin improved from 56.4% in 2015 to
62.3% in 201 6. Profit before tax increased by 28.8% from RMB748.2 million for the year
ended December 31, 2015 to RMB963.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2016
and the profit before tax as a percentage of revenue increased from 30.8% in 2015 to
34.2% in 2016. The Group's net profit increased by 29.5% from RMB552.7 million for the
year ended December 31, 2015 to RMB715.6 million for the year ended December 31,
2016 and net profit margin improved from 22.7% in 2015 to 25.4% in 2016.

Store Network Expansion

The Group continued to focus on its unique business model by developing its self-
operated retail store network. In 2016, in addition to enhancing the penetration in
existing regional markets, the Group also successfully entered into eight new cities, namely
Chongging, Xinxiang and Xuchang in Henan Province, Zaoyang and Dangyang in Hubei

Province, Suzhou and Wuxi in Jiangsu Province, and Langfang in Hebei Province.
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® Business Review and Outlook
m EHEEREE

In 2016, the Group newly opened 190 self-operated retail stores and closed 53 stores. As
a result, as of December 31, 2016, it had a total of 778 self-operated retail stores covering

43 cities in 13 provinces and municipalities in China.

Geographically, central China area remained the major regional market of the Group in
2016, while other regional markets had generally experienced growth in terms of the
number of self-operated retail stores and revenue contribution, in particular in eastern and

northem China regions.

The table below sets forth a breakdown of the number of self-operated retail store

network by geographic location for the periods indicated.

RZZ—RE KEEHRARZ I190H B &
& REMSIEBEZEME BtREBE=F
—NETZ A=t HESREAETAXE
778MBEEME - BE 3EEHREET -

WE L EhEREAREERN X
FHITHETS  HEMBEE SR
HERNS TH2RENBY  BR - Fi
HWEXRL AR -

TREFIRFR AR R MRV E 2SI E &
FIE 28 A4

Year Ended December 31,
BE+t-RA=t—-HLEE

2016 2015
—E-RE “E—aF

# % # %
Central China" O 370 476 34 532
Southern China® FEFO 164 21.1 140 21.8
Eastern China® EEO 110 14.1 63 9.8
Northern Chinat 4o 100 12.9 80 125
Southwestern China® mEo 34 43 |7 27
Total et 778 100.0 641 100.0

ZHOU HEI YA INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2016
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EBOERRE -

The table below sets forth a breakdown of revenue contribution as a percentage of total

revenue generated from self-operated retail stores by geographic location for the periods

TREFINFIR AR R E 25I0% 5
ZPEPSRIE B 2 L A4 -

indicated.
Year Ended December 31,
BE+t-A=t—-HLEE
2016 2015
“E-AF —T-h%
RMB’000 % RMB'000 %
ARBTR ARETT
Central China" EhO 1,612,886 66.6 1,493,759 70.1
Southern China® Bl 352,793 146 325,755 153
Eastern China® ERO 224,374 9.3 143320 67
Northern China® =S IA 202,196 8.3 154751 73
Southwestern China® fitl=1a 28,608 1.2 13,843 0.6
Total Bt 2,420,857 100.0 2,131,428 1000
)] Comprises Hubei Province, Hunan Province, Henan Province and Jiangxi Province. ) BIERILE - WL TEERIAS -
(2)  Comprises Guangdong Province (including Shenzhen). Q) BEERE®EBRI) -
(3)  Comprises Shanghai, Jiangsu Province and Zhejiang Province. () BELE IHERNIE -
(4)  Comprises Beijing, Tianjin and Hebei Province. (4  BEILR XERALE -
(5)  Comprises Chongging and Sichuan Province. G BEEERDIIE -

Eﬁ%ﬂ?ﬁ?"ﬁ'ﬂﬁ’%ﬁlﬂs’?‘;?ﬁ | 1 7
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® Business Review and Outlook
m EHEEREE

The Group strategically locates its self-operated retail stores in the transport infrastructure,
such as airports, railway stations and subway stations, or the ancillary facilities surrounding
the transport infrastructure. As of December 31, 2016, among all self-operated retail
stores the Group operated, 204 were transport hub stores. Sales derived from such
transport hub stores aggregated to approximately RMBI,052.2 million, accounting for
approximately 37.4% of total revenue for 2016 comparing with RMB834.2 million, or
approximately 34.3% of total revenue, for 2015.

Based on a total of 414 comparable self-operated retail stores in 2015 and 2016, the
Group's total comparable store sales amounted to RMBI,856.8 million and the same store
sales growth rate was 0.7% from 2015 and 2016. The Group's same store base is defined
as those self-operated retail stores that were in operation throughout the relevant periods

under comparison.

Average spending per purchase order of the Group's self-operated retail stores increased
from approximately RMB56.27 in 2015 to RMB59.24 in 201 6.

The Group continued to follow its disciplined approach in selecting cities and locations for

stores and carry out standardized site identification and store establishment procedures.

Marketing and Branding Campaigns

Unique culture and lifestyle brand image have always been one of the Group's strengths
that differentiated it from its competitors. In 2016, the Group continued to implement its
brand philosophy of “More Entertainment, More Fun" (“& R %4 5 IR ££") and launched
various marketing initiatives that particularly targeted at young customers and potential

customers at transport hubs.
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Business Review and Outlook 9

For example, it placed advertisements on high-speed bullet trains in nine cities and
subways in four cities in China, including first-tier cities such as Beijing and Shenzhen, which
effectively improved customer traffic to the transport hub stores. Furthermore, to appeal
to the lifestyle appreciated by young customers, the Group participated in promotional
events organized by third-party online marketplaces, such as May |7 Foodie Festival, or
“I7EEN", a well-known event to promote online food purchases. The Group organized
advertising festivals on 12 university campuses in 2016 to give lectures and encourage
university students to produce advertisements featuring Zhouheiya brand and products.
Such event strategically promoted the Group's brand among younger students, and

enabled students to get familiar with its corporate culture and products effectively.

To take advantage of the strong network effect brought by the online social media,
the Group continued to enhance the development of its online marketing strategies.
Leveraging its WeChat store and Weibo account, it was not only able to promote brand
awareness by publishing posts and advertisements, but also enhanced customer loyalty by

active interaction with those WeChat and Weibo followers,

Product and Technology Innovations

The Group has been continuously developing new products to enhance its product
portfolio. In addition to ducks and duck parts, it also offers other meat products,
vegetables, bean curd, eggs and seafood. Moreover, the Group has also improved its
processing technologies and packaging techniques. In 2016, it fully launched fixed-weighted
packages for modified atmosphere packaging, or MAP, products which have become

popular among customers.
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The following table sets forth the revenue contribution, the sales volume and the average TREINARBREREREZEEmES
selling prices in terms of the Group's main product categories for the periods indicated. MR ER - HERTHEE -

Year Ended December 31,
BE+-A=1t—HILEE

2016 2015
—E-AF —E-hF
Average Average
Sales Selling Sales Selling
Revenue Volume Price Revenue Volume Price
23 HE THEE g HE THEE
(RMB’000) (tons)  (RMB/kg)  (RMB'000) (tons)  (RMBlkg)
(AR¥ (AR%/ (AR (ANR®/
F) (g) TR) ) (W8) Fr)
Ducks and duck part products ) 88 % B8 &l & f () 2,496,698 28,338 88. 2206208 27,293 80.8
Other products ()@ HihEmO® 319,791 4,492 712 225,801 3326 679
Total () st o 2,816,489 32,830 858 2432009 30,620 79.4

0 The average selling prices are for indicative purpose only. Various products are sold in different THEBEHIHA TRERMEZTARRLE K
specifications with a wide price range. BEZHERGERERLE -

@ Other products mainly include braised red meat, braised vegetable products and other braised @ EMERTEBRNEAR  NERXEMD
poultry. REMARKE -

20 ZHOU HEI YA INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2016



Business Review and Outlook 9

In addition, the Group started to issue e-membership cards in 2016, which, together with
the existing membership program, enable it to set up an integrated customer database
by consolidating information collected from online and offline customer sources. The
membership program is expected to strengthen the customer loyalty and further facilitate
the Group to collect valuable customer data, allowing it to implement precise marketing

initiatives that better address customer preferences and demands.

Production Capacity and Operating Efficiency

In 2016, the Group continued to implement its production capacity expansion plans.
The Phase Il Wuhan processing facility commenced commercial operation by late 2016
and started to contribute additional production capacity. Designed annual production
capacity of the Phase Il Wuhan processing facility amounted to approximately 88,300,800
boxes, or 22,000 tons, per year. The Group expects that the overall utilization rate of its

processing facilities will be further improved in the upcoming years.

On the other hand, the Group continued to enhance the automation level during the
production processes, aiming at enhancing the production efficiency as well as increasing
the product quality. For example, the Group installed production lines with upgraded
automated sections in its new Phase Il Wuhan facility. It also improved the defrosting and
packaging processes by adding automated equipment which largely increased the efficiency

comparing with the traditional manual operation.

E-Commerce

The Group continued to implement its e-commerce strategies and its online sales,
mainly through cooperation with third party online marketplaces and had experienced
a significant growth in 2016. Revenue generated from online channels amounted to
RMB263.9 million for 2016, representing an increase of 53.1% from 2015.
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The Group has established strong presence on domestic major online marketplaces. By

launching various online marketing initiatives and participating in the promotional events

held by those marketplaces, such as those held on November |l (“Double Eleven” or

“#+—") and May |7 ("Foodie Festival" or "Iz &ER", an event to promote online food

purchases in China), the Group recorded remarkable online sales.

In addition, in 2016, it started to further cooperate with several local food ordering and

delivery service platforms, which were currently available in over |5 cities.

The following table sets forth the revenue contribution by the Group's sales channels for

the periods indicated.

AEBERERNIBZW BB IERRE
JEo BlELS AR L EHEDH R2EBZ
ERHEFRERNEMEY - flmRt+— A
T-HERNET - IRRAATLRE
MEOCES (EETERLLBEERMAE
B) AEESGFURSLEE -

bAh e RZF—RF - AEERGE SR
AR ERINERBEF &A1 - S
BRI RINERTS - B ATAIRNERA 15 @5
MM -

TREINAR RN R EHEREN W
BRf o

Year Ended December 31,
BE+t-RA=t—-HLEE

2016 2015
—E-RE —Z-RF
RMB’000 % RMB'000 %
ARBT ARBTT
Self-operated retail stores (" BEMEO 2,420,857 86.0 2,131,428 87.6
Online channels HLERB 263,867 9.4 172,435 7.1
Distributors ki1 121,237 42 (11812 46
Others @ Hipo 10,528 0.4 16,334 0.7
Total st 2,816,489 100.0 2,432,009 100.0

0 Includes revenue derived from online ordering and delivery services, products so sold are typically

picked up at the designated retail stones.

@ Primarily include revenue generated from vending machines and other direct sales through

subsidiaries.
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OUTLOOK FOR 2017
Industry Outlook
According to Frost & Sullivan, total retail sales of food in China is expected to increase to

RMB3,312.5 billion in 2021, representing a CAGR of 9.0% from 2017 to 2021.

Total retail sales of casual braised food in China is expected to further increase to
RMB149.2 billion in 2021, representing a CAGR of 18.4% from 2017 to 2021.

Business Outlook

The Group believes that 2017 is a year full of challenges as well as opportunities. Pressure
of increasing labor and raw material costs urge the Group to be prudent, visionary and
get well prepared. Nevertheless, there remain significant potentials in the casual braised
food market in China. In particular, the growing purchasing power of young customers
and the evolving consumption habits, such as online shopping and local food services, have

presented more opportunities and market needs that have not been fully addressed.

The Group expects to take advantage of its current market position as a China’s leading
casual braised food company and to further strengthen and advance the leadership and

market share in China, and to expand internationally as one of the top casual food brands.
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Further penetrate existing markets and strategically expand into new regions. In
2017, the Group expects to further increase the number of its self-operated retalil
stores. It expects to enhance the penetration in existing markets, in particular in the
central China area. It also expects to expand its footprint by replicating its successful
retail store model into new regions in China, and particularly, to enhance its visibility
in strategic locations nationwide. In 2017, the Group intends to primarily enhance

its retail store network in eastern China and northern China regional markets.

Further strengthen the brand equity and promote unique culture and lifestyle
image. The Group will continue to implement its entertainment marketing
strategies, both online and offline, to further enhance its brand image while
promoting unique culture and lifestyle image of “More Entertainment, More Fun”
("EIREETREE"). It will increase brand image campaigns and sponsorships and
will actively study the changing trends and preferences of the customers in order to
tailor promotional initiatives to better attract their attention. In particular, it expects
to collaborate with various partners to launch more online marketing initiatives
and cross-promotional events, so as to further drive the sales and enhance brand

awareness and customer base.

Develop new products and introduce new technologies to continuously
enhance consumers’ satisfaction. The Group will continue to emphasize product
development and innovation. In particular, it will continue to enhance its product
portfolio and selectively develop new products to cater to consumer needs, such
as braised vegetables, bean curd, red meat and seafood. It will also continue to
improve product quality. In addition, it will continue to develop and introduce
new product processing and packaging technologies that may further improve
the taste and shelf life of its products. It will also enhance investments in relevant

technologies and human resources in order to ensure product safety.
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Continue to focus on attracting young customers and developing e-commerce
business. The Group has been benefiting from the growing purchasing power of
young customers in China. It intends to improve its membership management
and continue to carry out its lifestyle marketing and branding strategies to attract
more young customers and enhance their loyalty. The Group will establish an
integrated and stable membership system to further streamline its online and
offline customer resources. On the other hand, in order to adapt to the evolving
online consumption habits and to capture the great market potential brought by
rapidly growing e-commerce in China, the Group also expects to accelerate the
development of its online channels, by strengthening cooperation with various
well-known online marketplaces as well as local food ordering and delivery service
platforms. The Group will continue to explore more logistics service solutions to

facilitate its online initiatives and ensure time delivery.

Enhance investments in human resource and improve operational efficiency. The
Group expects to enhance its investments in human resource in order to attract,
retain and train high-quality management personnel as well as other administrative
and sales and marketing personnel, in order to support the long-term sustainable
growth. Being a listed company requires the Group to further enhance its
corporate governance and social responsibility. In this regard, the Group intends to
recruit personnel with relevant experience and provide internal training programs
to accelerate the establishment of management team that could meet the high
corporate governance standards. Moreover, the Group also expects to improve
its operational and managerial efficiency by optimizing organizational structure and

administrative procedures and strengthening internal control procedures.
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The following table sets forth the Group's audited consolidated statements of profits
or loss and other comprehensive income in absolute amounts and as percentage of the
Group's total revenue for the periods indicated, together with the change from 2015 to

2016 (expressed in percentages). mit  ER-_ZE-AFE_ZT—RFH
ZEUARDHLIIR) -
Year Ended December 31,
BEt-A=t+-RLFE
Year-
over-year
2016 2015 Change
ZB-A¥ —E-nf Atk &
RMB’000 % RMB'000 % %
ARBTF T ARBTT

Revenue L6 2,816,489 1000 2432009 100.0 158
Cost of sales SERR (1,061,387) (77)  (1059,190) (43.6) 02
Gross profit £ 1,755,102 623 1,372,819 56.4 278
Other income and gains, net Efh A R e #58 50,704 18 28,062 12 80.7
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHEAX (700.893) (249) (527969) Q17 328
Administrative expenses TR (141,547) (5.0) (124724 5. 135
Profit before tax BRBL AT A 963,366 342 748,188 308 288
Income tax expense FETR X (247,755) (88) (195,450 8.1 268
Profit for the year EERA 715611 254 552,738 07 295
Other comprehensive income Hit2EHRA
Other comprehensive income to RERENDEZER

be reclassified to profit or loss in HEMEERA

subsequent periods:
Available-for-sale investments: AIEHERE :

Changes in fair value, net of tax ATHEZE (R 2231 0l 1,405 0l 588

Reclassification adjustments for STABRNE REE 2.231) .1 (1,405) ©.1) 5838

gains and losses included in the ENNBRR-

profit or loss - gains on disposal, HE W (RTE)

net of tax
Exchange differences on translation BINEBRENELZR 50,604 1.8 7,690 03 5580

of foreign operations
Other comprehensive income for the FEEMPEBARTER) 50,604 1.8 7690 03 5580

year, net of tax
Total comprehensive income for FEXARAAR

the year 766,215 272 560,428 23.0 367
Basic and diluted earnings BREFAREEEF

per share (RMB) (AR#) 037 NA. 029 NA. 276
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Revenue

The Group's total revenue increased by approximately |5.8% from RMB2,432.0 million for
the year ended December 31, 2015 to RMB2,816.5 million for the year ended December
31, 2016, which was primarily due to the increase of average selling prices as a result of
the upgrades for product packaging, as well as the increase in total sales volume as a result
of the continuous expansion of the Group's self-operated retail store network. In 2016,
the Group had fully launched fixed-weighted packages for MAP products and individually-
packed vacuum packages for vacuum packaged products. In addition, the total number
of the self-operated retail stores increased from 641 as of December 31, 2015 to 778 as
of December 31, 2016. Revenue contributed by the Group's self-operated retail stores
increased by approximately |3.6% from RMB2,131.4 million for the year ended December
31,2015 to RMB2,420.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2016.

Moreover, revenue derived from the online channels increased by approximately 53.1%
from RMB172.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2015 to RMB263.9 million for
the year ended December 31, 2016, primarily due to the Group's continued e-commerce
marketing strategies to enhance its brand awareness online. In 2016, the Group's online
channels offered fixed-weighted packages for MAP products, which generally have a higher

average selling price and were only offered since the second half of 2015.

Geographically, central China area remained the major regional market of the Group
in 2016, which contributed approximately 66.6% of total revenue for the year ended
December 31, 2016. Nevertheless, other regional markets had generally experienced
growth in terms of the number of self-operated retail stores and revenue contributed.
In particular, revenue contributed by eastern China area increased significantly by
approximately 56.6%, mainly as a result of the rapid expansion of the self-operated retail

store network in this region.
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Cost of Sales

Cost of sales slightly increased by approximately 0.2% from RMBI,059.2 million for the
year ended December 31, 2015 to RMB1,061.4 million for the year ended December
31, 2016. The growth rate of cost of sales in 2016 was lower than that of total revenue,
which was primarily due to the Group's increased procurements of certain raw materials
at relatively low prevailing market prices in 2016, and the decrease in packaging material
costs. Such decreases were partially offset by increases in logistics related costs, which
mainly represents the transportation costs relating to raw material procurements, and
storage charges, as the Group increased raw material procurements in 2016 to take

advantage of the relatively low market prices.

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

As a result of the foregoing, the Group's gross profit increase by 27.8% from RMB1,372.8
million for the year ended December 31, 2015 to RMBI,755.1 million for the year ended
December 31, 2016. Gross profit margin improved from 56.4% in 2015 to 62.3% in 2016.

Other Income and Gains, Net

The Group's other income and gains, net increased by approximately 80.4% from
RMB28.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2015 to RMB50.7 million for the
year ended December 31, 2016. The increase was primarily due to an increase of
approximately RMB19.0 million of government grants received in 2016, partially offset by
a decrease of approximately RMB8.4 million in interest income from structured deposits
as a result of the lower average amount invested in structured deposits during 2016. The
Group established and had strictly followed the capital and investment policies to monitor

and control the risks relating to its investment activities.

ZHOU HEI YA INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2016

anagement Discussion and Analysis

HEMA
HERABBEE-T—RAF+=ZA=1+—H
tiﬁ%AE%msz%ﬁ%w%M%
0% EBE_T—R"F+-_A=1+—HILF
EHAREI6I4BEL  ZT—RFH
HERAERERBNEE  FEHREE
BER-_E-REENREMSERIEMEE
LRMEOERBEARBRMEHERRER - F
BRI BOEDREAXA(EZEERR
MEHRBO B ) RFEFRZEMAE
i DERAEERZT—AFERMEHR
R B IEINRM LR

EFREFE

R LE  AEENENEBEE-S—1
F+ZA=T—HLEFENARK 13728
BBILEMISEBEE_S—~F+=A

;+—E¢¢FWAE%|BM§%%0%

MER T —HFEMSA%RFE N
FH623% e
HtW AR W& FE

AEENEMBEARREFEREE-T
—RFETZA=+—HLEFEMARKE 28I
BETLENN804%EHE_T— R F+=
A=+—BILFENARES0TBEET A
EMEZERRN T — A FHRAHEIL ML
AREDOBEET BB T FaHE
HERHFHRESEREEH BTN
FIBMARD AR AT B LA o

$%@ELM&ETLW§$&&§ﬂ

ERREHAEBERETSNER



Selling and Distribution Expenses

The Group's selling and distribution expenses increased by approximately 32.8% from
RMB528.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2015 to RMB700.9 million for
the year ended December 31, 2016. The increase was due to the Group's enhanced
advertising and promotional activities, such as placing advertisements on high-speed trains
and subways. The increase was also due to an increase in the salary and welfare for its
selling and marketing staff as well as the increased headcount of selling and marketing

personnel, particularly, the store staffs.

Administrative Expenses

The Group's administrative expenses increased by approximately 13.5% from RMBI124.7
million for the year ended December 31, 2015 to RMBI41.5 million for the year ended
December 31, 2016, primarily due to an increase of the average wage rate. In addition,
the increase in administrative expenses in 2016 was also due to the expenses of RMB21.5

million incurred by the Group in connection with its initial public offering (the “IPO").
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Profit Before Tax

As a result of the foregoing, the Group recorded profit before tax of RMB963.4 million for
the year ended December 31, 2016, increased by approximately 28.8% from RMB748.2
million for the year ended December 31, 2015.

Income Tax Expense

Income tax expense increased by approximately 26.8% from RMB195.5 million for the
year ended December 31, 2015 to RMB247.8 million for the year ended December
31, 2016, mainly due to the increase in the taxable revenue resulting from the business

growth in 2016.

Profit for the Year

As a result of the foregoing, the Group's net profit increased by 29.5% from RMB552.7
million for the year ended December 31, 2015 to RMB715.6 million for the year ended
December 31, 2016. Net profit margin improved from 22.7% in 2015 to 25.4% in 201 6.

Exchange Differences on Translation of Foreign Operations

Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations significantly increased from
RMBY7.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2015 to RMB50.6 million for the year
ended December 31, 2016, primarily represented the foreign exchange gains on term
deposit denominated in Hong Kong dollars as a result of the proceeds received from the
IPO.

Total Comprehensive Income for the Year

As a result of the foregoing, the Group's total comprehensive income for the year ended
December 31, 2016 increased by 36.7% to RMB766.2 million from RMB560.4 million for
the year ended December 31, 2015.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEENWESNT m

Non-GAAP Measure ENREHRAFTERIER

To supplement the Group's consolidated financial statements which are presented in REAAEEREE BT BREEN 25K
accordance with HKFRS, the Group uses adjusted net profit as an additional financial RENBHE  FAEEFREABRMENER
measure to evaluate the Group's financial performance without taking into account certain AEAEEMBRENEINT B EHET
unusual and non-recurring items. Adjusted net profit is calculated by deducting listing MAst RETAISERERFILEE - £
expense the Group incurred in connection with its IPO. The table below sets forth the B4R DHEHBASEREFT A HEEE
reconciliation of profit for the year to adjusted net profit. HE) ETRXETE o TREDIF R RN EL

FBAFINHE -

Year Ended December 31,
BE+-A=1+—-HILEE

2016 2015
—E-RE “T—hF
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTT ARETT

Profit for the year F R A 715611 552,738
Listing expenses siliiba 21,481 9959
Adjusted net profit () IR O 737,092 562,697
(1) Adjusted net profit is an unaudited non-GAAP item. The Group uses such unaudited non- (h KBABGFNARECEZFRLARGTRANE
GAAP adjusted net profit as an additional financial measure to supplement the consolidated B REEGRERALRAZRENIEREING
financial statements which are presented in accordance with HKFRS and to evaluate the financial B EREE URRAEEREEAEVBR
performance of the Group by eliminating the impact of certain unusual and non-recurring item that EERAN 2 G E M EERRATHAREREG
the Group does not consider indicative of the performance of the business of the Group. Other BRE BT HERASETIRREAEE
companies in the industry the Group operates in may calculate this non-GAAP item differently EBRBABTENETISERIFLEN
than the Group does. This non-GAAP item is not a measure of operating performance or liquidity HEZRE AEEEEMETENEMR
under HKFRS and should not be considered as a substitute for, or superior to, profit before tax or AR REAEETNAARTELZERARE
cash flow from operating activities in accordance with HKFRS. This non-GAAP item has limitation FHRAEE - ZFLARGHRABRLFEA
as an analytical tool, and you should not consider it in isolation or as a substitute for analysis of the RETRABETEERRIARDESMAM
Group's results as reported under HKFRS. The Group's presentation of this non-GAAP item should FERE TEEEATRAIERBIES
not be construed as an inference that the Group's future results will be unaffected by unusual or 7 B 765 S 5 R BB B T AT R R Sl A VR B A
non-recurring items. BHEME - ZHRREHRAEEERD

MIAFERS M BTAERESEY
REREAKERBEBHBHREEMZ
WMEENAIN - FEEZIZFERREHR
SRR TERREAAEEBREES TG
RITSEIHERHHEANRE -
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¥ Management Discussion and Analysis
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LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

In 2016, the Group financed its operations primarily through cash generated from its
business operations and the net proceeds received from its IPO. The Group intends to
finance its expansion and business development by internal resources and through organic

and sustainable growth, as well as to use the net proceeds received from its IPO.

Capital Structure

As of December 31, 2016, the Group had net assets of approximately RMB3,595.6 million,
as compared to RMB385.0 million as of December 31, 2015, comprising current assets of
RMB3,479.1 million, non-current assets of approximately RMB627.9 million, current liability
of RMB489.2 million and non-current liability of approximately RMB22.2 million.

Cash and Bank

As compared with RMB82.3 million as of December 31, 2015, as of December 31, 2016,
the Group had cash and bank of approximately RMB2,461.3 million, which was consisted
of cash and cash equivalents of approximately RMB200.7 million and term deposits with

maturity over three months of approximately RMB2,260.6 million.

RBEERERRKR

R-T—RF AEETENEREEEMR
EEREMAERRRBEMERAFELE
LEREED - ARERPAANTER B
BEARAHEERARERLREERE
TRFEAHEBERNEHEERIES -

BERB
BE_Z—"F+-A=1+—H0 A%£EH
BEFENAAREISN(HET  MEBE
SR+ A=T—RABARK3850
% CEHRBERBEEARKE3A9 B
B kRBEENARKQIIBET
RHEBARBALEELRERDEE
WMARENLIBET

RERBITER
BE_Z-—RFTA=t—0 " F~5EH

BeERROTEROABEARBE 2461388 T

(MBEE-E—AF+-_A=+—HAAA
REQNIBEETL) BRREEMREEEY
PHARE2007BETRR =188 LA L-FIH

HEBMERNARK 22606 BETT °

34 ZHOU HEI YA INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2016



Management Discussion and Analysis

Financial Risks

The Group is not subject to significant credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group had cash at
banks denominated in foreign currencies, which exposed the Group to foreign exchange
risk. The Group does not use any derivative contracts to hedge against its exposure to
foreign exchange risk. The management manages its currency risk by closely monitoring
the movement of the foreign currency rates and will take prudent measures to minimize

the currency translation risk.

Structured Deposits

The Group from time to time invests in asset management products, primarily structured
deposits, in order to better facilitate its cash management. Structured deposits were
principal-protected products which typically had a fixed short term and may be
redeemed upon their respective expiry dates. As at December 31, 2016, the Group
invested approximately RMB685.3 million of structured deposits (December 31, 2015:
approximately RMBI0 million). Up to March 22, 2017 approximately RMB430.3 million
out of the RMB685.3 million had been settled and redeemed upon their maturity with the
remaining not yet fallen due. The underlying investments of the structured deposits were
primarily short-term sovereign bonds, financial bonds and central bank bills, and other
investment products issued by commercial banks in the inter-bank market in China, which
were very liquid with a relatively short term of maturity, and which were considered to
akin to placing deposits with banks whilst enabling the Group to eam a relatively higher
rate of retum. In 2016, interest income from structured deposits amounted to RMB5.2

million (December 31, 2015: approximately RMB13.6 million).

The Group has implemented capital and investment policies to monitor and control the
risks relating to its investment activities. The Group may only make investments in asset
management products when it has surplus cash. Only investments in low-risk products
issued by qualified commercial banks or other financial institutions are allowed and
investments should be non-speculative in nature. The Group's capital and investment
policies also specify the criteria for selecting investments to be considered and the detailed

review procedures each proposed investment shall go through.
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In view of an upside of earning a relatively higher return than current saving or fixed
deposit rate under the low interest rate trend, as well as the principal-protected nature
and a relatively short term of maturity of the structured deposits, the Directors are of
the view that the structured deposits pose little risk to the Group and the terms and
conditions of each of the structured deposits are fair and reasonable and are in the

interests of the Company and is shareholders as a whole.

Use of Proceeds from the Initial Public Offering

Net proceeds from the IPO (including the exercise of the over-allotment options on
November 30, 2016), after deducting the underwriting commission and other estimated
expenses in connection with the Global Offering which the Company received amounted
to approximately HK$2,792.3 million, comprising HK$2,428.1 million raised from the
Global Offering and HK$364.2 million from the issue of shares pursuant to the exercise of

the over-allotment options, respectively.

During the year ended December 31, 2016, the Group had utilized approximately
RMB29.5 million of the proceed from the IPO, comprising RMBI15.6 million in upgrading its
exiting processing facilities, logistics and storage centers in VWWuhan and Shanghai; RMB13.1
million in the acquisition of land use rights for the new processing facility in southwestermn
China; RMBO.4 million in upgrading its ERP system and integrating online and offline
membership programs; and RMB0.4 million in the development of the processing facility in
Dongguan. As of December 31, 2016, net proceeds not utilized had been deposited into

short-term deposits and money market instruments, including structured deposits.

Indebtedness

As of December 31, 2016, the Group did not have any outstanding indebtedness or any
loan capital issued and outstanding or agreed to be issued, bank overdrafts, loans or similar
indebtedness, liabilities under acceptances (other than normal trade bills), acceptance
credits, debentures, mortgages, charges or hire purchase commitments, guarantees or

other contingent liabilities or any covenant in connection thereof.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

As such, as of December 31, 2016, the Group had no interest-bearing bank borrowings
and thus no gearing ratio (which is calculated as interest-bearing bank borrowings less cash

and cash equivalent divided by the total equity) was calculated.

Cash Flows

For the year ended December 31, 2016, net cash generated from operating activities
increased to approximately RMB757.3 million from RMB624.4 million for the year ended
December 31, 2015, which was mainly attributed to profit before tax of RMB963.4 million,
adjusted for certain non-cash items such as depreciation and amortization of RMB46.8
million. Addition factors that affected net cash generated from operating activities included
(i) income tax paid of RMB200.5 million, (ii) an increase in inventories of RMB72.2 million,
(i) an increase in other payables and accruals of RMB47.7 million mainly in connection
with advance from customers, (iv) an increase in trade payables of RMB32.1 million due to
increased payables to raw material suppliers, and (v) an increase in prepayments, deposits
and other receivables of RMB32.1 million mainly due to increased prepaid rents as well as
an increase in rental deposits of RMB9.5 million, each a result of the increased total leased

areas for the Group's self-operated retail stores.

For the year ended December 31, 2016, net cash used in investing activities increased to
approximately RMB2,938.8 million from RMB283.3 million for the year ended December
31, 2015, which was mainly attributed to additions of term deposits of maturity over
three months of RMB2,260.6 million, the purchases of structured deposits and available-
for-sale investments of RMB2,135.3 million, and the purchases of items of property, plant
and equipment of RMB95.6 million mainly in connection with the Group's Phase Il Wuhan
processing facility, partially offset by proceeds from disposal of structured deposits and

available-for-sale investments of RMB2,030.0 million.
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For the year ended December 31, 2016, net cash generated from financing activities
increased to approximately RMB2,254.1 million from RMB329.0 million for the year ended

December 31, 2015, which was mainly attributed to the proceeds received from the IPO.

Capital Expenditure

The Group's capital expenditures amounted to RMBI 1 1.2 million as of December 31,
2016, which were used primarily for decoration and improvement of self-operated
retail stores, purchases of production lines for existing facilities and the construction and
establishment of the Phase Il Wuhan processing facility. The Group financed its capital

expenditures primarily with cash generated from operations.

Contingent Liabilities and Guarantees
As of December 31, 2016, the Group did not have any significant unrecorded contingent

liabilities, guarantees or any litigation against it.

Material Acquisition and Future Plans for Major Investment

In 2016, the Group did not conduct any material investments, acquisitions or disposals. In
addition, save for the expansion plans as disclosed in the sections headed “Business” and
“Future Plans and Use of Proceeds” in the Prospectus of the Company dated November
I, 2016 (the “Prospectus”), the Group has no specific plan for major investment or
acquisition for major assets or other business. However, the Group will continue to

identify new opportunities for business development.

Valuation of Properties

For the purpose of listing of the Company's shares on the Stock Exchange on November
I'l, 2016, a valuation was conducted on the property interests held by the Group.
However, those property interests still carried at historical costs less accumulated

depreciation on the Group's consolidated financial statements.
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With reference to the property valuation set out in Appendix Ill of the Company's
Prospectus, the amount of such valuation of approximately RMB208.5 million were
identified in respect of the property interests of the Group as of September 30, 2016.
If the property of the Group were stated at that valuation, the depreciation charge per
annum approximates to the amounts recorded. There was no additional depreciation

charge recorded as of December 31, 2016,

TURNOVER RATIOS

Average inventory turnover days increased from 34.5 days in 2015 to 585 days in 2016,
primarily due to a relatively low inventory level in early 2015 as the Group had increased
the inventory reserves of certain major raw materials at lower prevailing market prices

since late 2015 and in 2016.

Average trade receivables turover days remained relatively stable at 0.8 days in 2015 and

0.9 day in 2016.

Average trade payables turnover days increased from 14.3 days in 2015 to 22.7 days in
2016, primarily because the Group increased the preparation of inventory reserves which

increased the trade payable by the year end.

EMPLOYEE AND LABOR COST
As of December 31, 2016, the Group had a total of 3,998 employees, among which
approximately 59.0% were retail store operations and sales staff and 20.5% were

manufacturing staff at its processing facilities.

The Group has developed a performance evaluation system to assess the performance
of its employees annually, which forms the basis for determining the salary levels, bonuses
and promotions an employee may receive. Sales and marketing personnel may also
receive bonuses based on the sales targets they accomplish, by taking into account the

overall sales performance of the stores in the same regional market in the relevant period.

In 2016, the Group incurred total labor costs of RMB348.9 million, representing

approximately 12.4% of total revenue of the Group.
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TOP SUPPLIERS AND TOP CUSTOMERS

In 2016, purchases from the Group's largest duck supplier in terms of dollar amount
accounted for approximately |1.4% of total purchase cost and the aggregate purchases
from its top five duck suppliers in terms of dollar amount in aggregate accounted for

approximately 34.2% of total purchase cost.

In 2016, due to the nature of the Group's business, revenue derived from its top five

customers accounted for less than 30% of total revenue.

RESERVES
As of December 31, 2016, the Group's reserves available for distribution to shareholders

amounted to approximately RMB2,575.8 million.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

No material events were undertaken by the Group subsequent to December 31, 2016.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend of RMB0.09 per share (adopting
an exchange rate of HK$I=RMB0.8899, equivalent to HK$0.10 per share and payable
in Hong Kong dollars), amounting to approximately a total of RMB214.7 million for the
year ended December 31, 2016 (the “2016 Final Dividend"), representing approximately
30% of our net profit for the year ended December 31, 2016. The 2016 Final Dividend is
subject to the approval of the Company's shareholders at the forthcoming annual general

meeting (the "AGM") to be held on May 31, 2017.
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Biographies of the Directors and Senior Managament ¥
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Directors
Executive Directors

Mr. ZHOU Fuyu (B & #), aged 42, is the Chairman and an executive Director. Mr.
Zhou founded our business with his wife, Ms. Tang Jianfang, in 2002 and established our
previous holding company, Zhou Hei Ya Foods Joint Stock Limited Company (& & 5
R B R A ) ("Wuhan ZHY Holdco"), on June 13, 2006. He was appointed
as our Director on June 8, 2016 and is primarily responsible for formulating the overall
Group's strategies and leading the product development. With approximately |15 years of
experience in casual braised food industry, he is the key driver of our business strategies
and achievements to date and continues to oversee the management of our operations,

business, and the Group's sales network.

Mr. HAO Lixiao (#832), aged 41, was appointed as an executive Director on June 8, 2016
and the Chief Executive Officer on March 22, 2017. He is primarily responsible for developing
the business strategies and plans of the Group and overseeing the Group's operations and
performance. He was the deputy general manager of Wuhan ZHY Holdco from October
2007 to July 2015 and is a deputy general manager of ZHY Development. Prior to joining
our Group, he worked at Wushang Sanjiaolu Shopping Centre (B 2% = A E WP L)
as a salesman from September 1994 to September 1997, Wushang Baisheng Hypermarket
(B 7 B B 2 IR J5) as a manager from September 1997 to March 2000 and Wushang
Hypermarket Company (EVEZ8R 2] ), from April 2000 to September 2007 as a buyer of

its procurement department.

Mr. Hao graduated from Hubei Economics School (##I1EASEEET ) majoring in business
administration on June 30, 2005. He obtained the certificate of secretary to the board of
directors awarded by Shenzhen Stock Exchange on July 30, 2012.
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Mr. ZHU Yulong (% T #), aged 46, is an executive Director and the head of our
strategic development committee. Mr. Zhu was appointed as our Director on June 8,
2016 and is primarily responsible for advising on and overseeing the implementation of the
strategic development plans of our Group. He was the director of Wuhan ZHY Holdco
from December 2006 to July 2015 and has been a director and general manager of our
wholly owned subsidiary, Hubei Zhou Hei Ya Enterprise Development Co., Ltd. (i1t /&
RIECEEREBRAF
ten years of experience in corporate management. Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Zhu
was the general manager of Wuhan Green Farm Co,, Ltd. (EVEA B B R E ML &

BREAER

2006, where he was primarily in charge of the daily management and operations of the

) (“ZHY Development”) since July 2015. He has approximately

&]), an agricultural products distributor, from October 2006 to December

company. From September 2005 to April 2006, he served as the director of business
department of Wuhan Shanlv Group (IU& B EREEBRGBER QD

engaged in agricultural products purchasing business, where he was primarily responsible

A]), a company

for the overall management of chain store business department. From December 2004 to
February 2005, he worked as the buyer of procurement department of Wushang Group
Hypermarket Co, Ltd. (FUEREEREHER A

primarily responsible for the procurement.

7)), a retail company, where he was

Mr. Zhu obtained a bachelor's degree in Chinese language from Nankai University (
K 2)in September 1992. He was employed as a visiting professor by School of

Management and Economics of Huazhong University of Technology, Wuchang Branch (ﬁ

FREARZRENDREBEEEEM) in April 2014,

Mr. WEN Yong (XX ), aged 34, was appointed as an executive Director on June 8,
2016 and is primarily responsible for the supply chain management of the Group. He
was the deputy general manager of Wuhan ZHY Holdco from March 2015 to July 2015
and is a deputy general manager of ZHY Development. Mr. Wen was the manager of
procurement and supply department and the manager of supply chain center of Wuhan
ZHY Holdco from June 2006 to April 2011 and from April 201 | to August 2011,
respectively, where he was primarily responsible for the overall operation of the respective
departments. Mr. Wen was also the general manager of Shenzhen Zhou Hei Ya Foods

Co, Ltd. CRYITTARBRBERAR]) from August 201 | to March 2015.
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Mr. HU Jiaqing (88 £ ), aged 45, was appointed as an executive Director on June
8, 2016 and is primarily responsible for production management, quality control and
research and development of our Group. He was the deputy general manager of Wuhan
ZHY Holdco from January 2007 to July 2015 and is a deputy general manager of ZHY
Development. Prior to joining our Group, he was the manager of Wuhan Xinguangdian
Property Management Co,, Ltd. (RZZBEEMEEEEFRAF]) from March 2003 to
October 2006, a real estate company, where he was primarily responsible for the overall

management of the company.

Mr. Hu graduated from Wuhan University (E.2X2) majoring in economic and trade
law in June 2000.

Non-executive Director

Mr. PAN Pan (7B #), aged 37, was appointed as a non-executive Director on June 8,
2016. He has been the non-executive director of Wuhan ZHY Holdco since March 25,
2014 as a director representative of Shenzhen Tiantu Investment Management Co., Ltd.
(R REHREEEBR AR, a shareholder of Wuhan ZHY Holdco, and Tiantu
Investments Limited, a shareholder of the Company. He is primarily responsible for giving
strategic advice and making recommendation on the operation of the Group. He was
the managing director of Tiantu Capital Management Center LLP (FIIIK[E & A& 12
il (BIRER)) from February 2014 to January 2016 and has been the partner since
February 2016. Mr. Pan also worked at Guosen Hongchuang Venture Investment Co,, Ltd.

(BELBRAIRREBRA

&]), an investment company.

Mr. Pan obtained a bachelor's degree in currency banking from Hunan University (417
A2 in July 2003 and a master's degree in finance from Hunan University in December
2004.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. WU Chi Keung (87
Director on October 24, 2016 and is the chairman of the audit committee. Mr. Wu has

), aged 60, was appointed as an independent non-executive

more than 30 years of experience in financial audit and specializes in providing auditing
and assurance services, financial due diligence reviews, support services for merger and
acquisitions, corporate restructuring and fund raising engagements. Mr. Wu was a partner
of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu until he retired in December 2008. Mr. Wu is currently
a director of a family-owned private company, Born Best Company Limited, engaging in
trading and investment business. He is also an independent non-executive director of
China Medical System Holdings Limited (stock code: 867), Jinchuan Group Intemational
Resources Co. Ltd. (stock code: 2362), Zhong Fa Zhan Holdings Limited (stock code:
475), Huabao Intemational Holdings Limited (stock code: 336), YuanShengTai Dairy Farm
Limited (stock code: 1431), Huajin International Holding Limited (stock code: 2738) and
COFCO Meat Holdings Limited (stock code: 1610), all of which are companies listed
on the Stock Exchange. Mr. Wu was also an independent non-executive director of the
following companies listed on the Stock Exchange: JF Household Fumishings Limited (stock
code: 776) from August 16, 201 | to October 5, 2012, GreaterChina Professional Services
Limited (stock code: 8193) from May 18, 2011 to July 2, 2014, China Wah Yan Healthcare
Limited (stock code: 648) (formerly known as China Renji Medical Group Limited) from
January 3, 2012 to July 15, 2014 and Link Holdings Limited (stock code: 8237) from June
20, 2014 to October 3, 2014.

Mr. Wu graduated from Hong Kong Polytechnic (now known as Hong Kong Polytechnic
University) on November 20, 1980 with a high diploma in accountancy. Mr. Wu has been
an associate of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants since March 20, 1984
and a fellow of Association of Chartered Certified Accountants in the United Kingdom
since September |5, 1988.
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Mr. Chan Kam Ching, Paul (B8 8 #2), aged 62, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on October 24, 2016. He is the proprietor of Paul K. C. Chan
& Partners, Solicitors, and is now practicing laws in Hong Kong. Mr. Chan was an
independent non-executive director of PetroAsian Energy Holdings Limited (stock code:
850), a company listed on the Stock Exchange, from October 21, 2002 to September | 1,
2015.

He obtained his Juris Doctor Degree from University of Toronto in June 1979. He was
admitted to practice as a barrister and solicitor in Ontario, Canada in April 1981, and
as a solicitor in Hong Kong in January 1984 and in England and Wales in July 1988, and
as a barrister and solicitor of the Australian Capital Territory in October 1991, and an
advocate and solicitor of Singapore in February 1995. He is currently a China Appointed
Attesting Officer, a Fellow of the Chartered Institute of Arbitrators, a Member of Hong
Kong Society of Notaries, HKIAC Accredited Mediator, a Civil Celebrant of Marriages and
Certified Tax Adviser.
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Mr. LU Weidong (& # 3 ), aged 54, was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director on October 24, 2016. He has been the managing director of Shenzhen Junfu
Investment Co, Ltd. (R I T ¥ E & E AR A 7)) (“Shenzhen Junfu”), an investment
company, since January 2015. Prior to joining Shenzhen Junfu, Mr. Lu worked at Shenzhen
YImEREERBERA

company, as the deputy general manager in charge of financial management from

Longri Gardening Landscape Co., Ltd. (7% a]), a gardening
September 201 | to December 2014. From January 2010 to August 201 I, he was the

AR EB
FIT) (formerly known as Jingdu Tianhua Accountant Firm (5 &F X 2 @ 3Rl = 7% ).
From January 2008 to January 2010, he worked at Shanghai Junfu Panchenzhangjiahua
EBHEERREZESFAERA) and successively held positions

as Junfu PRC partner, managing partner of Shenzhen Branch and secretary-general of the

non-auditing business partner of Grant Thomton Accounting Firm (EX[F] &

Accounting Firm (

partners’ meeting. Mr. Lu worked as the managing partner from March 1997 to January
2008 and the legal representative from May 1994 to March 1997 of Shenzhen Licheng
Accounting Firm (557%ﬂ\|ﬁj]§}32@§+ BD =I5 FT) (formerly known as Shenzhen Licheng
& 5T BN E K FT)). From June 1991 to March 1994, he
served as the assistant to the head of Shenzhen Guangming Accounting Firm (%
TR BFE 5T ADE7EET). From December 1987 to July 1991, he successively held
the positions as auditor assistant, assistant to the manager and manager of Shekou
Zhonghua Accounting Firm (& A 2 2 & 51 &0 % % AfT). From September 1985 to
December 1987, he held positions as accounting assistant and accounting manager of
China Electronic System Project Co,, Ltd. (FEIE F R LIZER

construction company.

Accounting Firm (& Il 1 32

/A7), an electronic

Mr. Lu obtained a bachelor's degree in economics from Hangzhou Dianzi University (#7
JNEFEHEKRE) (formerly known as Hangzhou Institute of Electronic Engineering (%1

MMEFITEZSE)) in July 1985. He is a Chinese Certified Public Accountant (FH B 3 i
E5THN) certified by The Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants (R BIF &
AT ) in October 1990.
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Senior Management

Ms. TONG Yingxiang (B F), aged 40, is the chief financial officer of our Group. She
was appointed to the current position on April |1, 2016 and is primarily responsible for
overseeing the overall financial management of our Group. Ms. Tong joined our Group
in February 2012 and was the chief financial officer of Wuhan ZHY Holdco from May
2014 to July 2015. From February 2012 to April 2014, Ms. Tong held the position as the
assistant to the chairman of the board of directors of Wuhan ZHY Holdco, where she
was primarily responsible for assisting the chairman with the financial management of the
Group. She has been the financial controller of ZHY Development since July 2015. Prior
to joining our Group, she was the financial manager of Wuhan Huarun Gas Co,, Ltd.
(BVEZERMARBRE 2R from December 2009 to October 201 |, an infrastructure
supplier, where she was primarily responsible for financial management. Ms. Tong worked
as an audit manager of Zhonggin Wanxin Accounting Firm (FE)E{Z &5 TR ESAMA
BB A RLHIE D A F]) from December 2006 to October 2009.

Ms. Tong passed the self-study examination of higher education in accounting from
Zhongnan University of Economics and Law (R E B & BUEARZ ) in June 2003. She also
passed the unified national exam of certified public accountants in December 2006. She
has been a non-practising member of Hubei Institute of Certified Public Accountants since
January 10,2011,

Ms. LI Ying (¥ #), aged 39, is the chief human resources officer and assistant to the
chairman of the Board. Ms. Li was appointed to the current position on April | 1, 2016 and
is primarily responsible for managing human resources matters and training programs of
our Group. She held various positions at Wuhan ZHY Holdco from September 2008 to
July 2015 in relation to human resources management, and was the chief human resources
officer of Wuhan ZHY Holdco from May 2014 to July 2015. She has been the chief
human resources officer of ZHY Development since July 2015. Prior to joining our Group,
she worked as human resources manager of Shanlv Agricultural Products Group Joint
Stock Company (L4 REREERH AR AT

2007, where she was primarily responsible for managing human resources of Shanlv.

) (“Shanlv") from June 2005 to January
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Ms. Li graduated from the Department of International Trade and Commence, University
of Intemational Business and Economics (¥ M /& E 5 K 2) in Beijing in July 2005.
She was awarded the PRC bar by the Ministry of Justice of the PRC in Hubei Province in
August 2010 and the Human Resources Administrator (Class 1) (A 77 & JRED (= 4R))
by Occupational Skill Testing Authority of the Ministry of Human Resources and Social
Security of the PRC in March 2005.

Mr. BAI Dongsheng (H 3R ¥t ), aged 38, is the head of the market development center
of ZHY Development. Mr. Bai was appointed to the current position on April I'l, 2016
and is primarily responsible for managing market development related affairs. From
November 2012 to July 2015, he worked as a deputy general manager in Wuhan ZHY
Holdco, where he was responsible for the development of retail stores and overseeing
the construction of the retail stores. Prior to joining our Group, he served as a general
manager in Wuhan Shiji Jiansheng Foods Co,, Ltd. (EVE M &2 AR mBR Q7)) a
casual braised food company, from October 2007 to November 2012, where he was

responsible for the overall operation of the company.

Mr. Bai obtained a certificate in ideological and political education from Hubei University
of Nationalities (3L RHEZF) in June 2001, and an EMBA from Wuhan University in
June 2015.
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PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES
The Company is an investment holding company. The principal activity of the Group is to

produce, market and retail casual braised food.

BUSINESS REVIEW

General

A review of the business of the Group during the year and a discussion on the Group's
future business development are set out in the Chairman'’s Statement, Business Review
and Outlook as well as the Management Discussion and Analysis on pages 7 to | |, pages
13 to 25 and pages 27 to 40, respectively, of this annual report. An analysis of the Group's
performance during the year using financial key performance indicators is set out in the
Management Discussion and Analysis on pages 27 to 40 of this annual report. The Group
has no significant events after the end of the financial year ended December 31, 2016 and

up to the date of this annual report.

Principal risks and uncertainties the Group faces include (i) uncertainty as to the opening
and profitable operation of new retail stores; (i) uncertainty as to the expansion into new
geographical markets; (iii) uncertainty as to the performance of the Group's current retail
stores; (iv) risks related to site selection for new restaurants; (v) risks related to quality
control and food safety; and (vi) risks related to increasing food price, labor costs and

commercial real estate rent.

The financial risks of the Group include foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.
These financial risks, and the related risk management policies and practices used by
the Group are discussed in note 35 headed “Financial Risk Management Objectives and

Policies” to the consolidated financial statements of this annual report.
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Environmental policies and performance

It is the Group's corporate and social responsibility in promoting a sustainable and
environmental friendly environment, the Group strives to minimize its environmental
impact in the production process. The Group has undertaken a series of effective
wastewater and solid waste disposal and processing measures such as (i) installing proper
wastewater treatment devices as required by PRC laws and regulations to process
wastewater at the food processing facilities; (i) daily collection of solid wastes for which
the Group contracted qualified waste management companies to dispose of; (iii) installing
an internal circulation anaerobic reactor at the food processing facilities to further reduce
the effluent concentration; and (iv) timely payment of wastewater processing fees to the

relevant authorities.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

The Group continues to update the requirement of the relevant laws and regulations in
the PRC applicable to it to ensure compliance. The Group had complied with all relevant
PRC laws and regulations in all material respects and have obtained all material licenses,

approvals and permits from relevant regulatory authorities.

Relationship with Employees
The Group offers a comprehensive range of staff facilities and fringe benefits to attract,
retain and motivate employees. Key personnel have been part of the management team

since the inception of business.

For further details regarding employees and staff costs and the emolument policy of
the Group, please refer to the sections headed “Management Discussion and Analysis
— Employee and Labor Cost” and “Directors’ Report — Employees and Remuneration

Policies”.
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Relationship with Suppliers

The Group is dedicated to develop good relationship with suppliers as long-term business
partners to ensure stability of the Group's businesses. We reinforce business partnerships

with suppliers by ongoing communication in a proactive and effective manner.

For further details regarding our major customers, please refer to the section headed

“Directors’ Report — Major Customers and Suppliers”.

Relationship with Customers

As a retail business operator, the Group has advocated and cultivated a customer-focused
corporate culture to understand customer preferences and meet their evolving demands
and expectations. The Group has established its presence on popular Internet social media
platforms and engage in active interaction with our customers. The Group also reinforces
customer loyalty by launching tailored marketing initiatives and offering various innovative

in-store events.

For further details regarding our major customers, please refer to the sections headed

“Directors’ Report — Major Customers and Suppliers”.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The results of the Group for the year ended December 31, 2016 and the state of the
Company's and the Group's financial affairs as at that date are set out in the financial

statements on pages 81 to 88.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend of RMB0.09 per share (adopting
an exchange rate of HK$1=RMB0.8899, equivalent to HK$0.10 per share and payable
in Hong Kong dollars), amounting to approximately a total of RMB214.7 million for the
year ended December 31, 2016 (the 2016 Final Dividend"), representing approximately
30% of our net profit for the year ended December 31, 2016. The 2016 Final Dividend is
subject to the approval of the Company's shareholders at the forthcoming annual general
meeting (the "AGM") to be held on May 31, 2017.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For the purpose of determination of eligibility to attend and vote at the AGM, the
register of members of the Company will be closed from Wednesday, May 24, 2017
to Wednesday, May 31, 2017 (both days inclusive), during which period no transfer of
shares of the Company will be registered. In order to be entitled to attend and vote at
the forthcoming AGM to be held on Wednesday, May 31, 2017, all transfer of shares
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company's Hong
Kong share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops
1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen's Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong,
no later than 4:30 p.m. (Hong Kong time) on Tuesday, May 23, 2017.

Subject to the approval of the declaration of the 2016 Final Dividend at the forthcoming
AGM, the register of members of the Company will also be closed from Tuesday, June
6, 2017 to Thursday, June 8, 2017 (both days inclusive), during which period no transfer
of shares of the Company will be registered. In order to qualify for the proposed 2016
Final Dividend, all transfer of shares accompanied by the relevant share certificates must
be lodged with the Company's Hong Kong share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong
Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s
Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong, no later than 4:30 p.m. (Hong Kong time) on Monday,
June 5, 2017. The 2016 Final Dividend, if approved by the Company's shareholders at the
forthcoming AGM, will be paid on or about June 20, 2017 to those shareholders whose

name appear on the register of member of the Company on Thursday, June 8, 2017.
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RESERVES
Changes to the reserves of the Group during the year ended December 31, 2016 are set

out in the consolidated statements of changes in equity.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Changes to the property, plant and equipment of the Group and the Company during the

year are set out in Note 12 to the financial statements.

SUBSIDIARIES
Particulars of the Company's subsidiaries as at December 31, 2016 are set out in Note |

to the consolidated financial statements.

DONATIONS
Donations made by the Group during the year ended December 31, 2016 amounted to
RMB390,000.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY
The Company was listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange on November |1,
2016. A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the last

four financial years is set out on pages |71 to 172 of this annual report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S LISTED
SECURITIES

Save for the Company's initial public offering as described in the Company's prospectus
dated November |, 2016, the Company and its subsidiaries did not purchase, sell or
redeem any of the listed securities of the Company during the year ended December 31,

2016.
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DIRECTORS B=x

The Directors of the Company during the year were: REEARAESR
Directors !

Name Position

] i Aa

Mr. ZHOU Fuyu

Chairman of the Board, Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer
(ceased to act as Chief Executive Officer on March 22, 2017)

BAEmEE EEEIR  WOTEZRITRER
(Rt F=A -+ BT BEETRER)

Mr. HAO Lixiao Executive Director (appointed to be the Chief Executive Officer on March 22, 2017)
MBS HWITEF(RE—F=A T REZERTTHRER)
Mr. ZHU Yulong Executive Director
ATEEE WITEZ
Mr. WEN Yong Executive Director

BR4 WITEZ
Mr. HU Jiaging Executive Director
HEERE WITEZ
Mr. PAN Pan Non-executive Director
BERE FWTES
Mr. WU Chi Keung Independent Non-executive Director
HEBEE BUFNTES
Mr. CHAN Kam Ching, Paul Independent Non-executive Director
BREBIEELE BUFNTES
Mr. LU Weidong Independent Non-executive Director
EFRELE BUFNTES

In accordance with the articles of association of the Company, Mr. ZHOU Fuyu, Mr. ZHU

REARANAHZEAY  BE

Yulong and Mr. HAO Lixiao shall retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual general

meeting of the Company and they being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

None of Mr. ZHOU Fuyu, Mr. ZHU Yulong and Mr. HAO Lixiao has an unexpired service
contract which is not determinable by the Company or any of its subsidiaries within one

year without payment of compensation, other than under normal statutory obligations.

The biographical details of the Directors and senior management of the Company are set

out in “Biographies of the Directors and Senior Management” in this report.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS AND
CONTRACTS

Save as the related party transactions as disclosed in note 32 to the consolidated financial
statements and the connected transactions as disclosed in the section headed “Connected
Transactions” in this Directors’ Report, no transactions, arrangements or contracts of
significance to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a
Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the

year or at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at December 31, 2016, the interests and short positions of the Directors or the chief
executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company
and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")) as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO or as notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of

Listed Issuers (“Model Code") were as follows:

Name of Group member/

™
EEEHRE m

EEERS  THREHNTHER

B AMBREN N AREOERTXS
RAEEEREWERS | —HHHEHH
BRHIN - ADFALRLAHER TR
SARENEMRE - LRI EFEER
% RYSANTEEEEARANEREE
K -

B

EERESTHRAERR®G - HHE
RO REEEZEZRKXE
R-ZE—RE+-_A=+—8 BERARD
AEmITBABEAR RS HBHEZE(E
EREALBHEROI((RERBERS]E
XVER) Bkt - BRI REEEFHERR
BEFRBERIIEISNERTEARBAR
EVRELMATERL BB LMETAE
EEITEF X HNEETR([RESFA A
MEANB RO ERIABNT

Approximate

Name of Director/ associated corporation  Capacity/ Number of percentage of
Chief Executive rEERE Nature of interest underlying Shares(" shareholding
EE BRTBRABHE M EE A 5/ EREME HEROGEE O BSORERIL
Mr. ZHOU Fuyu The Company Interest of spouse® 1,472,225,500® 61.78%
AEHEE KNS IR el

Healthy Origin Holdings

Limited Interest of spouse® 100%

BRERAR LR ALrEHEa O
Notes: BisE

n Al interests stated are long positions.

) These 472,225,500 Shares represent 1,190,818,000 Shares held by Healthy Origin
Holdings Limited, 32,480,300 Shares held by ZHY Holdings Il Company Limited and
248,927,200 Shares held by ZHY Holdings IV Company Limited.

() FPAITHAMEERER -

() % 1472,2255000% B% {3 R0 2R
R B R A FF A 1,190,818,000 8%
B 7 ZHY Holdings Il Company
Limited * ¥ 732480300/ & 17 &
ZHY Holdings IV Company Limited 578
248,927,200 BRR& 15
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The entire issued share capital of Healthy Origin Holdings Limited and ZHY Holdings I
Company Limited are held by Ms. Tang Jianfang, therefore Ms. Tang Jianfang is deemed
to be interested in 1,190,818,000 Shares and 32,480,300 Shares held by Healthy Origin
Holdings Limited and ZHY Holdings Il Company Limited, respectively. Since Ms. Tang
Jianfang owns 60.658% of ZHY Holdings IV Company Limited, Ms. Tang Jianfang is also
deemed to be interested in 248,927,200 Shares held by ZHY Holdings IV Company
Limited.

3) Mr. Zhou is the spouse of Ms. Tang Jianfang and is deemed to be interested in the Shares
which are interested by Ms. Tang Jianfang under the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at December 31, 2016, none of the Directors nor the
chief executive of the Company had any interests or short positions in any of the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO
or as notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code

ZHOU HEI YA INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2016

fi# R % IR A IR 2 A R ZHY Holdings
IERRBIZEMEETRAHE
%“ﬁi%ﬁ'W%g%ﬁiWﬁ
2RI IR E R B R AR RZHY
Holdings Il Company Limited$ A& 2
1,190,818,000 A% A% 7 K 32,480,300 A% fi%
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES
As at December 31, 2016, the following persons (other than the Directors or the chief

executive of the Company) have interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying

Shares as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under section 336

of the SFO:

™

EEEHRE m

TERRRHEMALTRRSD KA

RO HERE KR

RZE—RF+ZA=+—H UTAT
(BEFAADAEREITHRAERINRAAT
RinSARERG P HEAAREE R LRER
I 336 RRELBER AR EFEMNRR S

filt 6 (R BRIX R

Number of Shares

Approximate

percentage of

Name of shareholder Nature of interest or securities held®" interest
BRER BEME FEROBEFBE O BOREESL
Ms. TANG Jianfang® Interest in a controlled corporation 1,472,225,500 (L) 61.78%
EEFZLO REGEE

Healthy Origin Holdings Limited Beneficial owner [,190,818,000 (L) 49.97%
RERAR AT EafEA

ZHY Holdings IV Company Limited Beneficial owner 248,927,200 (L) 10.45%
ZHY Holdings IV Company Limited EnEBA

JESE (Ms. ZHOU Ping)® Interest in a controlled corporation 136,440,000 (L) 5.73%
bt REGEE

ZHY Holdings Il Company Limited Beneficial owner 136,440,000 (L) 5.73%
ZHY Holdings IIl Company Limited EnEBA

Mr. WANG Yonghua' Interest in a controlled corporation 182,886,450 (L) 7.67%
FAERLE® REGEE

AImRBREEERHARAE Interest in a controlled corporation 182,886,450 (L) 7.67%

(Shenzhen Tiantu Investment
Management Co,, Ltd.)®

AT AEREERRNDERLDFT G RESEE#ES

Tiantu Advisory Company Limited® Interest in a controlled corporation 182,886,450 (L) 7.67%
AEHBERDEO REHEE S

Tiantu Investments Limited® Beneficial owner 182,886,450 (L) 7.67%

Tiantu Investments Limited®

EDBEAA
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Notes:

EEEHRE

The letter “L" denotes the person'’s long position in such Shares.

These 1,472,225,500 Shares represent ,190,818,000 Shares held by Healthy Origin Holdings
Limited, 32,480,300 Shares held by ZHY Holdings II Company Limited and 248,927,200 Shares
held by ZHY Holdings IV Company Limited.

The entire issued share capital of Healthy Origin Holdings Limited and ZHY Holdings Il Company
Limited are held by Ms. Tang Jianfang, therefore Ms. Tang Jianfang is deemed to be interested in
1,190,818,000 Shares and 32,480,300 Shares held by Healthy Origin Holdings Limited and ZHY
Holdings Il Company Limited, respectively. Since Ms. Tang Jianfang owns 60.658% of ZHY Holdings
IV Company Limited, Ms. Tang Jianfang is also deemed to be interested in 248,927,200 Shares held
by ZHY Holdings IV Company Limited.

Since Ms. Zhou Ping owns 72.22% of ZHY Holdings lll Company Limited, Ms. Zhou Ping is deemed
to be interested in 136,440,000 Shares held by ZHY Holdings IV Company Limited.

Tiantu Investments Limited, a company incorporated in the BVI, holds 182,886,450 Shares,
representing 7.67% of the total issued share capital of the Company. Tiantu Advisory Company
Limited holds 91.70% of Tiantu Investments Limited and is wholly owned by Shenzhen Tiantu
Investment Management Co., Ltd. (“Shenzhen Tiantu"), a company listed on the National Equities
Exchange and Quotations (NEEQ: 833979) in the PRC. Mr. Wang Yonghua holds 59.80%
shareholding interest in Shenzhen Tiantu. Therefore, under Part XV of the SFO, each of Tiantu
Investments Limited, Tiantu Advisory Company Limited, Shenzhen Tiantu and Mr. Wang Yonghua
is deemed to be interested in 182,886,450 Shares held by Tiantu Investments Limited, representing

7.67% of the total issued share capital of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, as at December 31, 2016, our Directors of chief executive are

not aware of any other person, not being a Director or chief executive of our Company,

who has an interest or short position in the Shares or the underlying Shares of the

Company as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under section

336 of the SFO.

ZHOU HEI YA INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2016
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS
No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or existed during the

year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In 2016, purchases from the Group's largest duck supplier in terms of dollar amount
accounted for approximately |1.4% of total purchase cost and the aggregate purchases
from its top five duck suppliers in terms of dollar amount in aggregate accounted for

approximately 34.2% of total purchase cost.

None of our Directors, any of their close associates or any shareholders that, to the
knowledge of our Directors, own more than 5% of the issued share capital of our
Company had any interest in any of our five largest suppliers during the year ended
December 31, 2016.

In 2016, due to the nature of the Group's business, revenue derived from its top five

customers accounted for less than 30% of total revenue.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”) has reviewed the
accounting principles and policies adopted by the Group and discussed the Group's risk
management, internal controls and financial reporting matters with the management.
The Audit Committee has reviewed the audited consolidated financial statements of the

Group for the year ended 31 December 2016.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS
There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the articles of association of the
Company, although there are no restrictions against such rights under the laws in the

Cayman Islands.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES
As at December 31, 2016, the Group employed a total of 3,998 full-time employees
(December 31, 2015: 3,563). The increase in the number of employees was mainly due to

the increase in the scale of the Group's business.
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We currently recruit our employees primarily through on-campus recurring programs
and posting advertisements on recruitment websites. We do not use any employment
agencies. Our success, to a considerable extent, depends upon our ability to attract,
motivate and retain a sufficient number of qualified employees, including research and
development personal, sales personal and management. Therefore, we place strong
emphasis on providing trainings to our employees in order to enhance their professional
skills, understanding of our industry and work place safety standards. We design and offer

different training programs for employees at various positions.

We enter into labor contracts with all of our employees. We have developed a
performance evaluation system to assess the performance of our employees annually,
which forms the basis for determining the salary levels, bonuses and promotions an
employee may receive. Our sales and marketing personnel may also receive bonuses
based on the sales targets they accomplish, by taking into account the overall sales
performance of the stores in the same regional market in the relevant period. Under the

applicable PRC laws and regulations, we are subject to social insurance contribution plans.

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS
Particulars of the employee retirement benefits of the Group are set out in Note 6 to the

financial statements.

PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this report and based on the information that is publicly available to
the Company and to the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained
the minimum public float of 25% as required under the Rules Governing the Listing of

Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules").

AUDITOR
The financial statements have been audited by Ernst & Young who shall retire at
the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-

appointment.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES
As at December 31, 2016, the reserves of the Company available for distribution to

shareholders of the Company amounted to approximately RMB2,575.8 million.

BANK AND OTHER LOANS
The Group did not have any short-term or long-term bank borrowings or other loans as

at December 31, 2016.

RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE THE COMPANY’S SECURITIES AND EQUITY-
LINKED AGREEMENTS

At no time during the year was the Company, or any of its holding companies or
subsidiaries, or any of its fellow subsidiaries, a party to any arrangement to enable the
Directors or chief executive of the Company or their respective associates (as defined
under the Listing Rules) to have any right to subscribe for securities of the Company or
any of its associated corporations as defined in the SFO or to acquire benefits by means
of acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate,

nor did the Company enter into any equity-linked agreement.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

As at the date of this annual report, none of the Directors and directors of the Company's
subsidiaries, or their respective associates had interests in businesses, which compete or
are likely to compete either directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the Company and

its subsidiaries as required to be disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules.

CHANGES IN DIRECTOR'’S BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS UNDER RULE
[3.51B(1) OF THE LISTING RULES

Mr. Zhou Fuyu, the Chairman and an executive Director, has stepped downed from
the position of Chief Executive Officer with effect from March 22, 2017 and Mr. Hao
Lixiao, an executive Director, was appointed as the Chief Executive Officer with effect
from March 22, 2017. Save as disclosed above, there is no other change in Directors’
biographical details which is required to be disclosed pursuant to rule 13.51B(l) of the

Listing Rules since the date of the Prospectus.
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NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING BY CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS

In order to restrict competition activities with the Company, our controlling shareholders,
namely Mr. Zhou Fuyu, Ms. Tang Jianfang, Healthy Origin Holdings Limited, ZHY
Holdings I Company Limited and ZHY Holdings IV Company Limited (the “Controlling
Shareholders™), entered into a deed of non-competition in favor of the Company on
October 24, 2016 (the “Deed”). Pursuant to the Deed, the Controlling Shareholders have
undertaken, among others, not to compete with the business of the Group, and details of
the Deed are set out in the sub-section headed “Non-competition Undertaking” in the
section headed “Relationship with our Controlling Shareholders” of the prospectus of the

Company dated November I, 2016.

Each of the Controlling Shareholders has made a written confirmation to the Board in
respect of their compliance with the undertakings in the Deed (the “Undertakings”) since
the entering of the Deed on October 24, 2016 to December 31, 2016 (the “Relevant
Period").

Upon receiving the confirmations from the Controlling Shareholders, the independent
non-executive Directors had reviewed the same as part of the annual review process.
In determining whether the Controlling Shareholder had fully complied with the
Undertakings in the Relevant Period for the annual assessment, the independent non-
executive Directors noted that: (a) the Controlling Shareholders declared that they had
fully complied with the Undertakings in the Relevant Period; (b) no new competing
business was reported by the Controlling Shareholders during the Relevant Period; and (c)
there was no particular situation rendering the full compliance of the Undertakings being
questionable. In view of the above, the independent non-executive Directors confirmed
that, as far as they can ascertain, all of the Undertakings were complied with by the

Controlling Shareholders in the Relevant Period.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Subject to applicable laws, the Directors of the Company shall be indemnified and secured
harmless out of the assets and profits of the Company from and against all actions, costs,
charges, losses, damages and expenses which they or any of them may incur or sustain by
or by reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of their
duty, or supposed duty, in their respective offices, pursuant to the articles of association
of the Company. Such provisions were in force throughout the year ended December
31,2016 and are currently in force. The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance
cover for Directors' liabilities in respect of legal actions that may be brought against the

Directors.

ISSUE OF SHARES AND USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE GLOBAL
OFFERING

On November |1, 2016, the Company's Shares were listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange. A total of 488,140,500 ordinary shares with nominal value of
US$0.000001 each of the Company (the “Shares”) were issued at HK$5.88 per Share for
a total of approximately HK$2,870.3 million under the global offering of the Company.
The net proceeds raised by the Company from the abovementioned global offering, after
deducting the underwriting commission and related expenses, amounted to approximately
HK$2,792.3 million.

During the year ended December 31, 2016, the Group had utilized approximately
RMB29.5 million of the proceed from the IPO, comprising RMB 5.6 million in upgrading its
exiting processing facilities, logistics and storage centers in Wuhan and Shanghai; RMBI 3.1
million in the acquisition of land use rights for the new processing facility in southwestermn
China; RMBO0.4 million in upgrading its ERP system and integrating online and offline
membership programs; and RMB0.4 million in the development of the processing facility in
Dongguan. As of December 31, 2016, net proceeds not utilized had been deposited into
short-term deposits and money market instruments, including structured deposits. The
unutilized portion of the net proceeds from the global offering is intended to be applied in
the manner as disclosed in the section headed “Future Plans and Use of Proceeds” in the

prospectus of the Company dated November I, 2016.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
Mr. Zhou Fuyu, being our executive Director and controlling shareholder, and Ms. Tang
Jianfang, being our controlling shareholder, are connected persons of the Company under

the Listing Rules.

The Company entered into a master property lease agreement (for itself and on behalf
of its subsidiaries) with Mr. Zhou Fuyu and Ms. Tang Jianfang on October 24, 2016 to
govern the leases of several commercial premises owned by Mr. Zhou Fuyu and Ms. Tang
Jianfang. These premises are located in Wuhan, Hubei Province, PRC with an aggregate
of approximately 400 square meters and are used as retail stores and offices. The term of
the master property lease agreement is three years commencing on November | I, 2016.
The maximum annual rental under the master property lease agreement is RMB2.06
million, RMB2.16 million and RMB2.27 million for the year ended December 31, 2016 and
year ending December 31, 2017 and 2018, respectively, which shall constitute de minimis
continuing connected transactions under [4A.76(1) of the Listing Rules. The transactions
contemplated under the master property lease agreement also constitute related party
transactions of the Company under HKFRS, details of which are set out in Note 32 to
the financial statements. Save as disclosed above, the other related party transactions as
disclosed in Note 32 to the financial statements do not constitute connected transactions

required to be disclosed under the Listing Rules.

Al references above to other sections, reports or notes in this annual report form part of

this report.

By order of the Board

ZHOU Fuyu

Chairman

Hong Kong, March 22,2017
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The Company is committed to achieving high standards of corporate governance by
focusing on principles of integrity, accountability, transparency, independence, responsibility
and faimess. The Company has developed and implemented sound governance policies
and measures, and the Board is responsible for performing such corporate governance
duties. The Board will continue to review and monitor the corporate governance of the
Company with reference to the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Govemance
Report (the “Code") set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules so as to maintain a high

standard of corporate goverance of the Company.

Throughout the period commencing from the Listing Date to December 31, 2016, the
Company has complied with the applicable code provisions of the Code as set out in

Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules, except for code provision A2.1.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is charged with promoting the success of the Company by directing and
supervising its affairs. The Board has general powers for the management and conduct
of the Company's business. The day-to-day operations and management are delegated
by the Board to the management of the Company, who will implement the strategy and

direction as determined by the Board.

According to code provision A.2.1, the roles of chairman and chief executive officer
should be separate and should not be performed by the same individual. The Company
has appointed Mr. Zhou Fuyu as both the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer
of the Company. The Board believes that vesting the roles of the Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer in the same individual would enable the Company to achieve higher
responsiveness, efficiency and effectiveness when formulating business strategies and
executing business plans. The Board believes that the balance of power and authority is
sufficiently maintained by the operation of the senior management and the Board, which
comprises experienced and high-calibre individuals. The Board currently comprises five
executive Directors (including Mr. Zhou Fuyu), one non-executive Director and three
independent non-executive Directors and therefore has a fairly strong independence

element in its composition.

However, in order to optimize the role of the Board members and to promote our
business development, and in order to better comply with the principles and the code
provisions set out in the Code, Mr. Zhou Fuyu has stepped down from the position of
Chief Executive Officer with effect from March 22, 2017. Mr. Hao Lixiao, an executive
Director, has been appointed as the Chief Executive Officer with effect from March 22,
2017.
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The Board will nevertheless review the structure and composition of the Board from
time to time in light of prevailing circumstances, in order to maintain a high standard of

corporate governance practices of the Company.

The Board has a balance of skills and experience appropriate for the requirements of
the business of the Company. The Company has also adopted a board diversity policy
to set out the approach adopted by the Board regarding diversity of Board members. In
designing the Board's composition, Board diversity has been considered from a number of
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
industry experience, technical and professional skills and/or qualifications, knowledge,
length of services and time to be devoted as a director of the Company. The Company
will also take into account factors relating to its own business model and specific needs
from time to time. The ultimate decision will be based on merit and contribution that the

selected candidates will bring to the Board.

No Board member has the relationship with the other Board members and the chief
executive officer of the Company. The biographies of the Directors are set out on pages

41 to 48 of this annual report.

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract with the Company
on October 24, 2016 and the Company has issued letters of appointment to each of
the non- executive Directors and independent non-executive Directors. The principal
particulars of these service contracts and letters of appointment are (a) for a term of
3 years commencing from October 24, 2016 and (b) are subject to termination in
accordance with their respective terms. The term of the service contracts and the letters
of appointment may be renewed in accordance with our articles of association of the

Company and the applicable Listing Rules.

The aggregate remuneration (including fees, salaries, contributions to pension schemes,
share-based compensation expenses, discretionary bonuses, housing and other allowances
and other benefits in kind) payable to the Directors for the year ended December 31,
2016 was approximately RMB5.4 million.
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The remuneration of the Directors is determined with reference to salaries paid by
comparable companies, time commitment and responsibilities of the Directors and
performance of the Group. Details of the remuneration of the Directors and senior
management for 2016 are set out in Note 7 to the consolidated financial statements.
In addition, pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the Code, the annual remuneration of
members of the senior management by band for the year ended December 31, 2016 is

set out below:

Remuneration to the senior management by bands

REESBNEREZETMH

Nil = HK$ 1,000,000
HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000

Throughout the period commencing from the Listing Date through to December 31,
2016, the Company has three independent non-executive Directors, which meets the
requirement of the Listing Rules that the number of independent non-executive directors

must represent at least one-third of the Board and should not be less than three.

The Company has received a written confirmation of independence from each of the
independent non-executive Directors pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, and

considers them to be independent.

Directors have access to the services of the company secretary to ensure that the Board
procedures are followed. The company secretary of the Company is Ms. LI Oi Lai. Ms.
LI Oi Lai is a manager of SW Corporate Services Group Limited, and is responsible for
provision of corporate secretarial and compliance services to listed company clients.
Her primary corporate contact person at the Company is Mr. Hao Lixiao, the executive
Director of the Company. In compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, Ms. LI Oi
Lai has undertaken no less than |5 hours of relevant professional training during the year

ended December 31, 2016.
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Each of the Directors attended various trainings in 2016, including the training on duties
and responsibilities of directors of a listed company in Hong Kong, in the process of the
listing of the Company on the Stock Exchange. The Company will arrange suitable training
for all Directors in order to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills as part of their

continuous professional development.

No Board meetings, nor general meetings, were held from the Listing Date to December
31,2016.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in the code provision D.3.1
of the Corporate Governance Code. The Board reviewed the Company's corporate
governance policies and practices, training and continuous professional development of
Directors and senior management, the Company's policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements, the compliance of the Model Code and written
employee guidelines, and the Company's compliance with the Corporate Governance

Code and disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Company has four principal Board committees, namely the Audit Committee, the
Nomination Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Strategic Development
Committee. Each of the Board committees operates under its terms of reference. The
terms of reference of the Board committees are available on the website of the Company

and that of the Stock Exchange.
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Audit Committee

The Company established an audit committee with written terms of reference in
compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules and the Corporate Governance Code
as set out in Appendix |4 to the Listing Rules. The audit committee consists of three
members, namely Mr. WU Chi Keung, Mr. CHAN Kam Ching, Paul and Mr. LU Weidong,
our independent non-executive Directors. Mr. WU Chi Keung has been appointed as
the chairman of the audit committee, and is our independent non-executive Director
processing the appropriate professional qualifications. The primary duties of the audit
committee are to assist the Board in providing an independent review and supervision
of the Group's financial and accounting policies, to review the financial controls, risk
management and internal control systems of the Company, to oversee the audit process,

and to perform other duties and responsibilities as delegated by the Board.

As the Company's Shares were only listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange from
November |1, 2016, no meeting was held by the Audit Committee from that date to
December 31, 2016.

Nomination Committee

The Company established a nomination committee with written terms of reference in
compliance with the Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the
Listing Rules. The nomination committee consists of two independent non-executive
Directors, being Mr. WU Chi Keung and Mr. LU Weidong, and one executive Director,
being Mr. ZHOU Fuyu, who is the chairman of the nomination committee. The primary
duties of the nomination committee are to make recommendations to our Board on the

appointment and removal of Directors of our Company.

As the Company's Shares were only listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange from
November |1, 2016, no meeting was held by the Nomination Committee from that date
to December 31, 2016.
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Remuneration Committee

The Company established a remuneration committee with written terms of reference in
compliance with Rule 3.25 of the Listing Rules and the Corporate Governance Code as set
out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The remuneration committee has three members,
being two independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. CHAN Kam Ching, Paul and
Mr. LU Weidong, and one executive Director, namely Mr. ZHU Yulong. Mr. CHAN Kam
Ching, Paul, our independent non-executive Director, has been appointed as the chairman
of the remuneration committee. The primary duties of the remuneration committee are
to establish and review the policy and structure of the remuneration for the Directors and

senior management and make recommendations on employee benefit arrangement.

The Remuneration Committee has adopted the model described in code provision B.1.2(c)

(i) of the Code in its terms of reference.

As the Company's Shares were only listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange from
November |1, 2016, no meeting was held by the Remuneration Committee from that

date to December 31, 2016.

Strategic Development Committee

The Company also established a strategic development committee and the Board has
adopted the terms of reference for the strategic development committee. The strategic
development committee has three members, namely Mr. ZHU Yulong, Mr. HU Jiaging
and Mr. HAO Lixiao, our executive Directors. Mr. ZHU Yulong has appointed as the
chairman of the strategic development committee. The primary duties of the strategic
development committee are to review and advise the mid to long term strategic
positioning, development plans and investment decisions of the Company and make
recommendations to the Board, to monitor and review the implementations of strategic
plans, to advise on major investment projects, merger and acquisitions, brand strategies or

any other material matters which will affect the Company's long term development.

As the Company's Shares were only listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange from
November | I, 2016, no meeting was held by the Strategic Development Committee

from that date to December 31, 2016.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix |0 to the Listing
Rules as its code of conduct regarding directors’ securities transactions. All Directors have
confirmed, following specific enquiry by the Company, that they have complied with the
Model Code throughout the period commencing from the Listing Date to December 31,
2016.

EXTERNAL AUDITOR
Erst & Young is appointed as the external auditor of the Company.

For the year ended December 31, 2016, the fees paid to Emst & Young for the audit of
the financial statements of the Group are RMB2,400,000 (excluding the expenses on the
audit and non-audit service provided by Emst & Young related to the Global Offering of
the Company).

Ernst & Young did not provide any non-audit services to the Group in the year.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation of the financial statements
which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and of the results and
cash flow during the reporting period. A statement from the auditor about its reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements is set out on pages 78 to 80 of this report. In
preparing the financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2016, the Directors
have selected suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently, made judgments
and estimates that are prudent, fair and reasonable and prepared the financial statements

on a going concern basis.
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INTERNAL CONTROLS AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board is responsible for maintaining sound and effective internal control and risk
management systems in order to safeguard the Group's assets and shareholders' interests
and reviewing the effectiveness of the Company's internal control and risk management
systems on an annual basis so as to ensure that internal control and risk management
systems in place are adequate. The Company also has an internal audit function which
primarily carries out the analysis and independent appraisal of the adequacy and
effectiveness of the issuer’s risk management and internal control systems, and reports

their findings to the Board on, at least, an annual basis.

The Group's internal control system includes a well-established organizational structure
with clearly defined lines of responsibility and authority. The day-to-day departmental
operations are entrusted to individual department which is accountable for its own
conduct and performance and is required to operate its own department’s business
within the scope of the delegated authority and to implement and strictly adhere to the
strategies and policies set by the Company from time to time. Each department is also
required to keep the Board informed of material developments of the department’s
business and implementation of the policies and strategies set by the Board on a regular

basis.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Board has reviewed the effectiveness of
the internal control and risk management systems of the Group to ensure that a sound
system is maintained and operated by the management in compliance with the agreed
procedures and standards. The review covered all material controls, including financial,
operational and compliance controls and risk management functions. In particular, the
Board considered the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programs and budget of the Company's accounting, interal audit and financial reporting
functions. The review was made by discussions with the management of the Company,
its external and internal auditors and the assessment conducted by the Audit Committee.
The Board believes that the existing internal control system is adequate and effective, in

particular, for financial reporting and Listing Rules compliance.
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INSIDE INFORMATION

With respect to procedures and internal controls for the handling and dissemination of
inside information, the Company takes seriously of its obligations under the new Part
XIVA of the Securities and Futures Ordinance and the Listing Rules. The has adopted a
Continuous Disclosure Compliance Policy which sets out guidelines and procedures to
the Directors and officers of the Group to ensure inside information of the Group is to be
disseminated to the public in equal and timely manner. Briefing session is held regularly for

officers to facilitate their understanding and compliance with the policy.

SHAREHOLDERS

The Company is incorporated in the Cayman Islands. The Board may whenever it thinks
fit call general meetings. Pursuant to the articles of association of the Company, general
meetings shall also be convened on the written requisition to the Board of the secretary
of the Company of any one or more members of the Company holding at the date of
deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company. Such meeting shall be
held within two (2) months after the deposit of such requisition. If within 21 days of such
deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may convene the general meeting in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be

reimbursed to them by the Company.

To safeguard shareholder interests and rights, separate resolutions are and will be
proposed at general meetings on each substantial issue, including the election of individual

Directors.
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The procedures for shareholder to propose a person for election as director is available
on the Company's website (www.zhouheiya.cn). Shareholders may lodge written proposal
to the company secretary of the Company at |18/F, Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s Road
East, Wanchai, Hong Kong, provided that the minimum length of the period, during
which such written notice is given, shall be at least seven days and that the lodgment of
such notice shall commence no earlier than the day after the dispatch of the notice of
the general meeting appointed for such election and end no later than seven days prior
to the date of such general meeting. In order to ensure that other shareholders would
have sufficient time to receive and consider the information of the person proposed for
election as a director, shareholders are urged to lodge their written notice of his intention
to propose a person for election as director as early as practicable in advance of the
relevant general meeting and, in any case, not less than |2 business days (as defined in
the Listing Rules, i.e. day(s) on which The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited is open
for business of dealing in securities) before the date scheduled for holding the relevant
general meeting, so that the Company can complete the verification procedure with the
Company's share registrar, and procure the publication of an announcement and/or the
dispatch of a supplementary circular to shareholders in compliance with the applicable
requirements under the Listing Rules. In the event that any such written notice is received
by the Company later than the 12th business day before the date of holding the relevant
general meeting, the Company will need to consider whether to adjourn the relevant
meeting so as to give shareholders a notice of at least 10 business days of the proposal in

accordance with the Listing Rules.

Enquiries about the Company may be put to the Board by contacting the Company or
directly by raising the questions at an annual general meeting or extraordinary general
meeting. The contact details of the Company are set out in the Company's website (www.
zhouheiya.cn). Shareholders can also direct their enquiries about their shareholdings to
the Company's Hong Kong share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited, whose address is Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen'’s
Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the period from the Listing Date to the date of this annual report, there has
not been any change in the Company’'s memorandum and articles of association. The
Company's memorandum and articles of association are available on the website of the

Company (www.zhouheiya.cn) and that of the Stock Exchange.
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ANNUAL REPORT 2016
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Ernst & Young RGBT TelE 3% : +852 2846 9888
22/F, CITIC Tower BBPRAREIR Faxf#& : +852 2868 4432
1 Tim Mei Avenue RERE221E ey.com
ﬁﬂ( Central, Hong Kong

Independent auditor’s report BIYRHMRE

To the shareholders of Zhou Hei Ya International Holdings Company Limited BEARBERERERAARR

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability) (RESHSFMA L EREA])

OPINION BR

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Zhou Hei Ya International EEEBERES BEEF 170 EFHARER
Holdings Company Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set BEEERAR(ENR D REKB ARG

out on pages 81 to 170, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial (EEE8 NG EUBRE  LERAMBER
position as at 31 December 2016, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and FKEER-_E-—RF+A=T—HNES
other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and FHRARERBEEZ B ILFENGERER

the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the REMZHKGE  GeaZPRREE
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies. HBemgk UREBEIZEHHEHER

ARVER & B SRR ML

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the BERR HelBRRERBEETES:
consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2016, and of its MAg((EEEMAE ) BMAIKEEN
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended BREERNBEEMBRELERDEEM
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the NEHRE SEEER-_ZT-RF+=A
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA™) and have been properly =+—H E’] HAaRBRARBEZRBILF
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies B ESENGRMBRELEGERENR
Ordinance. 2 WE kS %5791% GBI ) B 52 AR TE %
BASIS FOR OPINION BERERM
We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs™) EECRBEASHMASHMA(EERZ
issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in 128 Bl )( ’—E/% REER ) ETER - RIE
the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements section ZEEL FENEERAREZ MM
of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code BT E ﬁﬁ‘%#&%{ MEE]—Ehem - R
of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code), and we have fulfiled our other ethical BEBGHMASNELSTAERZTA
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have ([=p8I]) - BEEBURN EKE WEEE
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. TRHETEMERET -  BEFMEE  TFM
BERNERBRECHREEEEABENE
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most
significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a

separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how our

audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report, including in relation to
these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures designed
to respond to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures

performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the

accompanying consolidated financial statements.

BREZER
BRECFEASESNERHE T FRA
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RUEFRER  MASRLEFREFER
ER - URTXMENEHER  BFEX
FHEHESRECENREBARERS
TRH)ERER

BERTARESEKUMAFLF I FHL
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Key audit matter

HRELER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EERECRNNEERRERER

Revenue recognition

Wt HER

The Group is principally engaged in the production and retailing
of casual braised food. The Group's consolidated revenue
amounted to RMB2,816,489,000 during the year ended 3|
December 2016. Revenue was of most significance in our audit

of the consolidated financial statements of the current period.

BEEEFENEHERTENERERGR - BESXEEZE
ZERFTZ A=+ HLEFENGEREAARE
2816489,0007C © EERENEZERES UM BKRE A
REZMRNRE -

Please refer to note 2.4 to the financial statements for summary
of accounting policies relating to revenue recognition, and note

5 to the related disclosure of revenue for the Group.

FLMBTEREN T 24 BB ERO B RREE
MRS BBl REER -

We have reviewed and assessed the Group's revenue recognition policy
across various sales channels. We have also understood the transaction
process of revenue recognition and tested relevant controls relating to
the process to substantiate our reliance of intemal controls by difference
sales channels. We have performed analytical procedures on the Group's
revenue by different channels, by types of retailing stores, by major
categories of products and by months to investigate any significant
fluctuations. We have performed revenue cut-off procedures as well as test

of details on sampling basis as part of our substantive audit procedures.

EERMANEUTANHEERE ESENKEHABREK - BF
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OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL REPORT
The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Annual Report, other than the

consolidated financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other

information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is
to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other

information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due

to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the Company are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing,
as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to

cease operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging their

responsibilities for overseeing the Group's financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Our report is made
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility

towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the

economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgement and

maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or

the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of intemal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose

of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of

accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.
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. Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Group's ability to continue as a going concem. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events

or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concem.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner

that achieves fair presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of
the entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit

opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant

deficiencies in intemal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our

independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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™3 Independent Auditor’s Report
o BYRBEI®RE

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters
in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not
be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would

reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Siu

Fung Terence Ho.

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong
22 March 2017

ZHOU HEI YA INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2016

BENEERZREQABNEET  REW
LEFH ARG AP HRRNERZLERR
BEE AMERBREZTE - RIDERR
ERIBRRRARBBEMRETER  SREFR
MWERT  BEERARBERFFHEASER
HOPTRERBBEBLRRNEBUSZEENT
EMNEREETRE  CABEFSNZH
SRS P ERIR -

HAABI MR RENERERABAL
e -

ES-Hr]
BA
“Tt#=AZt=H



GEREkHEMEZEKER

Year ended 31 December 2016
HE-T-—AF+-A=t-HLFE

2016 2015
ZB-RE “T-0#F
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
(i34 AR®TR ARBTT
REVENUE Wz 5 2,816,489 2,432,009
Cost of sales HERAR (1,061,387) (1,059,190)
Gross profit EH 1,755,102 1372819
Other income and gains, net Hi A R a5 58 5 50,704 28,062
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHFEX (700,893) (527969)
Administrative expenses TBAY (141,547) (124,724)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BRBLADR R 6 963,366 748,188
Income tax expense FEHAX 9 (247,755) (195450)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FERMN 715611 552738
Attributable to: T
Owners of the parent BRAEAA 715611 552,738
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME Htt2EBA
Other comprehensive income to be reclassified REEREENDBEEERN
to profit or loss in subsequent periods: HEf2EBA
Available-for-sale investments: AfHERE :
Changes in fair value, net of tax ATEEH(RTIE) 2,231 1,405
Reclassification adjustments for gains and losses FTABRREARE R
included in profit or loss BEEN I EAE
— gains on disposal, net of tax — H &M (BRHE) (2,231) (1,405)
Exchange differences: EHER:
Exchange differences on translation of BINEBHENELZR
foreign operations 50,604 7,690
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FEAMZEBRAREE)
FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX 50,604 7,690
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FERARAER
FOR THE YEAR 766,215 560,428
Attributable to: PATELS -
Owners of the parent BRAEEA 766,215 560,428
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO BAREBRESRARGEREN
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT [
Basic and diluted (RMB) EXRBEARE) 0.37 029
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31 December 2016
RZZ—RETZA=1T—H

2016 2015
ZE-RE “E-RF
Notes RMB’ 000 RMB'000

M ARBTR ARETT

NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment W - R R 12 459,875 395,373
Prepaid land lease payments AR T3 E KA 13 64,797 66,768
Prepayments AR I 14 21,905 16,157
Rental deposits HER® 48,041 38,586
Other intangible assets Hi i EE 15 6,713 7374
Deferred tax assets EXEREEE 24 26,569 24,842
Total non-current assets FREBEEHE 627,900 549,100
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Inventories "Ee 16 206,224 134073
Trade receivables B 5 RWHKIE 17 7,882 6,356
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables BRIE - &e REAMEKFIE 18 786,083 78075
Due from the Controlling Shareholders JE LT 2 AR % 3R TR T8 32(0) (i) 160 149
Available-for-sale investments At ERE 19 10,000 100,000
Restricted cash RIS 20 60 560
Cash in transit fEwRe 20 7,447 5417
Cash and bank e RR1THER 2l 2,461,260 82338
Total current assets REBEELE 3,479,116 406968
CURRENT LIABILITIES wEEE
Trade payables B ENRIE 2 81,98l 49,866
Other payables and accruals HihENFIERETER 23 289,108 218984
Govemment grants, current BT #B) - RE 25 996 597
Due to a related party J& 7 — % BB 5 RRIB 32(c) (i) = 202,771
Due to the Controlling Shareholders JE 1R AR AR SR 3R I8 32(c) (i) — 7575
Income tax payable FERTFIS TR 117,120 68,125
Total current liabilities REAEAHE 489,205 547918
NET CURRENT ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) RBEE/(8E)FHE 2,989911 (140950)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES HEERRBEE 3617811 408,150
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31 December 2016
RZE-RE+ZA=1T—H

2016 2015
“E-RE “T-hE
Notes RMB’ 000 RMB'000
i AR®TR ARETT
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEE
Other payables and accruals Hofh e 5 5008 K fE 5 B P 23 4,000 7,000
Govemment grants, non-cuent AN 25 18,240 16,168
Total non-current liabilities FRBABEER 22,240 23,168
NET ASSETS EERE 3,595,571 384982
EQUITY R
Equity attributable to owners of the parent BREREARLER
Share capital ELZN 26 16 6
Reserves A 27 3,595,555 384976
TOTAL EQUITY R 3,595,571 384982
Director Director
EE EZ
Zhou Fuyu Hao Lixiao
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Year ended 31 December 2016
HE-T—"F+-A=+-HILEFE

Attributable to owners of the parent

ISINGE PN
Exchange
Share Share Merger Statutory  fluctuation Retained Total
capital  premium* reserve® reserve® reserve® profits* equity*

37}
Bx REEr SHEE EEHE KBRS REEN AR
Notes ~ RMB000 ~ RMB000 ~ RMB'000 ~ RMB000  RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000
Wi ARBTR AR®TR ARMTR ARMTR ARBTR ARMTR ARMT:R

At January 1,2016 “E-RF-f-H 6 146,805 12,500 38,847 7,690 179,134 384,982
Profit for the year ERRF — — — — — 715611 715611
Exchange differences related to BNEBRENER =
foreign operations operations — — — — 50,604 — 50,604
Total comprehensive income EEZEBAEE
for the year = = = = 50,604 715611 766,215
Capitalization of share premium BRAREE R
into ordinary shares REBR 26 6 (6) = = = = =
Issue of shares for the Initial RERDREE
Public Offering (‘IPO") ((BERDREE ] BITRG 26 4 2520665 — — — — 2,520,669
Share issue expenses RIVETRZ — (76,295) — — — — (76,295)
Transfer from retained profits BRERBET — — = 32314 = (32,314) =
At December 31,2016 RZB-AETZA=1-H 16 2591,169 12,500 71,161 58294 862431 3,59557I
* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of RMB3,595,555,000 (2015: * ZERBREREAVMBERARAR -
RMB384,976,000) in the consolidated statement of financial position as at 3| December 2016. —R"FTZA=+—HBARARE3595555000
T(ZF—0%F : AR¥3849760007C) KR
AfEE -
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity %

GREERBE X

-.
Year ended 3| December 2016
BE-TRET-A=t-HLFE
Attributable to owners of the parent
LN
Exchange
Share Share Merger Statutory  fluctuation Retained Total
capital  premium* reserve® reserve’ reserve*® profits* equity*
EX
B RiDEE* AfiEE* EEREr KBEFEE* REET:  AEs~
Notes RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMBI000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMBI000
M ARKTT ARBTT ARETRT ARETT ARBTT ARETT ARETL
At January 1, 2015 R-EB-5%-A-H — — 254372 28814 — 638978 922,164
Profit for the year FERF — — — — — 552,738 552,738
Exchange differences related to BNEBRENERZR
foreign operations — — — — 7,690 — 7,690
Total comprehensive income FE2ANALE
for the year — — — — 7690 552,738 560428
Dividends declared EEIRRE 10 — — — — —  (300000)  (300,000)
Issue of shares Bl 2% 6 146,805 — — — — 146811
Capitalization of statutory reserves 1§ — I B A F149
of a subsidiary EEREERL — — 12,500 (12,500) — — —
Deemed distribution to the BIERERBERS K
Controlling Shareholders — — (131,782) (30421) — (659,628) (821,831)
Acquisition of equity interests PR AR R U AR
from the Controlling Shareholders — — (122,590) — — — (122,590)
Transfer from retained profits BRZREEF — — — 52954 — (52954) —
At December 31,2015 R-2-EF+-A=t+-H 6 146,805 12,500 38,847 7,690 179,134 384,982
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™ Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

o GERERER

Year ended 31 December 2016
HE-Z—"F+-A=+-HILEE

2016 2015
“E-AE —T-hf
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
i3 ARBTR ARBTR
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES REZBFERLRE
Profit before tax FRIEAT & Al 963,366 748,188
Adjustments for: BATRIERE -
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment nE - BERRENE 12 44,408 38233
Amortisation of prepaid land lease payments BN LA E AL R 3 867 867
Amortisation of other intangible assets Hit B\ & EgH 15 1,497 957
Interest income from bank deposits RITEHHEHA 6 (3,466) (1,159)
Interest income from available-for-sale investments A HERENFSHA 6 (2.974) (1873)
Interest income from structured deposits REBIEEROFSMA 6 (5222) (13596)
Loss on disposal of items of HENE BEREBEEER
property, plant and equipment 6 168 7,245
Loss on foreign exchange INEREB 6 4,796 1,248
Government grants BB 25 (1,079) (596)
1,002,361 779514
Decrease in restricted cash XRHRLHD 500 LIT7
(Increase)/decrease in cash in transit ERRL LM,/ (2,030) 460
Increase in trade receivables B S IEMGRIRE N (1,526) (1,779)
Increase in prepayments, deposits and other receivables BNTOE - e REMEKFEEM (32,139) (405)
Increase in amounts due from JE 22 i B SR R IE S N
the Controlling Shareholders () (149)
Increase in rental deposits HEReEM (9,455) (I1,663)
Increase in inventories BEEMm (72,151) (67,840)
Increase in trade payables B SR FIRE 32,115 16,598
Increase in other payables and accruals HitENRIERE EREM 47716 81,849
(Decrease)/increase in amounts due to FERERREFECHD) /150
the Controlling Shareholders (7,575) 7,959
Cash generated from operations REEENERS 957,805 805,661
Income tax paid ERATEH (200,487) (181,229)
NET CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES ~ B&ZEBFEREREFH 757318 624432

ZHOU HEI YA INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2016



SERERER

Year ended 3| December 2016
HE-_T—"F+-A=+-HILEE

2016 2015
“E-AE ~“T-hf
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETT
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES ~ REZEBFERLRE
Purchases of items of property, plant and equipment BE¥% - BE KX EEE (95,636) (163,223)
Increase of deposits for potential purchase BREBE TiHEFIENRSEN
of land lease payments (13,063) —
Proceeds from disposal of items of property, HEME - BFE REFEERMERE
plant and equipment 1,326 394
Additions to prepaid land lease payments B LR EZoEEm — (27601)
Additions to other intangible assets HEthEVEERE (794) (4,505)
Interest income from available-for-sale investments A4t 1 & 3% & | B UL A 2,974 1,873
Interest income from structured deposits HEEEFZHFERA 5,222 13,59
Purchase of available-for-sale investments BEAHNERE (480,000) (455,100)
Purchase of structured deposits BEABLER (2,135317) (955,000)
Increase of term deposits of maturity R=1E A 3 B8 E B s
over three months (2,260,551) —
Interest received from bank deposits BRTFRRREOTE 3,466 [,159
Receipt of government grants RIS Y4 B 3,550 —
Proceeds from disposal of items of HERHHERENMETIE
available-for-sale Investments 570,000 360,100
Proceeds from disposal of structured deposits HEABUGERHNMEIE 1,460,000 945,000
NET CASH FLOWS USED IN REZBFMAATRERE
INVESTING ACTIVITIES (2,938,823) (283307)
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Year ended 31 December 2016
HE-Z—"F+-A=+-HILEE

2016 2015
ZE-RE —“T-0%
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARBTR
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES RBEZBFRARSKE
Dividends paid ERANRE — (300,000)
Repayment of amounts due to a related RERRHEEEHER
party in connection with the IPO reorganization JET — BB 7 3R (202,771) (135377)
Distribution to the Controlling RERAREEESHARNERRED K
Shareholders in connection
with the IPO reorganization = (40,444)
Proceeds from issue of shares for the IPO RERAREERTRNAAERE 2,520,669 —
Proceeds from issue of shares BITROAEEE = 14681 |
Payment of listing expenses BRIBEITHRX (63,830) —
NET CASH FLOWS FROM/(USED IN) MEZBHME/ (FA)RERE
FINANCING ACTIVITIES 2,254,068 (329010)
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND RERRESEMEMFR
CASH EQUIVALENTS 72,563 12,115
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year @%}]E’Jfﬁi BFHEEEY 82,338 63,781
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net EXZPNTE T8 45,808 6,442
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ERNRERREEEYD
AT END OF YEAR 200,709 82,338
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND RERRESENGEHRIN
CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash in bank R RFITEHER 99,941 82338
Short-term deposits REFR 100,768 —
200,709 82,338
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CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

The Company is an exempted company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with
limited liability under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands on 13 May 2015,
The registered and correspondence office of the Company is located at the offices
of Intertrust Corporate Services (Cayman) Limited, 190 Elgin Avenue, George
Town, Grand Cayman KY1-9005, Cayman Islands. The Company was listed on the
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange™)
on 'l November 2016 (the “Listing”).

The Company is an investment holding company. The Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) are principally engaged in the business of
casual braised duck related food production, marketing and retailing (“Zhou Hei Ya

Business") in the mainland of the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC").

In the opinion of the directors of the Company (the “Directors”), the ultimate
controlling shareholders of the Company are Mr. Zhou Fuyu and Ms. Tang Jianfang

(together known as the “Controlling Shareholders").

In the opinion of the Directors, the ultimate holding company of the Company is

Healthy Origin Holdings Limited, which is incorporated in the British Virgin Islands.

B Wz

31 December 2016
RZE-RE+ZA=1T—H

AAREEER
ARARR_ZE-RFHAAT=HR
BREHSAREEHEEEEM
RUMEHEAERAR - ARAFH
7 ffft % = BE i B Intertrust Corporate
Services (Cayman) Limited BHF R E -
AU A 190 Elgin Avenue, George
Town, Grand Cayman KY[-9005,
Cayman lIslands e RARIRZE—RF
T—A+-—BEBEBEXISMER
DE([BRA ) EREM ©

AR R—HRERKRDR - AAH
FEMBAR(REARE])TERE
REARLAME(HE ] RBEEH
BARARERLEE ZHRTERH
(TARBEHK]) -

ARRIER(EFDRR - ARAN
REEBRERAAENAERERY
L (R ERBER ) -

EERR ARANRKERRAR
BRERERLDA  ZARRKER
RS EMMAL
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31 December 2016
RZE-—RE+ZA=1T—H

. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (Contd)

Information about subsidiaries

Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries are as follows:

Place of
incorporation/

registration

Nominal

value of

AAREEER )
ERHEARZER
ARANEENBRDFENT

Percentage of

equity interest attributable

to the Company

and business issued shares/ KRR EIERE
ML, paid-in capital BmADL
Name FMkEE EBITRMD Direct Indirect  Principal activities
=1 12 A B BARANEE =K M FEEK
Hubei Shiji Yuanjing Commerce & PRC RMBS million — 100 Food retailing
Trade Co, Ltd.
(“Hubei Shiji Yuanjing™)
RS E AR AR Y ARESHET ERmTE
(Dbt 4R )
Hubei Zhou Hei Ya Foods PRC RMB62.5 million — 100 Food manufacturing
Industrial Park Co,, Ltd.
MILARBRRTIEEERLR HE ARB6SBET RmAEE
Shenzhen Shiji Development PRC RMBO.5 million — 100 Food retailing
Commerce & Trade Co,, Ltd.
AYmELEREERRAA Y ARKOSEET EmTE
Shanghai Zhou Hei Ya Foods Co,, Ltd. PRC RMBI0 million — 100 Food manufacturing
LERRBRMABRAT i AREI0BET RmAE
Guangzhou Fuxin Xianghe PRC RMBO.5 million — 100 Food retailing
Commerce & Trade Co,, Ltd.
BNmERRZAEEARAR ] ARBOSEET XLES
Shanghai Zhouheiya Commerce & PRC RMB 0.5 million — 100 Food retailing
Trade Co, Ltd.
FERREHERRAF R AREOSEET EmTE

90 |



CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (Cont d)

Information about subsidiaries (Cont d)

Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries are as follows: (Contd)

B Wz

31 December 2016

KRB~ t=A=t-B

RAREEER (#Z)
FHEREAR2EN(E)
ARBAMEBMBARFHEOT

(%)

Place of Percentage of
incorporation/ Nominal equity interest attributable
registration value of to the Company
and business issued shares/ FAREIERAE
MR paid-in capital EHZEI
Name AR BRITRG Direct Indirect  Principal activities
=1 1 26 B A BARANEE H# M TEEY
Hunan Quanfuyu Commerce & PRC RMB2.01 million — 100 Food retailing
Trade Co, Ltd.
HEEEREEERAR R ARE201BET RmTE
Jiangxi Yuanjing Commerce & PRC RMBS5 million — 100 Food retailing
Trade Co, Ltd.
THRSHERRAA ] ARBSEETL RMTE
Beijing Zhou Hei Ya Commerce & PRC RMBS million — 100 Food retailing
Trade Co, Ltd.
IEREARBEERRAR R ARESBET ERmTE
Hubei Huanle Shike E-commerce PRC RMBI million — 100 Online business
Co,, Ltd.
HUABEEANETHHARRR  HE ARE I BET L%
Henan Zhou Hei Ya Commerce & PRC RMBI million — 100 Food retailing
Trade Co, Ltd.
AEEAREEERRAR P ARBIBET XLES
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31 December 2016
RZE-—RE+ZA=1T—H

|.  CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (Contd) . ARREEERE)
Information about subsidiaries (Cont d) EEMBATZER(£Z)
Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries are as follows: (Cont d) RARMEEWNBARFEBOT
(%)

Place of Percentage of

incorporation/ Nominal equity interest attributable

registration value of to the Company

and business issued shares/ FAREIERAE

MR paid-in capital EHZEI
Name AR BRITRG Direct Indirect  Principal activities
=1 1 26 B A BARANEE H# M TEEY
Shanghai Suo Lei Industrial PRC RMB20 million — 100 Property holdings

Co,, Ltd. (Formerly known as
Shanghai Dewei Industrial Co,, Ltd.)

LERBEXERAF ] ARB20BET MEER
(R EBREEXERAR])

Dongguan Pengyu Foods PRC RMBO.5 million — 100 Food retailing
Commerce & Trade Co., Ltd.

REMBHRmAERRAT R ARBOSEETL RmTE

Tianjin Zhou Hei Ya PRC RMBS5 million — 100 Food retailing
Commerce & Trade Co,, Ltd.

REEAREHEARRAA ] ARBSEETL RMTE

Zhejiang Zhou Hei Ya PRC RMB Nil* — 100 Food retailing
Commerce & Trade Co,, Ltd.

HIARBEERRAR R ARBEZT* EmTE

Jiangsu Dashike Commerce & PRC RMB Nil* — 100 Food retailing
Trade Co, Ltd.

TEHETEESRRAR i ARBEZ T RmTE
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CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (Cont d)

Information about subsidiaries (Cont d)

Particulars of the Company's principal su

bsidiaries are as follows: (Cont d)

B Wz

31 December 2016
RZE-RE+ZA=1T—H

. RARKEERE)
FHEREAR2EN(E)

ARBAMEBMBARFHEOT

(%)

Place of Percentage of
incorporation/ Nominal equity interest attributable
registration value of to the Company
and business issued shares/ FAREIERAE
MR paid-in capital EHZEI
Name AR BRITRG Direct Indirect  Principal activities
=1 1 26 B A BARANEE H# M TEEY
Chongqing Zhouheiya PRC RMBO.5 million — 100 Food retailing
Foodstuff Co,, Ltd.
EERARBRMARAA R ARKOSEET RmTE
Zhou Hei Ya Holdings Hong Kong HKD | — 100 Investment holding
(Hong Kong) Limited
A RBER(BE)ERAT BB | BT REZR
Zhou Hei Ya Holdings British Virgin Islands USD 5,000 100 —  Investment holding
Company Limited
FRBEZERARAR EBRIES 50003 7T REER
Hubei Zhou Hei Ya PRC RMB10 million — 100 Investment holding
Management Co., Ltd.
HILEAERREEER AR R ARBI0BBT REZR
ZHY Development PRC RMB80 million — 100 Investment holding
ML RBERERERAA R ARBBOABT REZR
Guangdong Zhou Hei Ya PRC RMBI million — 100 Food manufacturing
Foods Industrial Park Co., Ltd.
BERARBRRIXEERLAR FH ARE I BEL RmAE
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31 December 2016
RZE-—RE+ZA=1T—H

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (Cont d)

Information about subsidiaries (Cont d)

Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries are as follows: (Contd)

RAREEER (#Z)
FHEREAR2EN(E)
ARBAMEBMBARFHEOT
(%)

Place of Percentage of
incorporation/ Nominal equity interest attributable
registration value of to the Company
and business issued shares/ i UNETL T
MR paid-in capital BEEDL
Name AR BRITRG Direct Indirect  Principal activities
L 1 26 B A BARANEE H# M TEEY
Ningbo Shiji Yuanjing PRC RMB Nil* — 100 Food retailing
Commerce & Trade Co., Ltd.
BERELRREEARAA R ARBEZ T RmTE
Sichuan Zhou Hei Ya PRC RMBNil* — 100 Food retailing
Commerce & Trade Co,, Ltd.
M) EAREEEER DA ] ARBEZT* XLES
Sichuan Zhouheiya Foods Co.,, Ltd. PRC RMB Nil* — 100 Food manufacturing
M) EARERAERDH ] ARBEZ T RmAE
Hubei Zhou Hei Ya PRC RMB | million — 100 Online business
E-Commerce Co,, Ltd.
LA REEEER AR i ARB I BET %%
Jiangsu Zhou Hei Ya Foods PRC RMB145 million — 100 Food manufacturing
Industrial Park Co., Ltd.
THBARBRRTIXRERT R AR 14588 RmAE
* These subsidiaries were at early stage since their incorporation and hence their respective * ERAMB AT M ARERY]

authorized share capital had not been paid up as of 31 December 2016.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the opinion of the

directors, principally affected the results for the year or formed a substantial portion

of the net assets of the Group.

MRS BUAEEAERARBE
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2.1

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs") (which include all Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs") and
Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA™), accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have
been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for available-for-sale
investments which have been measured at fair value. These financial statements are
presented in Renminbi (“RMB”) and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand

(RMB'000) except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the
Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the "Group”) for the year
ended 31 December 2016. A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity),
directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when the
Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
investee (ie., existing rights that give the Group the current ability to direct the

relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority of the voting or
similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances

in assessing whether it has power over an investee, including;

(@)  the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

() the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

2.1

B Wz

31 December 2016
RZE-RE+ZA=1T—H
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31 December 2016
RZE-—RE+ZA=1T—H

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Cont )

Basis of consolidation (Cont d)

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting
period as the Company, using consistent accounting policies. The results of
subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains control,

and continue to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are attributed
to the owners of the parent of the Group and to the non-controlling interests, even
if this results in the non-controlling interest having a deficit balance. All intra-group
assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions

between members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three
elements of control described above. A change in the ownership interest of a

subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognizes (i) the assets (including
goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, (i) the carrying amount of any non-
controlling interest and (iii) the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity;
and recognizes (i) the fair value of the consideration received, (i) the fair value of
any investment retained and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss.
The Group's share of components previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on the
same basis as would be required if the Group had directly disposed of the related

assets or liabilities.
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following new and revised HKFRSs for the first time

for the current year's financial statements

Amendments to HKFRS
10, HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 28 (201 1)

Amendments to
HKFRS 11
HKFRS 14

Amendments to HKAS |

Amendments to HKAS
|6 and HKAS 38

Amendments to HKAS
|6 and HKAS 41

Amendments to HKAS
27 (2011)

Annual Improvements

2012-2014 Cycle

Investment Entities: Applying the

Consolidation Exception

Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests
in Joint Operations
Regulatory Deferral Accounts

Disclosure Initiative

Clanffication of Acceptable Methods of

Depreciation and Amortisation

Agriculture: Bearer Plants

Equity Method in Separate Financial

Statements

Amendments to a number of HKFRSs

BAEMBHRELR

E 105 - BEIMKR
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The adoption of these new and revised HKFRSs has had no significant financial

effect on these financial statements.
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ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL 23 CHEMEERERNEEIE
REPORTING STANDARDS HEER

The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs, that have been REBWANMBRRANERTHIE
issued but are not vet effective, in these financial statements. BB R E R AT RSB E R

PG EEER -

Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classification and Measurement of BRI BmE LR KRG Z KGR 7 IE R E?
Share-based Payment Transactions' £ 25RHIEET
Amendments to HKFRS 4 Applying HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments 278 B 15 i 2 2E B HE BB R ERE 95
with HKFRS 4 Insurance Contracts’ ER 0l CH] [ R &4 ] — L &8 7%
WEERE 45 2HIA)]
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments® BN EHE LR EHITA?
F95%
Amendments to HKFRS  Sale or Contribution of Assets between 2 /& Bl 76 i &5 2E | REEZHRBENFIEE
[0 and HKAS 28 (2011)  an Investor and its Associate FI0HRLEEGS PREEELER)TA
or Joint Venture* RERFE 285K
(ZT——5)01E5]
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts BB BT ER FEEF & W
with Customers’ E 155
Amendments to Clanifications to HKFRS 15 Revenue BRMBHRELNE  BEEBUBEHEERZE 155
HKFRS 15 from Contracts with Customers’ |5 SR EVEET KEEF Gz
HKFRS 16 Leases® BB HREER HE>
£ 165
Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative! BEAGTENETR wEAE
HIER]
Amendments to HKAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets BREGHERFE 125 BABHERERZELHERE'
for Unrealised Losses' HEE]
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL 23 CHEMEERERNEEIE
REPORTING STANDARDS (Contd) HREER(#Z)
‘ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2017 | RZE—tF—A—HAZERFBREH
FE BB AER
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2018 2 RZE-—NF-A—BzERED
FREHR AR
i Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2019 3 RZB-NF-A-BRZEREDN
FE BB AR
4 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption 4 MR TR AR B MR f AR
Eal
Other than explained below regarding the impact of HKFRS 9, HKFRS 15 and BT mill BB E BB RELERIE9
HKFRS 16, the Group is in the process of making an assessment of the impact of o BEMBWMEEAE ISHKREE
these new and revised HKFRSs upon initial application. So far, the Group considers BB EENE 6ROTEIN A
that these new and revised HKFRSs may result in changes in accounting policies and ErEErERRZEY HT&%« &
are unlikely to have a significant impact on the Group's results of operations and BB EREERNNTE 125
financial position. AEERRZEN LEE ET%‘%E?T
BRELENXSEUSABERED -
BRI A BN QL RELY
BRRELEATE -
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ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (Contd)

HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 addresses the classification, measurement and recognition of financial
assets and financial liabilities. The completed version of HKFRS 9 was issued in July
2014. It replaces the guidance in HKAS 39 that relates to the classification and
measurement of financial instruments HKFRS 9 retains but simplifies the mixed
measurement model and establishes three primary measurement categories for
financial assets: amortized cost, fair value through other comprehensive income and
fair value through profit or loss. The basis of classification depends on the entity's
business model and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assets.
Investments in equity investments are required to be measured at fair value through
profit or loss with the irrevocable option at the inception to present changes in fair
value in other comprehensive income not recycling. There is now a new expected
credit losses model that replaces the incurred loss impairment model used in HKAS
39. For financial liabilities there were no changes to classification and measurement
except for the recognition of changes in own credit risk in other comprehensive
income, for liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss. HKFRS 9
relaxes the requirements for hedge effectiveness by replacing the bright line hedge
effectiveness tests. It requires an economic relationship between the hedged
item and hedging instrument and for the ‘hedged ratio’ to be the same as the
one management actually use for risk management purposes. Contemporaneous
documentation is still required but is different to that currently prepared under
HKAS 39. The standard is effective for accounting periods beginning on or after |
January 2018. Early adoption is permitted.
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ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (Contd)
HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments (Cont d)

Measurement of impairment losses on trade receivables based on an expected
credit losses model requires the use of historical data as well as forward looking
information. The management is in the process of assessing the impact of HKFRS 9
and a reasonable estimate of that effect will be available once a detailed review has
been completed. Other than the adoption of an expected credit losses impairment
model and disclosure changes, adoption of HKFRS 9 is currently not expected to
have a material impact on the consolidated financial statements of the Group. The

Group does not plan to early adopt HKFRS 9.

HKFRS |5 — Revenue from Contracts with Customers

HKFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for determining when to
recognize revenue and how much revenue to recognize through a 5-step
approach: (1) Identify the contract(s) with customer (2) Identify separate
performance obligations in a contract (3) Determine the transaction price (4)
Allocate transaction price to performance obligations and (5) recognize revenue
when performance obligation is satisfied. The core principle is that a company
should recognize revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to
the customer in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the company
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. It moves away
from a revenue recognition model based on an ‘earnings’ processes to an ‘asset-
liability' approach based on transfer of control. HKFRS 15 is effective for an entity's
first annual financial statements under HKFRS for a period beginning on or after |

January, 2018, with earlier application permitted.

B Wz

31 December 2016
RZE-RE+ZA=1T—H

23 EHEMEERERBNERIKE

WEER (&)
BERMBEERENLEIR-/2HTA/
(%)

REBHEEEREAMEZIRK
SIRRE R R T E IR E L 808 KAl
BIEEN EEELFEBTEM B R
ERAFIFHNFERATENEE
AR R TR A B R R E L - FRK
MEREEBEERERA RREZ
S BRTTREIRAEEMBREER
FIFTEUARENGRA M B IMKE
REAFE - AEBUEFERER
MEBUBHRELEFE IR -

ERMBREENE IS -/KXEF
FE#B |

BEARMBRELRE SHABREL
B BUBTERABARMERSEN
Z2EHER: (WHAIEFPEH: Q#H
RlIERFRMERERRER : Q) EER
S5EE: HBRHBEIEEZRRE
ERC)REINRREEHERMA
BZORBE—HAREERBRARE
HRIBMEFPREREEmIRE
BRHRENSE BRERAER
ERERERIRBEHWA - &R
AT B FIGEE2 | A2 R A R
B BRENEBREGRARRN A
EBEIAH -  BAMBREENE IS
REHERN_T-N\F-A—B%2
BHRIGHERRE  BREEAMBREE
AN EEMBEREFEER  AFR
B -

N
VI

Wt

1101



23

102 |

B WM

31 December 2016
RZE-—RE+ZA=1T—H

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (Contd)

HKFRS |5 — Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Contd)

The Group does not plan to early adopt HKFRS 15. Based on the Group's Zhou
Hei Ya Business and related revenue recognition accounting policy as set out in
note 2.4, the management does not expect significant impact on the financial
performance and position of the Group resulted from the effectiveness of HKFRS

|5 for periods beginning on or after | January 2018.

HKFRS 16 - Leases

The Group is a lessee of various store premises which are currently classified as
operating leases. The Group's current accounting policy for such leases is set out
in note 2.4 with the Group's future operating lease commitments, which are not
reflected in the consolidated statements of financial position, set out in note 30.
HKFRS 16 provides new provisions for the accounting treatment of leases and
will in the future no longer allow lessees to recognize certain leases outside of the
statements of financial position. Instead, all non-current leases must be recognized
in the form of an asset (for the right of use) and a financial liability (for the payment
obligation). Thus each lease will be mapped in the Group's consolidated statements
of financial position. Short-term leases of less than twelve months and leases of
low-value assets are exempt from the reporting obligation. The new standard will
therefore result in an increase in assets and financial liabilities in the consolidated

statements of financial position.

Total operating lease commitments of the Group at 31 December 2016 amounted
to RMB326,220,000. The directors expect that certain portion of these lease
commitments will be required to be recognized in the consolidated statements
of financial position as right-of-use assets and financial liabilities. Directors do not

foresee any material impact on the net profit of the Group.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its equity investments at fair value at the end of each
reporting period. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at
the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption
that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either in the
principal market for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in
the most advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal or the most
advantageous market must be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset
or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their

economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market
participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest
and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset

in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and
for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of

relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.
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24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

104 |

Fair value measurement (Cont d)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial
statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows,
based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a

whole:

Level | —based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets

or liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is

significant to the fair value measurement is observable, either directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is

significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a
recurring basis, the Group determines whether transfers have occurred between
levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorization (based on the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each

reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment testing for
an asset is required (other than inventories, deferred tax assets and financial assets),
the asset's recoverable amount is estimated. An asset's recoverable amount is the
higher of the asset's or cash-generating unit's value in use and its fair value less costs
of disposal, and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or
groups of assets, in which case the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-

generating unit to which the asset belongs.
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24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Impairment of non-financial assets (Cont d)

An impairment loss is recognized only if the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its
recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.
An impairment loss is charged to profit or loss in the period in which it arises in

those expense categories consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to whether there
is an indication that previously recognized impairment losses may no longer exist
or may have decreased. If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is
estimated. A previously recognized impairment loss of an asset other than goodwill
is reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying
amount that would have been determined (net of any depreciation/amortization)
had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years. A reversal of

such an impairment loss is credited to profit or loss in the period in which it arises.

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@)  the party is a person or a close member of that person’s family and that

person

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iily  is a member of the key management personnel of the Group or of a
parent of the Group;

or
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)
Related parties (Cont'd)

106 |

(b)  the party is an entity where any of the following conditions applies:

(i

)

(vii)

the entity and the Group are members of the same group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or of a

parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an

associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of

employees of either the Group or an entity related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a) (i) has significant influence over the entity or
is a member of the key management personnel of the entity (or of a

parent of the entity); and

the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part, provides
key management personnel services to the Group or to the parent of

the Group.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)
Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in progress, are stated at
cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of an item
of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and location for its

intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment have been put
into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is normally charged to profit or
loss in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria
are satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalized in the carrying
amount of the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant
and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group recognizes such

parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the cost of each
item of property, plant and equipment to its residual value over its estimated useful

life. The principal annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Buildings BF

Plant and machinery = K es
Operating tools BETH
Motor vehicles "E

Office equipment WRRE
Leasehold improvements HEERE

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives,
the cost of that item is allocated on a reasonable basis among the parts and each
part is depreciated separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial year

end.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)
Property, plant and equipment and depreciation (Cont d)

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant part initially
recognized is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement
recognized in profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognized is the difference

between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents a building under construction, which is stated
at cost less any impairment losses, and is not depreciated. Cost comprises the
direct costs of construction and capitalized borrowing costs on related borrowed
funds during the period of construction. Construction in progress is reclassified to
the appropriate category of property, plant and equipment when completed and

ready for use.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost.
The cost of intangible assets acquired in a business combination is the fair value at
the date of acquisition. The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either
finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently amortized
over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an
indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortization period and
the amortization method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed

at least at each financial year end.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment annually
either individually or at the cash-generating unit level. Such intangible assets are not
amortised. The useful life of an intangible asset with an indefinite life is reviewed
annually to determine whether the indefinite life assessment continues to be
supportable. If not, the change in the useful life assessment from indefinite to finite

is accounted for on a prospective basis.

24 EXETHRBESR)

MWE - BERRBUARFTE(E)
MEERNYE - BERRERE (2
RIEMERED )R HERREE AL
HERE B E S M ARREEN
R IR - NEERLBREE
MRS R RN ELRERE AL
EMEREFRENBEENRAE
ZRRERE

EETIREEZET  RRARER
BEERIT  TETHE - KAB
RERBERA KR E SRR ARER
HERCEERA - HETERTK
WAEBBERSERSEERNNY
X BEREE -

BREE(FMERM)

EVEERRSERKAN S ERE
T# 8 - REBAHERSHELE
EXRARBBERHNATE  BVE
ERFERERERTEEERF
B AREERFHNETLEERBK
ERBEANERFHARHELTEETR
BRARESRENEBYEEETRHE
- AREEAFHNELEEN
BHMENEETEELENEEY
BEERETER -

EREEFHNELEERSFEML
INHeELTEUEEETRER
A RFENEETETHEE - £H
EFRNEVEERSFIGEARE
FFH - AR & EE F IR ERE
GARAR(T - BRI Al E A F HR Y
EREBTFHEERSBETFHN
RRAAR B EETETRE °



24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (Cont'd)
Software
Purchased software is stated at cost less any impairment losses and amortized on

the straight-line basis over its estimated useful life of 3 to 10 years.

Trademark
Purchased trademark is stated at cost less any impairment losses with indefinite

useful lives.

Patents
Purchased patents are stated at cost less any impairment losses and are amortized

on the straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives of 3 to 10 years.

Leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of assets remain
with the lessor are accounted for as operating leases. Where the Group is the
lessor, assets leased by the Group under operating leases are included in non-
current assets, and rentals receivable under the operating leases are credited to
profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the lease terms. Where the Group is
the lessee, rentals payable under operating leases net of any incentives received
from the lessor are charged to profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the lease

terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are initially stated at cost and

subsequently recognized on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)
Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as loans and receivables and
available-for-sale financial investments. When financial assets are recognized initially,
they are measured at fair value plus transaction costs that are attributable to the
acquisition of the financial assets, except in the case of financial assets recorded at

fair value through profit or loss.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their classification as

follows:

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active market. After initial measurement, such
assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate
method less any allowance for impairment. Amortized cost is calculated by taking
into account any discount or premium on acquisition and includes fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortization is included in other income and gains in profit or loss. The loss arising
from impairment is recognized in profit or loss in finance costs for loans and in

other expenses for receivables.
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24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Investments and other financial assets (Cont d)

Available-for-sale financial investments

Available-for-sale financial investments are non-derivative financial assets in unlisted
equity investments. Equity investments classified as available for sale are those which
are neither classified as held for trading nor designated as at fair value through profit

or loss.

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial investments are subsequently
measured at fair value, with unrealized gains or losses recognized as other
comprehensive income in the available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve
until the investment is derecognized, at which time the cumulative gain or loss is
recognized in profit or loss in other income, or until the investment is determined
to be impaired, when the cumulative gain or loss is reclassified from the available-
for-sale investment revaluation reserve to profit or loss in other gains or losses.
Interest and dividends earned whilst holding the available-for-sale financial
investments are reported as interest income and dividend income, respectively and
are recognized in profit or loss as other income in accordance with the policies set

out for “Revenue recognition” below.

When the fair value of unlisted equity investments cannot be reliably measured
because (a) the variability in the range of reasonable fair value estimates is significant
for that investment or (b) the probabilities of the various estimates within the range
cannot be reasonably assessed and used in estimating fair value, such investments

are stated at cost less any impairment losses.

The Group evaluates whether the ability and intention to sell its available-for-sale
financial assets in the near term are still appropriate. When, in rare circumstances,
the Group is unable to trade these financial assets due to inactive markets, the
Group may elect to reclassify these financial assets if management has the ability

and intention to hold the assets for the foreseeable future or until maturity.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)
Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group
of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognized (i.e., removed from the Group's

consolidated statement of financial position) when:
. the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

. the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset
or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without
material delay to a third party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and
either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially

all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or
has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it
has retained the risk and rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor
transferred control of the asset, the Group continues to recognize the transferred
asset to the extent of the Group's continuing involvement. In that case, the Group
also recognizes an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated
liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the

Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred
asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the

maximum amount of consideration that the Group could be required to repay.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)
Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is objective
evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. An
impairment exists if one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of
the asset have an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or
the group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment
may include indications that a debtor or a group of debtors is experiencing
significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal payments,
the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganization and
observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate

with defaults.

Financial assets carned at amortized cost

For financial assets carried at amortized cost, the Group first assesses whether
impairment exists individually for financial assets that are individually significant,
or collectively for financial assets that are not individually significant. If the Group
determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually
assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of
financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses them
for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for which
an impairment loss is, or continues to be, recognized are not included in a collective

assessment of impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows (excluding future credit losses that have not yet been incurred). The present
value of the estimated future cash flows is discounted at the financial asset's original

effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition).
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24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)
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Impairment of financial assets (Cont d)

Financial assets carried at amortized cost (Contd)

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance
account and the loss is recognized in profit or loss. Interest income continues to be
accrued on the reduced carrying amount using the rate of interest used to discount
the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss. Loans and
receivables together with any associated allowance are written off when there is no
realistic prospect of future recovery and all collateral has been realized or has been

transferred to the Group.

If. in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated impairment loss increases
or decreases because of an event occurring after the impairment was recognized,
the previously recognized impairment loss is increased or reduced by adjusting the
allowance account. If a write-off is later recovered, the recovery is credited to other

expenses in profit or loss.

Available-for-sale financial investments
For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group assesses at the end of each
reporting period whether there is objective evidence that an investment or a group

of investments is impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount comprising the difference
between its cost (net of any principal payment and amortization) and its current fair
value, less any impairment loss previously recognized in profit or loss, is removed

from other comprehensive income and recognized in profit or loss.
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24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont d)

Available-for-sale financial investments

In the case of equity investments classified as available for sale, objective evidence
would include a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of an investment
below its cost. “Significant” is evaluated against the original cost of the investment
and “prolonged” against the period in which the fair value has been below its
original cost. Where there is evidence of impairment, the cumulative loss —
measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair value,
less any impairment loss on that investment previously recognized in profit or
loss — is removed from other comprehensive income and recognized in profit or
loss. Impairment losses on equity instruments classified as available for sale are not
reversed through profit or loss. Increases in their fair value after impairment are

recognized directly in other comprehensive income.

The determination of what is “significant” or “prolonged” requires judgement. In
making this judgement, the Group evaluates, among other factors, the duration or

extent to which the fair value of an investment is less than its cost.

Financial liabilities
Inttial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as loans and borrowings.

All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in case of loans and

borrowings, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include trade and other payables, amounts due to

related parties and amounts due to the Controlling Shareholders.
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24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

116 |

Financial liabilities (Cont @)
Subsequent measurement (Cont d)

The subsequent measurement of loans and borrowings are as follows:

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortized cost, using the effective interest rate method unless
the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at
cost. Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss when the liabilities are

derecognized as well as through the effective interest rate amortization process.

Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.

The effective interest rate amortization is included in finance costs in profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is

discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender
on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference between the

respective carrying amounts is recognized in profit or loss.
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24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in
the consolidated statement of financial position if there is a currently enforceable
legal right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a

net basis, or to realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories comprising raw materials, work-in-progress, finished goods and
packaging matenials, are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost
is determined on the weighted average basis and, in the case of work-in-progress
and finished goods, comprises direct materials, direct labor and an appropriate
proportion of overheads. Net realizable value is based on the estimated selling

price less any estimated costs to be incurred to completion and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, term deposits and short
term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts
of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short
maturity of generally within three months when acquired, and form an integral part

of the Group's cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial position, cash and cash
equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks, including term deposits, which are

not restricted as to use.
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Provisions

A provision is recognized when a present obligation (legal or constructive)
has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable that a future outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate

can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognized for a provision
is the present value at the end of the reporting period of the future expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation. The increase in the discounted
present value amount arising from the passage of time is included in finance costs in

profit or loss.

Income tax
Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating to items
recognized outside profit or loss is recognized outside profit or loss, either in other

comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be
recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period, taking into consideration interpretations and practices prevailing in the

countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary differences at
the end of the reporting period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and

their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)
Income tax (Contd)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences, except:

. when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill
or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor

taxable profit or loss; and

. in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, when the timing of the reversal
of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the

temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, the
carryforward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets
are recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax

credits and unused tax losses can be utilized, except:

. when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary differences
arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is
not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither

the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

. in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments
in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, deferred tax assets are only
recognized to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences
will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available

against which the temporary differences can be utilized.

B Wz

31 December 2016
RZE-RE+ZA=1T—H

24 EXETHRBESR)

FRgH (&)
FERRRE R ZRERRBLHRIE
B EBEFBRE:

o EFEBAHNRZTIIRER
MEBREEXRBELHER
FEERLRE G MBRER
RABRBRELEYENRTR
BRE: R

o HREMBARR BELRARA
EREREMANERRHERZ
2 MZERHEROBOERY
S B AR R R AR R AR AL
TEREE -

BELEHBREEMMAANENERE
2 APARARALEEREMNRD
ARBEEETUER REEEA R
HIRERTAER BAREZ S H
NERZR  APARARALEER
APRABEBENERLT T EER
BRERIBEE - BIATERERSIN -

o EHEANEMERZRBBNELT
BMABEEENFEXBEHRS
FHEEXRENTRER B
EX%E’F%HEFTWE 25 B

T ERRAVFBLERER
K

o HREMBARR BELRARA
ZEEREEENAENERE
2 REEHEZRENEILNR
RN A]BE A - B IR A AL
BHEEREZENERIWNEE -
ERRBELERBEE -

1119



24

120 |

B wR M

31 December 2016
RZZ—RETZA=1T—H

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)
Income tax (Cont d)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each
reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset
to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of each
reporting period and are recognized to the extent that it has become probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset

to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected
to apply to the period when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on
tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the

end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right
exists to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred

taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Government grants

Government grants are recognized at their fair value where there is reasonable
assurance that the grant will be received and all attaching conditions will be
complied with. When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognized as
income on a systematic basis over the periods that the costs, which it is intended

to compensate, are expensed.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is credited to a deferred income
account and is released to profit or loss over the expected useful life of the relevant

asset by equal annual instalments.
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24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd) 24 EXRSTHBEBEE)
Revenue recognition W 358 P AR
Revenue is recognized when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to Hﬁ[ STHIR A TN EENAREE R 0] 82 E
the Group and when the revenue can be measured reliably, on the following bases: BB KT 2 W E
FIARER -
(a)  Sale of goods (a)

i
o IRy
PR
Ay
8o

Revenue from the sales of goods is recognized when the significant risks and EMHEWRHREER E’Uﬁj{ﬂ
rewards of the goods have been transferred to the customer, which is usually e M ERE ER AT PR

at the date when a group entity has delivered products to the customer @ﬁ%ﬁ%l%’f%ﬁﬂ%iuu H
and the customer has accepted the products, the collectability of the related BE BPERERERE A EﬁEE
receivables is reasonably assumed and there is no unfulfilled obligation that WHmEmER RS ERTE

could affect the customer's acceptance of the products. R ERBITOEL AR ’5:;3

FPHERNERRZAH -

(b)  Interest income &) FLEHA
Interest income s recognized on a time proportion basis using the effective B AR B ERRF BORIR
interest method. LE I ELAERER o
Employee benefits EEREF
Pension scheme RIKZi1E
The employees of the Group's subsidiaries which operate in Mainland China are ARE B R A A = E 6 B R Bl R
required to participate in a central pension scheme operated by the local municipal g %%j}ﬂiﬂgﬁ‘ﬁﬂlﬁ@{? R SRR
government. These subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain percentage &=tE o EZ:MT% BT AR A
of the payroll costs to the central pension scheme. The contributions are charged HEEBR DL AE 9{;_{77( HEES
to profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with rules of the central o 1,\T RIBE R RER ST EIH
pension scheme. RAER B ET AR
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)
Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in RMB. Each entity in the Group
determines its own functional currency and items included in the financial
statements of each entity are measured using that functional currency. Foreign
currency transactions recorded by the entities in the Group are initially recorded
using their respective functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated at the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of the
reporting period. Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items

are recognized in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial
transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was measured.
The gain or loss arising on translation of a non-monetary item measured at fair
value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair
value of the item (i.e, translation difference on the item whose fair value gain
or loss is recognized in other comprehensive income or profit or loss is also

recognized in other comprehensive income or profit or loss, respectively).

The functional currency of the Company and certain subsidiaries is the Hong Kong
dollar. As at the end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these
entities are translated into RMB at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the
reporting period, and their statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive

income are translated at the weighted average exchange rates for the year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognized in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a
foreign operation, the component of other comprehensive income relating to that

particular foreign operation is recognized in profit or loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the cash flows of
overseas subsidiaries are translated into RMB at the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries
which arise throughout the year are translated into RMB at the weighted average

exchange rates for the year.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group's financial statements requires management to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and
the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment to the

carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the

next financial year, are described below.

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group's management determines the estimated useful lives and the related
depreciation charge for the Group's property, plant and equipment. This estimate
is based on the historical experience of the actual useful lives of property, plant
and equipment of similar nature and functions. Management will increase the
depreciation charge where useful lives are less than previously estimated lives, or
will write off or write down technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that have
been abandoned or sold. Actual economic lives may differ from estimated useful
lives. Periodic review could result in a change in depreciable lives and therefore

depreciation charge in the future periods.

Net realizable value of inventories

Net realizable value of inventories is the estimated selling price less any estimated
costs to be incurred to completion and disposal. These estimates are based on
the current market condition and the historical experience of selling products of a
similar nature. It could change significantly as a result of changes in customer taste
or competitor actions in response to severe consumer product industry cycles.

Management reassesses these estimates at each reporting date.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Contd)

Estimation uncertainty (Cont d)

Impairment of other receivables and amounts due from related parties

The Group's management estimates the provision for impairment of other
receivables and amounts due from related parties by assessing their recoverability
based on credit history and the prevailing market conditions. This requires the
use of estimates and judgements. Management reassesses the provision at each

reporting date.

Provisions are applied to other receivables and amounts due from related parties
where events or changes in circumstances indicate that the amount may not be
collectible. Where the expectation is different from the original estimates, the
difference will affect the carrying values of other receivables and amounts due from
related parties and thus the impairment charge in the period in which the estimates

are changed.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the losses can be utilized. Significant management
judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be
recognized, based upon the likely timing and level of future taxable profits together
with future tax planning strategies. The carrying value of deferred tax assets relating
to recognized tax losses at 3| December 2016 was RMB 4,099,000 (2015:RMB
3,086,000). Further details are contained in note 24 to the financial statements.

Impairment non-financial assets (other than goodwill)

The carrying value of non-financial assets other than goodwill is reviewed for
impairment when events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
value may not be recoverable in accordance with the accounting policies as
disclosed in the relevant parts in note 2.4 to the financial statements. The
recoverable amount of the non-financial assets other than goodwill is the greater
of the fair value less costs of disposal and value in use, the calculations of which

involve the use of estimates,
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group's principal business is the production, marketing and retailing of casual
braised duck-related casual food. For management purposes, the Group operates
in one business unit based on its products, and has one reportable segment which

is the production, marketing and retailing of casual braised duck-related food.

Information about geographical area

Since all of the Group's revenue was generated from the production, marketing
and retailing of casual braised duck-related food in Mainland China and over 95%
of the Group's non-current assets were located in Mainland China, no geographical

information is presented in accordance with HKFRS 8 — Operating Segments.

Information about major customers
Since none of the Group's sales to a single customer amounted to 10% or more of
the Group's total revenue, no information about major customers is presented in

accordance with HKFRS 8 — Operating Segments.
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REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, NET 5. Wi - HAtW AR Waas 3R
Revenue represents the net invoiced value of goods sold after allowances for KRt EERRERERERES
returns and trade discounts. TR ERFE -
An analysis of revenue, other income and gains, net is as follows: Was « B A RS FEOMMT
2016 2015
—E-RF —T-IF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARETT
Revenue e &5
Vacuum-packaged products EFEREEMD 273,088 314,880
Modified-Atmosphere- Packaged products R EEEm 2517416 2,082,982
Other products HAhEm 25,985 34,147
Total 5 2,816,489 2,432,009
2016 2015
—E—XE —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARMF T ARBETT
Other income and gains, net Hitt AR Wz 328
Government grants* ST 48 B * 37,358 18,374
Interest income from bank deposits RITIF M B WA 3,466 [,159
Interest income from available-for-sale investments A ERE T B A 2,974 1,873
Interest income from structured deposits EEMEREF S LA 5,222 13596
Loss on disposal of items of property, HEWME  WENREBBEE
plant and equipment (168) (7,245)
Others Hit 1,852 305
Total 85t 50,704 28062
* There were no unfulfiled conditions and other contingencies attaching to government * B R A BRI 4 BY I 42 I A5 R S R 1R

grants that had been recognized.
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PROFIT BEFORE TAX 6. BRFEADRF
The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting): RNEEBRBALEMNEN%R(GEA)
UTERRER
2016 2015
—E-RE —heF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T R ARBTT
Cost of inventories sold EEFEKA 896,005 931,550
Depreciation of property plant and equipment ME - BERRERE 44,408 38,233
Amortization of prepaid land lease payments TER L 3 FH & RRIB 8 867 867
Amortization of other intangible assets o T & 8 1,497 957
Auditor's remuneration 28 A B 2,400 1,590
Minimum lease payments under operating leases FPIE RBEMENLLEHL
in respect of stores and plant premises B TI&EHENK 236,812 186,538
Employee benefit expense (including directors’ EERIFX(BRESR
and chief executive’s remuneration) (note 7): RE{THRABEFM) (FHEE7)
Wages and salaries TERE® 283,841 238,866
Pension scheme contributions (note (a)) RSB (a) 43,622 49,561
Other welfare H At 2 7 21,447 18,447
Advertising and promotion expenses EERERERX 55,071 22,286
Fuel cost g 14716 13,908
Utility expenses IKERX 25,541 20,832
Loss on disposal of items of property, HEME  BEREZEEREEE
plant and equipment 168 7,245
Loss on foreign exchange SN B3 1R 4,79 1248
Interest income from bank deposits RITIF A B WA (3,466) (1,159)
Interest income from available-for-sale investments A H & 1% & B F B4 (2,974) (1,873)
Interest income from structured deposits BT EF WA (5,222) (13,596)
Transportation expenses L@E‘IJ 53 55,076 42912
Note: P sE -
(@) The employees of the Group's subsidiaries which operate in mainland China are required (a)

to participate in a central pension scheme operated by the local municipal government.

These subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain percentage of the payroll costs

to the central pension scheme. The contributions are charged to profit or loss as they

become payable in accordance with rules of the central pension scheme.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S REMUNERATION
Directors’ and chief executive's remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to
the Listing Rules, section 383(1) (a), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies

Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits

of Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

EERBETHRASHH
BEETRA BBERAKIE
383(1)(a) * (b) * (o) K (D) 1§ & 2 A1 (#
BEZENRE)ARE2HHREZF
NEZRERTBRASHMMOT :

2016 2015
ZE-RE —E—hF
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARETT

Fees e 72 —

Other emoluments; Hib ¢ -

— Salaries, allowances, and benefits in kind —He  EULEYER 3,128 2,525

— Performance related bonuses —RIRIABEEAL 1,850 3017

— Pension scheme contributions —RIREFTEIMER 355 350
5,405 5,892

(@)  Independent non-executive directors

The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during the year were

() BIFHTEE
FAXNTEILIFRTEENH

as follows: ST
2016 2015

—B-RE —F-h%

RMB’ 000 RMB'000

AR®TR ARBTT

Mr. Wu Chi Keung HEREE 30 —
Mr. Chan Kam Ching PREBIZSCE 30 —
Mr. Lu Weidong BREREE 12 —
72 —

Mr. Wu Chi Keung, Mr. Chan Kam Ching and Mr. Lu Weidong were
appointed as independent non-executive directors of the Company on
24 October 2016. There were no other emoluments payable to the

independent non-executive directors during the year (2015: Nil).

MERELE BRBELENER
REAR-F-—R"F+A-+ME
AEZERARRELIFNITE
Fo FRLEEMNBILIFNT
ExNEMEMe(ZT—RF:
&)
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DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S REMUNERATION (Contd)

(b)  Executive directors, a non-executive director and the chief executive

B Wz

31 December 2016

KRB~ t=A=t-B

EERBRETHRAEHME)
(b) BTES FUTEBREST

BAE
Salaries, Pension
allowances and Performance scheme Total
benefits in kind related bonuses ~ contributions  remuneration
e 2H "B E#E
REUNER HETEA =t 8IERR Bmme
RMB'’000 RMB'’000 RMB'’000 RMB'’000
ARBTRT AR¥Tn AR®TR AR%¥Tn
2016 ZB-RE
Executive directors: HITEE
Mr. Zhou Fuyu EEHEE 885 389 71 1,345
Mr. Zhu Yulong KRTELE 636 366 7l 1,073
Mr. Wen Yong XBEE 54 353 7l 965
Mr. Hu Jiaging HERLE 525 394 71 990
Mr. Hao Lixiao B 540 348 71 959
3,127 1,850 355 5,332
Non-executive director: FHITES
Mr. Pan Pan EE G I — — |
3,128 1,850 355 5,333
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DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S REMUNERATION (Contd)

(b)  Executive directors, a non-executive director and the chief executive

7.

EERBRETHRAEHME)
(b) BTEZE  FUTEBREST

(Cont'd) BAB(E)
Salaries, Pension
allowances and Performance scheme Total
benefits in kind  related bonuses contributions remuneration
e R KR BRE
FEDEH FERATEAL BE T mMe
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETR ARBTR ARETR
2015 —E-EF
Executive directors: BITES !
Mr. Zhou Fuyu BEHTE 350 811 66 1227
Mr. Zhu Yulong RTREE 657 769 68 1494
Mr. Wen Yong XBEE 506 404 80 990
Mr. Hu Jiaging HEELE 506 515 68 1,089
Mr. Hao Lixiao B 506 518 68 1092
2,525 3017 350 5892
Non-executive director: FHITEE .
Mr. Pan Pan EBELE — — — |
2,525 3017 350 5,892

Mr. Zhou Fuyu was appointed as the Company's executive director and

chief executive officer on 8 June 2016. Mr. Zhu Yulong, Mr. Wen Yong,

Mr. Hu Jiaging and Mr. Hao Lixiao, were appointed as executive directors

of the Company on 8 June 2016. Mr. Pan Pan was appointed as a non-

executive director of the Company on 8 June 2016. Mr. Zhou Fuyu resigned

from chief-executive officer on March 22, 2017, and Mr. Hao Lixiao was

appointed as Chief Executive Officer on March 22, 2017.

There were no arrangements under which a director or the chief executive

waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the year.

BEHREER-_Z—REFRNAN
AEZERRRARITESERT
BBEH - RTERE XBR
A REERENBIBEEERN
“E-RERAN\BEZRERK
DEITES - BEEAR-T
—ANEARANBERERART
FRTES - ARMAER T
—tE=ZA T ZHEETHA
HoomBUBEEER T+t
FZAZT-HEZERTHAE
3 o
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MEXRERETAHFMNOZ
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FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS 8. IHEBRSFMAL

The five highest paid employees during the year included five directors including FRNLUSZSFHEERRANUES
the chief executive (2015: three directors and the chief executive), details of whose (PRESTTBAE)(ZE—RF : =
remuneration are set out in note 7 above. Details of the remuneration for the NEZERERTHAR)  KENME
remaining two highest paid employees for the year ended 31 December 2015, who HBEEN EXHF7 - BEZE—AF
are neither a director nor chief executive of the Company are as follows: TAZT " BUEFESHTMAUER

BEeFHER(LIARAEETRES
THRAB)MMEFESEIIMT

2016 2015
ZB-RF —T-hF
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARETT

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e EUNEVET = 1,741
Performance related bonuses RIRMEBEEL = 953
Pension scheme contributions RIRE TR = 109
— 2,803
The number of non-director and non-chief executive, highest paid employees FMETIBEEANEESTRIERS
whose remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows: THAENGSFHMEEMAZNT :
2016 2015
—E-XRE —E-hfF
Nil to HKD 1,000,000 £ % 1,000,000/ 7T — —
HKD1,000,001 to HKD 1,500,000 1,000,001 7T ZE 1,500,000 % TT =
HKD 1,500,001 to HKD2,000,000 1,500,001 770 2 2,000,000 7% 7T — —
HKD2,000,001 to HKD2,500,000 2,000,001 7T E 2,500,000 % 7T — |
— 2
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INCOME TAX

The major components of income tax expenses are as follows:

Frig®t
PRERAX N EZHEKITHWT

2016 2015

ZE-RE —E—hF

RMB’ 000 RMB'000

AR® T ARBFT

Current income tax in PRC TR E HMEH 249,482 195,363
Deferred tax (note 24) ERERIE (P 3T 24) (1,727) 87
Total tax charge for the year FARBEX HEHE 247,755 195,450

The Group is subject to income tax on an entity basis on profits arising in or
derived from the jurisdictions in which members of the Group are domiciled and

operate.

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands and British Virgin
Islands, the Group is not subject to any income tax in the Cayman Islands and

British Virgin Islands.

The provision for current income tax in PRC is based on a statutory rate of 25%
of the assessable profits of subsidiaries of the Group as determined in accordance

with the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law.

The statutory tax rate for the subsidiary in Hong Kong is 16.5% (2015: 16.5%). No
Hong Kong profits tax on the Group's subsidiary has been provided as there is no

assessable profit arising in Hong Kong during the year.

AEEARAEZERERARGRE R
RemENRDAERIELSARE
AR EBEERMAEH -

REMSEENABRLESHNRR
BB NEB BRGNS E
ENRBRABEMEM

REBEN 2% HEE R E(RIETE
BRAGIAERE) HENEB QR ER
B MR B EHMAEHEE -

BEMBARIMEERER165%(=
T—AF : 165%) o I &3 A% B
BARIMBEBRGHARER

RERNTEERBEERRBET



INCOME TAX (Contd)

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before tax using the

statutory rate for the country in which the Company and the majority of its

subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax expense at the effective tax rate is as follows:

B Wz
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Frig®t (&)
ERRBERAEFRARFARERSZ
BHBRAMEERNETERENE
MR AR BRERREFENRER
FISCEIRRINT

2016 2015

ZE-XRE —T-0%F

RMB’ 000 RMB'000

AR®T T ARETT

Profit before tax FR A& R 963,366 748,188

Tax at PRC statutory tax rate of 25% 1 25% WP BUEE R R TIE 240,841 187,047

Expenses not deductible for tax TRAERBENNER 928 657

Tax effect in connection with Reorganization BEENBBTE — 7,020
Tax effect of tax rate difference between PRCand R EIER/GINE B E B 2 T X

loss-making overseas entities ERNBBHTE 5,884 730

Tax losses utilized from previous periods BEHREBDAREER (h (155)

Adjustments in respect of current tax of

previous periods BT R E B IE AR 93 105

Tax losses not recognized AERTIAEE 10 46

Tax charge at the Group's effective rate BASEBRRRFENRIARX 247,755 195,450

DIVIDENDS

The board has recommended the payment of a final dividend of RMB0.09

(equivalent to HK$0.10) per ordinary share for the year ended 31 December 2016,

representing a total payment of approximately RMB214,683,000. The proposed

final dividend for the year is subject to the approval of the Company'’s shareholders

at the forthcoming annual general meeting,

The dividends declared by the Company's subsidiaries to the then shareholders

during the year are as follows:

e
EEeCBEMEE T —"EF1+=
A=+T—BLEERNKAARES
% R A R #0.09 T (M E 12010
Br) HERINEGHOARK
214,6830007C © FAEZE AR EA
FARNARRNEERRBEFA® L
B - HRIEE -

ZNNSTE PN SRR kS0l 3
ERMBEEMT :

2016 2015

—E—XE —E—RF

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥T R ARBETFT

Dividends declared EERKE 214,683 300,000
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EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY EQUITY
HOLDERS OF THE PARENT

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amounts is based on the profit for
the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent, and the weighted

average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

The Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in issue during the years

ended 31 December 2016 and 2015.

The calculations of basic and diluted eamings per share are based on:

BREEERERAARGERE
Bl
BREABNESRRFAGRA LR
BERBARGENRFABRETE
BENEFIBGETE -

HE-E-—XRFr-_ZT—RHF+-A
Z+—RIEFE AEETEELE
BEBITERR -

BREALEERMOFREIER

2016 2015
“E-XRE “E-RE
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARETT
Earnings 27
Profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of the ~ FIRGTE BRERAF 2
parent, used in the basic eamnings BRREBESHEA
per share calculation FEAE R A 715611 552,738
Shares Y, &)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue IR ETE GREREF] 2
during the year used in the basic eamnings FABRETEAEKRZ
per share calculation AT 81 1,959,714,279 1,895,000,000
Eamings per share: FREM :
Basic and diluted (RMB) ERR#E(ARE) 0.37 029

The weighted average number of ordinary shares, which were deemed to have
been issued throughout the year, used to calculate the basic eamnings per share for
the year ended 3| December 2015 was 1,895,000,000 shares (note 26).

The weighted average number of ordinary shares used to calculate the basic
eamings per share for the year ended 31 December 2016 included the weighted
average of 488,140,500 ordinary shares issued in connection with the Company's
IPO (note 26) and the exercise of over-allotment options and the aforesaid
1,895,000,000 ordinary shares.

BRADHRBEFEZEITHL RN
BEHBARNEHEZE-_T—1F
+tZA=+—HLEFENERELR
F 5 1,895,000,000 B A&7 (FHEE 26) ©

TRRMETOEARAERE_Z
—ANETZA=T-HLEFENER
EARZEF - 815488,140,500 % B pL A
REBERRRABE(ME26) BT RT
EREAREN LR Z METHH
PAK it 1,895,000,000 A% & A% o
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12.  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 12. #% - BERRE
Plant and Operating Motor Office Leasehold  Construction
Buildings machinery tools vehicles equipment  improvements in progress Total
BT HERES Eg1H RE BoRfk BE%E EEIR @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000
ARBTR  ARMTR AR%TR ARBTR ARETR ARETR ARETR  ARETR
December 31,2016 —Z-"ETZH
=t+-8
At December 31,2015 and R =T —HF
January 1, 2016: TZA=T-HR
“ERE-A-A:
Cost R 190,707 54,114 40,450 13992 6,276 47,209 143,739 496,487
Accumulated depreciation  Z5HHTE (37,257) (11,666) (14,807) @1 @711) (30,562) = (101,114)
Net carying amount REFE 153,450 42448 25,643 9,881 3,565 16,647 143,739 395,373
Atfanuary 1,2016,netof RZF—~F—-A—H"
accumulated depreciation  ¥1F: 25T & 153,450 42,448 25,643 9,881 3,565 16,647 143,739 395,373
Additions NE 789% 424 9,146 1,975 2436 11,755 72,955 110,404
Depreciation provided
for the year FREHRNTE (11,051 (8487) (8455) (321 (1,460) (11,734) - (44408)
Disposals e = = (694) (0] “ (794) = (1,494)
Transfer 5 97,640 97929 2823 = 11 = (198,503) =
At December 31,2016, RZF—7F
net of accumulated +ZA=+-8"
depreciation Mk 25H47E 247935 136,131 28463 8633 4648 15,874 18191 459,875
At December31, 2016 RZF—7%
tZR=+-8:
Cost R 296,106 156,284 51,374 15,966 8817 51711 18,191 598,449
Accumulated depreciation  Z5HHTE (48,171) (20,153) (22911) (7.333) (4,169) (35,837) = (138,574)
Net carrying amount REFE 247,935 136,131 28,463 8633 4,648 15,874 18,191 459,875

1 135



136

™ Notes to Financial Statements

w MBHRME

31 December 2016
RZE—~F+ZA=1+—8

2. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Contd)

12. % BERSZE (£)

Plant and Operating Motor Office Leasehold  Construction
Buildings machinery tools vehicles equipment  improvements in progress Total
BY BRRES BEIA AE AR BEXE IR @it
RMBI000 RMBI000 RMB000 RMBO00 RMBO0O RMBOOO RMBI000 RMBI000
ARETT  ARETRT  ARETR ARBTT ARETT ARETR  ARETR  ARETE
December 31, 2015 —2-1%
+-B=1-H
At December 31,2014 and R=F—E
January 1, 2015: +ZA=+-Bk
“T-R§-A-R:
Cost R 197038 55,168 #0127 13969 8,288 49481 30202 38873
Accumulated depreciation  Z3F47E (29,706) (8.868) (10861) (5468) (3441) (33015) - (91,359)
Netcamyngamount ~ REF(E 16733 46300 23266 8501 4847 16,466 30202 296914
Atfanuary 1,2015, netof RZF—HF—-A—H"
accumulated depreciation  MFR 23H 78 167332 46300 23266 850! 4847 16466 30,02 296914
Additions AE 9,65 3,568 11,075 2955 1717 14419 117662 160661
Depreciation provided
for the year FREHRNTE (9.115) (5,122) (6534) (2687) (1223) (13552) — (38233)
Disposals & (386) (1,052) (3579) (85) (1912) (625) - (7639)
Distribution to Controlling
Shareholders MERRREL A2 K (14966) — (74) (137) (979) () — (16217)
Redlassification Eiipax] 35 (6636) 700 105 234 - 5272 -
Transfer to other
intangible assets BREZENENEE — — — — — — (13) (13)
Transfer £ 995 5390 789 1229 ] — (9,284) -
At December 31,2015, R=ZT—1%F
net of accumulated +-A=+-8"
depreciation MREFE 153450 4,448 25643 988l 3565 16647 143739 395373
At December 31,2015 RZZF—HF
T-EZf-HR:
Cost KA 190,707 54114 40450 13992 6276 47209 143,739 496487
Accumulated depreciation  Z3F17E (3757) (11,666) (14807) (@) Q711 (30562) - (101,114)
Netcamyngamount ~ SREF(E 153450 4448 2643 9881 3565 16,647 143,739 395373

ZHOU HEI YA INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2016



PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Contd)

As at 31 December 2016, the Group has yet to obtain property ownership
certificates for certain buildings with an aggregate net book value of
RMB102,543,000 (2015: RMB2,185,000). The Group is still in the process of
application for the property certificates.

The Group pledged certain of its buildings to secure the Group's government
support funds which are included as other payables — non-current portion of
RMB4,000,000 and current portion of RMB3,000,000, respectively. The net
carrying amounts of these pledged buildings as at 31 December 2016 amounted to
RMB6,958,000 (2015: RMB7,218,000).

The current year additions of construction in progress included approximately
RMB552,000, which was the amortisation of land lease payments during the

construction period in 2016.

12.

B Wz

31 December 2016
RZE-RE+ZA=1T—H

mE  BEREE (£)
NRZZE—X"NE+-A=+—H ' K
SEYENRERMFELBEARKE
102543000L(Z T —RF: AR
2,1850007T)WE TEFREEEMA
BE RNEBNERBDERE -

AEELEREETET  UBBAE
BHOBGMHE  MAEBRNHEIE S
RN AE At FE (50 — SERBEH A
R 4,000,000 7T & i B 85 A R &
3,0000007C ° ZECERBFR-F
—AFETZA=+—BNEREFESR
AR 695800 T(ZE—1F : AR
#7218,0007T) °

REBRBEERIRDPEENAAR
B552.0007C * B E—NE i LHIM
B EZIE R o
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31 December 2016
RZZ—RETZA=1T—H

PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS 13. BENTHEERE
2016 2015
—E-RE —T-HF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®ETR ARETT
Carrying amount at | January R—A—H®REE 67,635 40,901
Additions during the year FRRE — 27,601
Amortisation provided during the year FRFHERE (1,419) (867)
Carrying amount at 3| December R+=ZRA=+—HHKEE 66,216 67,635

Current portion included in prepayments, deposits SPATER IR « He REAM

and other receivables FEWUTR IR BN A ED 93 (1,419) (867)
Non-current portion JEENEAEE 64,797 66,768

The Group's leasehold land is located in Wuhan City of Hubei Province and
Dongguan City of Guangdong Province, the PRC, with lease periods of 50 years.

Included in the amortization provided during the year was an amount of
approximately RMB552,000 which was capitalised as part of the construction costs
of the factory in Dongguan City, as stated in note 12.

AREBOBMA RN T BRI ERET
FERERSEM  HHRS0F -

FANETIROEHESELH AR 552,000
JC v AOBTEE 12FTH - fEARSET TR
EREAN—BHERIL -



B Wz

31 December 2016
RZE-RE+ZA=1T—H

PREPAYMENTS 14. BENRE
2016 2015
—E-RE —T-HF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®ETR ARETT
Prepayments for properties YE TR T 2,839 4,324
Deposits for purchase of prepaid land lease payments & 8 78 f L HEFIBEMRE S 13,063 —
Prepayments for purchase of other intangible assets ¥ 8 H A B & E R TE (N 5UR = 4
Prepayments for purchase of equipment BERANENKIE 6,003 11,791
21,905 16,157
OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS I5. HthBFEE
Software  Trade mark Patents Total
LA [ B st
RMB’000 RMB’ 000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBTRT AR®TR ARBTR
December 31, 2016 ZE-RFE+ZR=1+-H
Cost at January 1, 2016, RZE—R"F-A—HH
net of accumulated amortization R bR Rt R 4210 2,169 995 7,374
Additions during the year FERRE 702 — 134 836
Amortization provided for the year FREHRHE (1,374) — (123) (1,497)
R-F-RF
At December 31,2016 +ZR=+—H 3,538 2,169 1,006 6,713
i SN2
At December 31, 2016: +ZR=+—H:
Cost KR 5,641 2,169 1,137 8,947
Accumulated amortization 25 (2,103) = (131) (2,234)
Net carrying amount FEFE 3,538 2,169 1,006 6,713
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31 December 2016
RZZ—RETZA=1T—H

OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Contd) 15. HitBEEE (&)
Software Trade mark Patents Total
EIGES [ELES £y Bt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARBTT ARETT AR®T:
December 31,2015 —E-RF+ZA=1-H
Cost at January |, 2015, RZE-RAF—A—HH
net of accumulated amortization BN - Bk RS 3,773 — — 3773
Additions during the year ERFE 1,291 2,169 1,003 4463
Transfer from construction in progress 821 B EE T2 I3 — — I3
Amortization provided during the year & AFTHE A& 5 (949) — (8) (957)
Deemed distribution to the
Controlling Shareholders RAERERRR DR (18) — — (18)
RZZ-hF
At December 31,2015 +ZRA=+—H 4210 2,169 995 7,374
RZE—h%F
At December 31, 2015: +-A=+-H
Cost KR 4987 2,169 1,003 8,159
Accumulated amortization LS 3! (777) — (8) (785)
Net carrying amount BEFE 4210 2,169 995 7374

The Group's trade mark is registered in the PRC and renewable under local
legislation. The Group intends to continuously renew the trade mark upon its
expiry of registered protection duration and such renewal is expected to be at little
cost. The trade mark is expected to continuously contribute to the net cash inflow

of the Group.

ASEHERFEEIMLRER R
REE - AREFERBROEME
BHIHKEESE MEREER
HAFLEER BREMBHEY
AEBNBSRAFRELTR -



OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Contd)

Impairment testing of other intangible assets — trademark

The Group's trade mark has indefinite useful lives and is allocated to the Group's
Zhou Hei Ya Business, which is treated as a cash-generating unit for impairment

testing:

Zhou Hei Ya Business cash-generating unit

The recoverable amount of Zhou Hei Ya Business cash-generating unit has been
determined based on a value in use calculation using cash flow projections based on
financial budgets covering a five-year period approved by senior management. The
discount rate applied to the cash flow projections is 13% and cash flows beyond
the five-year period are extrapolated using a growth rate of 6%, which is the same

as the long term average growth rate of casual braised food industry.

The carrying amounts of trade mark allocated to the cash-generating unit of the
operation of Zhou Hei Ya Business are RMB2,169,000 as of 31 December 2016
(2015: RMB2,169,000).

Assumption were used in the value in use calculation of Zhou Hei Ya Business
cash-generating unit for 3|1 December 2016. The following describes each key
assumption on which management has based its cash flow projections to undertake

impairment testing of trademark:

Budgeted income — The basis used to determine the value assigned to income
is the average income achieved in the year immediately before the budget year,

increased for expected efficiency improvements and expected market development.

Discount rates — The discount rates used are before tax and reflect specific risks

relating to the relevant unit.

B Wz

31 December 2016
RZE-RE+ZA=1T—H

HitBPEE (&)

Htt B EENRENR -BE
AEBENRRARERERFH ¥
NREEFAKENBAREEY  EHA
ENREANATRASREEEEN :

FRBERFEELEN
AEBEBEREELEMNMNAKES
BONEREEFEARERERE
FritERERFHRMTBEEENS
SHERAMET - BARBRERE
WERNBRXA 3% MAFHHERZ
K& R ERM 6% HIBRRIMHE - £2
KE MR RITENRBTHEREE
G

HE-Z-AFT-A=+t-8 %
REREARBEBREELEMN
EHEEEEARKE2169,00T(ZF
—RF : AR¥2,169,0007T) °

BREIAR-_F-—RF+-A=1—
AREBEEXBReEELEUMNERE
B - UTREEEEHERER
RAEBRAETAREENEN SR

TEER

RERA-AUBERAEBENEE
RRERREFHFEMEENFY
WA - ERRHMERBGE KRBT 5
BREMIEM -

BRE-FANRBRERRT AR
X WIRRARHEBEEANSERR
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31 December 2016
RZZ—RETZA=1T—H

INVENTORIES 6. F&
2016 2015
—E-RE —T-HF
RMB’ 000 RMB'000
ARETR ARBTFIT

At cost: R

Raw materials RM ¥ 158,720 104,890
Work in progress TR 6,284 3396
Finished goods UK 29,345 19,069
Packaging materials BEME 11,875 6718
206,224 134,073

TRADE RECEIVABLES

17. BEZEWRIE

2016 2015
- —T-h%F
RMB' 000 RMB'000

AR®T R ARBETT

Trade receivables B 5 KR 7,882 6356
Less: Impairment provision R EREE — —
7,882 6,356

The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables
to minimize credit risk. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by senior
management. In view of the aforementioned and the fact that the Group's
trade receivables related to various diversified customers, there is no significant
concentration of credit risk. The Group does not hold any collateral or other
credit enhancements over its trade receivable balances. Trade receivables are non-

interest-bearing.

7R 6% 1B = SO R W e B MR R OB 7 5 R
BEH - AEEREERER - S&
EEETHmaaRESRc ENEX
Ptk AR EE S RERRAS R
RAEFERNZE HALEENEM
SRR ASELERELEHRER
RIBBSRF A EMER R EMIEE
Bt o B RBFIENEE



TRADE RECEIVABLES (Contd) 17.

An aged analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of the reporting period,

based on the invoice date and net of provisions, is as follows:

B Wz

31 December 2016
RZE-RE+ZA=1T—H

EZRWRE (&)
HEPRRERAHIDNE HRNK
FE(CHREE) OREATIT

2016 2015
—E-RF “E—hF
RMB’ 000 RMB'000

AR®T T ARET T

Within 3 months 3EARRA 7,854 6,281
Over 3 months @A E 28 75
7,882 6,356

Based on past experience, the directors are of the opinion that no provision
for impairment is necessary in respect of these balances as there has not been
a significant change in credit quality and the balances are still considered fully

recoverable.

All of the receivables were neither past due nor impaired and relate to diversified

customers for whom there was no recent history of default.

REBERLR EFRASERNERE
ZVEEAEHHERDEAR/T R
e RBERAFERELRE
B -

FT 8 FE WA IR BE 4 8 B 7R R O 1B L B2
T ERERELNTRAEFER -
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31 December 2016
RZZ—RETZA=1T—H

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 18. FMNRIE - RERHMEKRKIE
2016 2015
—E-RE —T-HF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T R ARETT
Prepaid rents BRHEE 57,102 45065
Advances to employees RTREENEXH 2,758 3299
Advances to suppliers faTHERMTENR 2,693 6,324
Deductible input VAT AIHIRGE TR B 14,462 4358
Current portion of prepaid land lease payments Bt ERIBER RS 1,419 867
Structured deposits ERMER 685,317 10,000
Others Hith 22,332 8,162
786,083 78,075

None of the above assets is either past due or impaired. The financial assets

included in the above balances relate to receivables for which there was no recent

TAEESEBRINE - FTA LM
RBHENEREERTHNYERRESL

history of defaullt. HRENRIE B R -
AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 19. AHHERE
2016 2015
—E-XF —E-hfF
RMB’000 RMB' 000
ARBTR ARBTT
Unlisted equity investments, at fair value FLETRARE - HATE 10,000 100,000

The above investments represent money market funds which were designated as

available-for-sale financial assets and have no fixed maturity date or coupon rate.

HEEREERAHNESREE
MEBTSES  BYWEETEERH

FETES



20.

RESTRICTED CASH AND CASH IN TRANSIT

20.

B Wz

31 December 2016
RZE-RE+ZA=1T—H

SREFRERERES
2016 2015
—E-RE —T-HF
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARETT

Restricted cash SRR

60 560

Restricted cash represented deposits for online promotions, which are non-interest
bearing cash deposits paid to third party online marketplaces for promotion

activities and will be returned upon the completion of such activities.

All of the restricted cash of the Group is denominated in RMB as of 31 December
2016.

FRHBLEBLREES  BRR
WEBMESFBLABTAZAN
THERSRS  BREMEDHRK
iR -

R-B-7E+-A=+-0 A%
EAE ERAB D AR E -

2016 2015
—E-RE “E—RF
RMB’ 000 RMB' 000

AR®ETR ARETT

Cash in transit EgRe

7,447 5417

The cash in transit represents the sales proceeds settled by debit cards or credit

cards, which have yet to be credited by the banks to the Group.

EnBeENERRRERFEER
RITHARF AR S BROHETISHR °
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31 December 2016
RZZ—RETZA=1T—H

CASH AND BANK RERBITER
2016 2015
—E-RE —T-HF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T R ARETT
Cash and cash in bank Fe RRITERFER 99,941 82,338
Short-term deposits ySEENER A 2,361,319 —
2,461,260 82,338
Term deposits with maturity over three months = A A EFERE BAE R 2,260,551 —
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEED 200,709 82,338

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank balances and time deposits
of the Group denominated in RMB amounted to RMBI105,151,000 (2015:
RMB61,956,000).

The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies, however, under Mainland
China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement,
Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to
exchange RMB for other currencies through banks authorized to conduct foreign

exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates. The
bank balances are deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent history of

default.

The carrying amounts of the cash and cash equivalents approximate to their fair

values.

RBERR  AEEUARBER
ReRRIERRERERRBARE
105,151,000(ZT—RF: AR
61,956,0007T) °

ARBTEEmLBRELES &
- ARE B A(OMNEE 2 1RH) K
(HE EERNEEERE) A%
ErERREREREINEXHRRT
HARE S BAREMLER -

RITABMEFRRERE B RITERA
KEF BN ERIAN L - |RITERT
ENEESBEAHRYEERESLD
RAT

RehReEEYNREAEEARY
BER%E -
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23.

B Wz

31 December 2016
RZE-RE+ZA=1T—H

TRADE PAYABLES 2. BEEMNFRE
An aged analysis of outstanding trade payables as at the end of the reporting RBERREERAHEA DRI
period, based on the invoice date, is as follows: BHRNFENRRANOT
2016 2015
—E-RF “T-01%F
RMB’ 000 RMB'000
AR® TR ARETT
Within 3 months =EAR 77,410 40,038
3 to 6 months =2XEA 964 7407
Over 6 months NMEAMKE 2,747 —
Over |2 months TZEANRE 860 2421
81,981 49,866
The trade payables are non-interest-bearing. EHENFTIBDGE
OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 23 HittENFERES R
2016 2015
—E-RF —FT-01%F
RMB’ 000 RMB'000
AR®T R ARBETT
Current: mE :
Advances from customers B PR 65,730 35,245
Payables for purchase of property, BEME BER
plant and equipment R ERN IR 23,161 16,218
Payables for operating leases IRETHERNIE 9,576 1921
Payroll and welfare payable et L& RAaF 118,441 120,111
Other tax payables HAoth e IR 31,678 25,066
Deposits received from suppliers BHERURNES 3,300 4,755
Professional expense EXEH 12,465 —
Other payables HoAh & 5 IR 24,757 15,668
289,108 218984
Non-current: ERE -
Other payables HoAh & 5 500 4,000 7,000
293,108 225984
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31 December 2016
RZZ—RETZA=1T—H

24. DEFERRED TAX 24, IEEBIR
The movements in deferred tax assets during the year are as follows: FRREHBEENZEEWT
Deferred tax assets EEREEE
Other expenses
in relation to

cancellation of

Accumulated of licensing Expenses Government
losses  arrangements accrued grants Others Total
SERUH
TZHRBN
ZiTHR L JEstH X B 2t st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTR  ARMTR  ARBTR  ARMTR  ARETR  ARETR

R-Z-1F
At December 31,2015 +ZA=1-8k
adatnay | 016 —E-xE-F-A 3086 - 16578 419 %7 )

Deferred tax charged/(credit)
to proft orloss for the year AR E /(5 A) B
(note 9) EER(M39) 1013 - 122 594 ) |77

At December 31,2016 RZE-R"E+-A=+-H 4099 — 16,700 4785 985 26,569
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31 December 2016
RZE-RE+ZA=1T—H

24. DEFERRED TAX (Contd) 24. EEHIE (&)
Deferred tax assets (Cont d) EEREEEE)
Other expenses
in relation to

cancelation of

Accumulated of licensing Expenses Government

losses amangements accrued grants Others Total
RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB'000 RMB 000 RMB'000 RMB 000

BERR

AZHERA
ZitBR HfbFX iR B8 it st
ARETT  AREBTT  ARETR  ARETT  AREBTRT  ARETR

RZE-IF
At December 31,2014 tZA=t-Ak

and at January [, 2015 —Z-1%-A-H 384 6771 12500 4340 936 214931

Deferred tax charged/(credit)
to profit or loss for the year ERIIBRE /(5T A)

(note 9) BROELHEMT) 2702 (6771) 4078 (1499) 53 (87)
Distrbution to the

Controling Shareholders ~ MERRARR fEH B IR - - - - () @)
AtDecember 31,2015 R=F-AF+ZA=1-H 3086 - 16578 4191 %7 14842
The Group had unused tax losses available for offsetting against future profits in RZZE-RE+ZA=+—H" ' K&
respect of certain subsidiaries of RMB477,000 as at 3| December 2016 (2015: 2Rl B AR E T M B R BIRK
RMB517,000) for which no deferred tax assets have been recognized. No deferred H MBI AREATIEE R AR 477,000
tax assets have been recognized in respect of these losses because it is uncertain T(ZE—RF: AR¥SI170007T)
that there are future available taxable profits of these subsidiaries to utilize the tax MR ERELEHRIBEE - AR
losses. The available period of the unused tax losses will expire in one to five years THRELZENBARRE B RAIEAN
for offsetting against future taxable profits. BB ARRAEMBRER - SR

BERBEBECHZSHRERER -
FLHE SRR B ER B A T 5 KRB A
REBENAERNEER -—E0F
JE °

E%fﬁ%ﬂ%‘f}ﬁﬁﬁﬂigg | 149
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31 December 2016
RZE—~F+ZA=1+—8

DEFERRED TAX (Contd) 24. EEHIE (&)
Deferred tax assets (Cont d) EEREEEE)
Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10% withholding tax is levied BREBE(PBECEMGHE) R
on dividends declared to foreign investors from the foreign investment enterprises MBS BN E R B R ERFEINRE
established in Mainland China. The requirement is effective from | January 2008 EEROREBBEHM 06BN
and applies to eamings after 31 December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate ZREB_ZTNEF-A-BREX
may be applied if there is a tax treaty between Mainland China and the jurisdiction FERAR —EE+tF+-_A=1+—H
of the foreign investors. The Group is therefore liable for withholding taxes on BEENRN - B8R EF M
dividends distributable by those subsidiaries established in Mainland China in BEMERDERR A B HAGL - 7
respect of earnings generated from | January 2008. Under the current organization BEAREHEMHE - it XEE
and operation structure, the Group's applicable rate is 10%. The aggregate ARRFE AR NZENBRE]
amounts of temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries RZZZENF-A—-BEMEEMNMN
in Mainland China for which deferred tax liabilities have not been recognized DIRE IR SBMTEHH - RIBEE AIA
amounted to approximately RMBI,020,235,000 as at 31 December 2016 (2015: BLRERE  AEENERNER
RMB277,791,000). 0% RZE—RFE+_A=+—H"
ERATFHEAMHBEARABELE
RECHABNEREZREANR
AR# 1020235000 (=T —H%F :
AR®277,791,0007T) °
As of 31 December 2016, no deferred tax liability has been recognized for HE-_Z—RF+A=+—RH ¥
withholding taxes that would be payable on unremitted earnings of the Group's NN E TN bl AvAE KN
subsidiaries established in Mainland China (2015: Nil). In the opinion of the ) B AR B & A T B 53 R A B FE A A
directors, it is not probable that these subsidiaries will distribute such earnings to ELHERB( T -0 &) &
foreign entities in the foreseeable future. ERR - ZENBAREANERLKRR
PR ERFIERDKAREH
GOVERNMENT GRANTS 25. BB
2016 2015
—EB-RE —E-hfF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETT
Non-current ERE 18,240 16,168
Current ik 996 597
19,236 16,765




25.

26.

GOVERNMENT GRANTS (Contd)

B Wz

31 December 2016
RZE-RE+ZA=1T—H

25. BUN®BE (&)

The movements in government grants during the year are as follows: FABFHEHZEBWT
Non-current Current Total
FRE i) Bt
RMB’ 000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT AR®TR AR®TR
At January [, 2015 RZE—RF—H—H 16,631 730 17,361
Released to current portion BERBEHD (463) 463 —
Released to profit or loss ek — (596) (596)
At December 31, 2015 RN_E-—hF+-_HA=1+—H 16,168 597 16,765
At January |, 2016 RZZE—R¥—HA—H 16,168 597 16,765
Received during the year F A IER 3,050 500 3,550
Released to current portion BRERBHBS (978) 978 —
Released to profit or loss BEER = (1,079) (1,079)
At December 31,2016 R-F—R"¥+-A=1+—H 18,240 996 19,236
SHARE CAPITAL 26. BRA
2016 2015
= —T-hF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETTT
Authorised: ETE ¢
50,000,000,000 A%
BHREE0.000001 ETHRH
50,000,000,000 shares of USD0.000001 each (ZZ—A%F : 5,000,000
(2015: 5,000,000 shares of USD0.0! each) BRREE0.01 ETHIMRS) 306 306
Issued and fully paid: BEITRHR
2,383,140,500 fx
SARME(E0.000001 ETHRH
2,383,140,500 shares of USD0.00000! each (ZZ—0%F : 100,000 8%
(2015: 100,000 shares of USDO.0! each) FREE0I ETMRD) 16 6
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31 December 2016
RZZ—RETZA=1T—H

SHARE CAPITAL (Contd)

The Company was incorporated as an exempted company with limited liability in
the Cayman Islands on |3 May 2015 with an authorized share capital of USD50,000
divided into shares of 5,000,000 shares of USDO.0I each. On |5 May 2015, the
Company issued | ordinary shares of to Healthy Origin Holdings Limited, which is
wholly owned by the Controlling Shareholders, at par value of USDO.0I.

On 23 July 2015, the Company issued 99,999 ordinary shares of USD0.0I each
to the shareholders of the Company as fully paid at USD240 per share with total
consideration of USD24,000,000, equivalent to RMB146,811,000. The excess of
consideration of USD24,000,000 over the par value of USD1,000 of the Company's

issued ordinary shares was credited to the share premium.

On 24 October 2016, the Company subdivided each of its issued and
unissued shares of par value USDO0.0| each into 10,000 Shares of par value
USD0.000001 each, such that following the sub-division, the authorized share
capital of the Company is USD50,000 divided into 50,000,000,000 shares of
par value USD0.000001 each. Accordingly the issued and fully paid share capital
of the Company is USD 1,000 divided into 1,000,000,000 shares of par value
USD0.000001 each.

The Company effected the capitalization of share premium into 895,000,000
ordinary shares by applying USD895 to pay up in full at par for allotment and issue
to the then existing shareholders as of the date immediately preceding the IPO
successful listing. The issued and fully paid ordinary shares of the Company was

1,895,000,000 shares as at 31 December 2015,
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27.

SHARE CAPITAL (Contd)
On I'l November 2016, the Company issued 424,470,000 shares in its global
offering at the price of HKD5.88 per share.

On 30 November 2016, the Company issued additional 63,670,500 shares at the
price of HKD5.88 per share as a result of exercise of over-allotment options by the

underwriters.

RESERVES
The amount of the Group's reserves and the movements therein for the current
and prior years are presented in the consolidated statements of changes in equity

on pages 84 to 85 of the financial statements.

Share premium
The share premium of the Group represents the amount paid by shareholders
for capital injection in excess of its nominal value. Details of the movements in the

share premium are set out in the consolidated statements of changes in equity.

Merger reserve
The merger reserve of the Group represents the reserve arose pursuant to the
Reorganization as mentioned in note 2.1. Details of the movements in the merger

reserve are set out in the consolidated statements of changes in equity.

Statutory reserve

In accordance with the Company Law of the PRC, certain subsidiaries of the
Group which are domestic enterprises are required to allocate a certain portion
(not less than 10%) of their profit after tax, as determined in accordance with the
relevant PRC accounting standards, to their respective statutory surplus reserves
until the reserves reach 50% of their respective registered capital. Subject to certain
restrictions set out in the Company Law of the PRC, part of the statutory surplus
reserve may be converted to increase share capital, provided that the remaining

balance after the capitalization is not less than 25% of the registered capital.

Exchange fluctuation reserve
The exchange fluctuation reserve is used to record exchange differences arising

from the translation of the financial statements of the foreign subsidiaries.
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had no significant contingent

liabilities.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS
Detail of the Group's pledge of assets is included in note 14 to the financial

statements.

OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

As lessee

The Group is the lessee in respect of a number of properties and land held under
operating leases. The leases typically run for an initial period of one to five years,

with an option to renew the leases when all the terms are renegotiated.

At 31 December 2016, the Group had total future minimum lease payments under

non-cancellable operating leases falling due as follows:

28.

29.

30.

RAREE
RBEPR AERELBEEALRE
AEER

ERAEBREERENGEE  SRY
TEHRERMIET 140

REHERH

fEREBEA
ASERRBEREEHEMFETYR
EAMEAERA - ZEHENNRH
RATR—ERF RAEKRRER
ERRIERE -

RZE—RF+A=+—B K&
BRETARELCEHENTHFEBH
IR RRERAENTABNT

2016 2015

—B-RE T

RMB’ 000 RMB'000

AR® TR ARETT

Within one year —FR 126,454 93,167
In the second to fifth years, inclusive _ERF(REEREMEF) 195,074 (46,511
After five years Gy 4,692 3,384
326,220 243,062




31

COMMITMENTS

In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed in note 30 above, the

Group had the following capital commitments at the end of the reporting period:

31,
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A

L

2 EHAE

o REBERKR AREETIER

A

2016 2015
—E—RE “E-hF
RMB’ 000 RMB'000
AR®BTR ARETFT

Contracted, but not provided for: ERIKEREE -
Land and buildings T REF 125,142 13,669
Plant and machinery B 17,019 16976
142,161 30,645
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

3)

Name and relationship of related parties

32. BEMAXRS

2)

Related parties for the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2016 were as

follows:

Name

mE/ 8

Relationship

ZES

B B RAEE
BE-F-HFR-F—AF
TZA=1+—-BLLFENRE
LU

Mr. Zhou Fuyu and Ms. Tang Jianfang
BAEREEREET XL
Wouhan ZHY Holdco

FUEE RS AT

Transactions with related parties

Ultimate controlling shareholder
BRIZERARR

Subsidiary controlled by Controlling Shareholders and became a related party

of the Group since 26 July 2015 after the Reorganization
PRBRERNNBAR KNERRE —T-—RFtAZTRERKA

ZN-SE o) b

b)

The following transactions were carried out with related parties:

REBL2R5
THRBEB T 2R

2016 2015
—E-RE —T-hF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT R ARETT
Rental expense: MERX :

Mr. Zhou Fuyu and Ms. Tang Jianfang (i) BAEBEEREES XL () 2,054 1963

Purchase of other intangible assets: BERZAREERAR
Wuhan ZHY Holdco (ii) BILEE (i) — 3,172

Notes:

(i) Pursuant to the agreements between the Group and the Controlling Shareholders,

Hubei Shiji Yuanjing leased five stores in 2016 (2015: five) from the Controlling

Shareholders for its operation with periods ranging from | to 3 years. The lease

terms were mutually agreed between parties.

() BEASEEERRRZEOR
& L ERSR T —RF
AERRREESH (ZF—8
F:5f) PIEAREE - HIR
NFIE3F - BEBRKETOS
HEHE -



32.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Contd)

b)  Transactions with related parties (Contd)
(if) On 15 August 2015, ZHY Development entered into an agreement with Wuhan
ZHY Holdco to acquire trademark at the consideration of RMB2,169,000. On 10
November 2015, Hubei Zhou Hei Ya Foods Industrial Park Co., Ltd. entered into
agreements with Wuhan ZHY Holdco to acquire patents at the consideration of

RMB,003,000.

¢)  Balances with related parties
The Group had the following significant balances with its related parties at
the end of the reporting period:

() Due from the Controlling Shareholders:
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BBAIXRS (&)

by HEEBEZXZ(E)

iy HZT—AFN\AT+HEA AR
IS8 R EFEERBIERAFR]
S BEAMEEREE - RER
AR#2,169,0007 c RZT—F
F+—A+H  HLEARBER®
TXEARARENER RS
NS RATEN - v RE e
ERAR,0030007T ©

o EHBEBLINER

RRERK - REBERB@EL A

THER&S -

() MR FNE -

2016 2015

—B-RF e

RMB’ 000 RMB'000

ARBT T ARBFT

Mr. Zhou Fuyu and Ms. Tang Jianfang (i) EE R LEMERF L L () 160 149

Amounts due from the Controlling Shareholders were interest-free,

unsecured and have no fixed terms of repayment.

U ZRRR KBRS
B BRI N EEEEN

HR -
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32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Contd)

c)  Balances with related parties (Cont d)

(i

(il

158 |

Due to a related party:

32.

BBAIXRS (&)

o EBBENERE)
(i) PR —HB R A 508 -

2016 2015

—B-RE e

RMB’ 000 RMB'000

ARETR ARBETT

Wuhan ZHY Holdco REFRBIERAG — 202,771

The amounts due to a related party represent the dividends declared
by the subsidiaries of the Company before the Reorganization, which
had been fully settled during the year ended 31 December 2016. The
amounts due to a related party were interest-free, unsecured and

have no fixed terms of repayment.

Due to the Controlling Shareholders:

e — & BB T R B
RAIMBRARAREARNE
KRS - HEREEC
T-RE+-HA=1+—H
HFEEERBET - BN E
BARARRS  EBEM
FAEEE R SR

(i) FERTIERARAR SR SRR -

2016 2015
—B—XRE —E-hE

RMB’000 RMB' 000

ARBTR ARETT

Mr. Zhou Fuyu and Ms. Tang Jianfang ~ AIB A EREBEES L+ — 7575

Amounts due to the Controlling Shareholders were interest-free,

unsecured and have no fixed terms of repayment.

EANZERKRRRELR
B BEWRERETER

HRR -



32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Contd)

d)  Compensation of key management personnel of the Group:
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3. BEARS (&)

d FEETEEEASHNEH :

2016 2015

—E-RE —T-RF

RMB’ 000 RMB'000

ARMF T ARBTTT

Short term employee benefits RHIEB A 7,401 7,521
Post-employee benefits BERR 1A 570 532
7971 8,053

Further details of directors’ and the chief executive's emoluments are

included in note 7 to the financial statements.

EXNBERITRAEMEHE—
FHIEERHBERMET
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33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 33. SRIA-RERED
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments as at the RBEPRR SEcRITANKEE
end of the reporting period are as follows: PUNNE
2016 —E-RE
Financial assets EREE
Available-
for-sale
Loans and financial
receivables assets Total
ERR AHHE
e A SREE Act

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARB®TRT AR®BTR ARETR

Trade receivables B 5 RWHIE 7,882 = 7,882
Financial assets included in prepayments, SPATER IR - He REAM

deposits and other receivables JEWHIBRN S REE 702,808 = 702,808
Rental deposits ME®R® 48,041 — 48,04
Available-for-sale investments AHHERE — 10,000 10,000
Due from the Controlling Shareholders JRE M 1 A B R SR IR 160 — 160
Restricted cash XREIRS 60 — 60
Cash in transit EgRe 7,447 — 7,447
Cash and cash equivalents RekRe%EEY 2,461,260 — 2,461,260
3,227,658 10,000 3,237,658

Financial liabilities e =C ]
Financial
liabilities at

amortised cost

REBHERE

ARNERMEE

RMB’ 000

AR®T R

Trade payables B S ENRIE 81,981
Financial liabilities included in other payables and accruals st AEMERNFIBREFTERNERARE 108,936
190,917
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (Contd)

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments as at the

B Wz

31 December 2016
RZE-RE+ZA=1T—H

33. LRMIBE-RERH&ES (&)

REEHR SRR TANKEE

end of the reporting period are as follows (Cont d): IR (E) -
2015 —E-F1F
Financial assets tREE
Available-
for-sale
Loans and financial
receivables assets Total
Rk ATt E
R RIR TREE st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT AR®TT ARETR
Trade receivables B SR EIR 6,356 — 6,356
Financial assets included in prepayments, SPATERFIE - e K
deposits and other receivables Hih BB R EE 18,162 — 18,162
Rental deposits ME®Z® 38,586 — 38,586
Available-for-sale investments AEHERE — 100,000 100,000
Due from the Controlling Shareholders JRE o422 PR i 2R R IB 149 — 149
Restricted cash XRHIHE 560 — 560
Cash in transit EgBe 5417 — 5417
Cash and cash equivalents RekReZEED 82,338 — 82,338
151,568 100,000 251,568
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (Contd) 33. SRIA-RER&ES (&)
Financial liabilities tREE
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
g 312N
ARHERAE
RMB'000
ARBTT
Trade payables B ENRIE 49,866
Financial liabilities included in other payables and accruals ~ FTAHMENREBEREFERNEHEE 70,629
Due to a related party JE 1 — & BB 77 ;B 202,771
Due to the Controlling
Shareholders R {1 122 PR B BR R IE 7575
330,841




34.

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and cash equivalents, cash
in transit, restricted cash, available-for-sale investments, rental deposits, trade
receivables, due from the Controlling Shareholders, financial assets included in
prepayments, deposits and other receivables, trade payables, financial liabilities
included in other payables and accruals due to a related party, due to the
Controlling Shareholders and dividends payable approximate to their carrying

amounts largely due to the short term maturities of these instruments.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at the amount at
which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing

parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale.

Fair value hierarchy
The fair value measurement hierarchy of the Group's available-for-sale investments
was all of Level 2 — significant observable inputs as at the end of the reporting

period.

During the reporting period, there were no transfers of fair value measurements
between Level | — quoted price in active markets and Level 2 — significant
observable inputs and no transfers into or out of Level 3 — significant unobservable

inputs.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group's principal financial instruments comprise cash and cash equivalent.
The main purpose of these financial instruments is to raise finance for the Group's
operations. The Group has various other financial assets and liabilities, such as trade
and other receivables and trade and other payables, which arise directly from its

operations.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial instruments are foreign currency
risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The board of Directors reviews and agrees policies

for managing each of these risks and they are summarized below.

Foreign currency risk

During the years ended 3| December 2016 and 2015, the Group had cash at
banks denominated in foreign currencies, and was exposed to foreign exchange
risk arising from various currency exposures, primarily with respect to USD. Foreign
exchange risk arises from future commercial transactions and recognised assets and

liabilities.

Details of cash and cash equivalents denominated in RMB as at 31 December 2016

and 2015 are disclosed in note 21.
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35.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES 35.

(Cont'd)

Foreign currency risk (Cont'd)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of the reporting period
to a reasonably possible change in the USD exchange rate, with all other variables
held constant, of the Group's profit before tax due to changes in the retranslated

value of monetary assets:

B Wz

31 December 2016
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TREREERERIEK (&)

SNERR(E)
TRIIFAEER RS BAROBBA
EHEENRE A EYETES
AT BT ERET
%) GRS -

Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) (decrease)

in the US$ in profit
exchange rate before tax

EnER BRE AT R
R EH/(TH)

% RMB’000
% ARBTR

December 31,2016 —E-RE+ZA=+—H

If RMB weakens against USD AEARBHETRE (5) 44,677

If RMB strengthens against USD EANRERETIE 5 (44,677)

December 31,2015 —E-REt+ZA=1T—H

If RMB weakens against USD EAREHETLRE 5) 1,019

If RMB strengthens against USD aAREHETIHE 5 (1,019)

Credit risk FERK

The Group trades only with recognized and creditworthy third parties and related
parties. It is the Group's policy that all customers who wish to trade on credit
terms are subject to credit verification procedures. In addition, receivable balances
are monitored on an ongoing basis and the Group's exposure to bad debts is not

significant.

All the Group's cash and cash equivalents are held in major financial institutions

located in Mainland China, which do not have a recent history of default.

AEBERERIREESENE=
HTRBBET RS AEENBRSM
FREREERIRINEFPERE
MERERFF - I BRESKFER
B mMARBEMAERNZERERIT
TEK-

AEENMERE RRSFEMHR
FREAMNEBTIHENCENEIES
BEERSE -
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES 35.

(Cont'd)

Credit risk (Contd)

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, cash in transit, restricted
cash, available-for-sale investments, due from the Controlling Shareholders, trade
receivables and financial assets included in prepayments, deposits and other
receivables included in the consolidated statements of financial position represent
the Group's maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to its financial assets. The

Group has no other financial assets which carry significant exposure to credit risk.

Liquidity risk

The Group's policy is to monitor regularly the current and expected liquidity
requirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and adequate
committed lines of funding from major financial institutions to meet its liquidity

requirements in the short and long term.

TREREEREREEK (&)

FEmRE(E)

RERMBEMARARNREE MR ®
TEY ‘iz XRHRL A
HHERE  HERD  BRERRK
RHE - B 5 RWHIR Rt AN
B Re MEMBYANEREE
MERERRARERESBEEM
AXMEAEERREE - AEEYL
BEMMEEAEERBNEREE -

RBESmE
ASENBRRBTEHREERT NAY
MBEHFR  UERFAEEERR
RECHERBETIZCRHBBIER
ANAREERER NENARE
REEEPNRSHESEL

Group rEE
2016
Less than 3to 12 | to5
On demand 3 months months years Total
ZE-RE
=2
RER SR=fEA +=f8A ¥k @t
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000
ARBTT AR®TT AR%Trn AR¥Tn ARET:
Trade payables BHENE 4,571 77,410 — — 81,981
Financial liabilties included in ST AE M BRI R
other payables and accruals EAERNEREE 104,936 — — 4,000 108,936
109,507 77410 — 4,000 190917
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES 35. SRIEREEEEREE (£)
(Contd)
Liquidity risk (Cont d) REBESER(E)
Group (Contd) rEE(E)
2015
Less than 3to 12 [t05
On demand 3 months months years Total
—T-hF
-z
BEX JIR=@A +={@A —ERF @t
RMB' 000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB' 000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTRT ARETT ARETR ARETRT
Trade payables BHREMNHIE 9,828 40,038 — — 49,866
Due to the
Controlling Shareholders FEfHERAR R AIE 7,575 — — — 7,575
Financial liabilities included in ATAR M ERFIER
other payables and accruals ErERNEREE 63,629 — — 7,000 70,629
Due to a related party JEf— R s 5 30E 202,771 — — — 202,771
283,803 40,038 — 7,000 330,841
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(Cont'd)

Capital management

The primary objective of the Group's capital management is to safeguard the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern and to maintain healthy capital ratios

in order to support its business and maximize shareholders' value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in light of
changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets.
To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend

payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is interest-bearing bank
borrowings less cash equivalent divided by the total equity. As at 31 December
2015 and 2016, the Group had no interest-bearing bank borrowings and thus no

gearing ratio was calculated.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
No material events were undertaken by the Group subsequent to 31 December

2016.
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37.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of the Company at the end of
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37. FRARBEMRRE

ARAHEREMROYBARKE

the reporting period is as follows: BT
2016 2015
—B-AE e
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®BTR ARBTTT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Investment in a subsidiary R—EHRBARIERE 146,806 146,806
Total non-current assets FRBEELE 146,806 146,806
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables FBRFIE - Re REMEYIE 6,609 —
Cash and cash equivalents RekBReEEY 2,255,337 622
Amount from a subsidiary & I — R P B 2 RIS IR 224,980 —
Total current assets REBEERE 2,486,926 622
CURRENT LIABILITIES RBAE
Amount due to a subsidiary e — R B 2 R = 649
Other payables and accruals Hi e RIB R EE R 12,666 —
Total current liabilities ok p=RifoE-C 12,666 649
NET CURRENT ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) RBEE/(BE)FE 2,474,260 27)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES REERTDRE 2,621,066 146,779
NET ASSETS EEFE 2,621,066 146,779
EQUITY B
Share capital FRA 16 6
Reserves (note) () 2,621,050 146,773
TOTAL EQUITY gL 2,621,066 146,779
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RZZ—RETZA=1T—H

37. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY (Contd) 37. ARARHBMREK (£)

Note: F5T
A summary of the Company's reserves is as follows: RARIFERRMT -
Exchange
Share fluctuation Accumulative
premium reserve losses Total
BRoEE EXRBDEHE RETER @t
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT AR®TR AR®TR AR®TR

Balance at January I, 2015 R=Z-A—-F—-AN#EsH — — — —
Total comprehensive income for the year FR2E k=2 — 15 (47) (32)
Issue of shares BTN 146,805 — — 146,805
At December 31,2015 RZB-AF+=ZA=+—-8H 146,805 5 (47) 146,773
Balance at January 1, 2016 N-Z—x—F—BW#&EH 146,805 5 (47) 146,773
Total comprehensive income for the year X2 mERAE = = (15,324) (15,324)
Issue of shares BITRG (6) — — (6)
Issuance of shares for the IPO HERLRABEETRN 2,520,665 — — 2,520,665
Share issue expenses WRADEAFTR S (76,295) — — (76,295)

Exchange differences on translation of

foreign operations BMEBIEBHELZR — 45,237 — 45237
At December 31,2016 RZZB-XE+=ZA=+-H 2,591,169 45,252 (15,371) 2,621,050
38. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 38. HUEMBEHRE
The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the board of FBBEAN_T—+tF=A-+=H
directors on 22 March 2017. EEEelERERT -
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CONSOLIDATED RESULTS

MBHE

For the year ended December 31,

BEt-A=t-HLEE

2016 2015 2014 2013

—-"E —Z-HF —T-NF =—ZT—=F

RMB’ 000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARMTRT ARBTT ARETT ARBTT

Revenue e 2,816,489 2,432,009 1,809,082 1,217,577

Gross profit EM 1,755,102 1,372,819 989,550 695996

Profit before tax BR A A& A 963,366 748,188 550,402 347,089
Profit for the year attributable to owners AEERBNARA]

of the Company i Z=PN:okibE 715611 552,738 410,907 259,928

Adjusted net profit() FERH)EMBO 737,092 562,697 410907 259,928

(1) Adjusted net profit is an unaudited non-GAAP item. The Group uses such unaudited non- (! IRFREMF| AR EZIEARSTRAIER -

GAAP adjusted net profit as an additional financial measure to supplement the consolidated
financial statements which are presented in accordance with HKFRS and to evaluate the financial
performance of the Group by eliminating the impact of certain unusual and non-recurring item that
the Group does not consider indicative of the performance of the business of the Group. Other
companies in the industry the Group operates in may calculate this non-GAAP item differently
than the Group does. This non-GAAP item is not a measure of operating performance or liquidity
under HKFRS and should not be considered as a substitute for, or superior to, profit before tax or
cash flow from operating activities in accordance with HKFRS. This non-GAAP item has limitation
as an analytical tool, and you should not consider it in isolation or as a substitute for analysis of the
Group's resullts as reported under HKFRS. The Group's presentation of this non-GAAP item should
not be construed as an inference that the Group's future results will be unaffected by unusual or

non-recurring items.

AEEEREREHRANERBINI B2
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MBBE

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERERE
As at December 31,
R+=A=+—H
2016 2015 2014 2013
ZE-XE —T-HF —T-NF -—T-=F
RMB’ 000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥TRE ARBTT ARETT ARBTT
Assets EE
Non-current assets FRBEE 627,900 549,100 424533 354515
Current assets mBEE 3,479,116 406,968 767,835 406,147
Total assets BEE 4,107,016 956,068 1,192,368 760,662
Total equity B 3,595,571 384,982 922,164 579,580
Liabilities afE
Non-current liabilities FRBEE 22,240 23,168 16,631 15,361
Current liabilities nEEE 489,205 547918 253573 165,721
Total liabilities BfREH 511,445 571,086 270204 181,082
Net current assets/(liabilities) RBEE/(AB)FH 2,989,911 (140,950) 514262 240,426
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBAE 3,617,811 408,150 938,795 594941
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